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1. INTRODUCTION

Q. PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND POSITION WITH THE COMPANY.

A. My name is Joseph F. Golden, Jr. My position is Executive Vice President and 

Acting Chief Financial Officer for Philadelphia Gas Works C'PGW** or 

"Company'*).

Q. HOW LONG HAVE YOU HELD THIS POSITION?

A. I was appointed Executive Vice President and Acting Chief Financial Officer in 

March 2012. I started with PGW in August 1986. My prior titles at PGW 

include: Controller, Treasurer. Manager Treasury Department, Senior Staff 

Accountant, and Stall Accountant. Before starting with PGW, I had prior work 

experience in public accounting, treasury accounting and cash management, and 

cost accounting for a manufacturing company.

Q. WHAT ARE YOUR VARIOUS JOB RESPONSIBILITIES?

A. In my present position, I am responsible for the treasury, accounting, and 

budgeting functions.

Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND.

A. I hold a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from Villanova University, a 

Master of Business Administration degree from Drexel University, and a Juris 

Doctor degree, cum taude. from Temple University School of Law.

Q. HAVE YOU EVER PROVIDED TESTIMONY BEFORE THE
PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION (“COMMISSION”)?

A. Yes. I submitted rebuttal testimony on behalf of PGW in the Petition of 

Philadelphia Gas Works for Waiver of Provisions of Act 11 to Increase the

|I.0M>I93U)
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Distribution System Improvement Charge Cap and to Permit Lcvclization of 

DS1C Charges (Docket No. P-2015-2501500).

Q. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?

A. The purpose of my testimony is to: I) provide the documentation and supporting 

methodology for the schedules and exhibits that are included in PGW's base rate 

filing; 2) describe PGW's financial results for the fully projected future test year 

(comprised of the period from September 1.2017 through August 31, 2018); and 

3) detail and provide supporting justification for PGW’s requested increase in 

existing annual base rates of $70.0 million (in year one).

Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR TESTIMONY.

A. Since PGW’s last base rate case in 2009/2010. the Company has undertaken a 

number of initiatives to modernize its infrastructure, make its system safer and 

more efficient and improve customer service. While some of those efforts have 

been financed through surcharges (i.e., the acceleration of PGW's main 

replacement program). PGW has undertaken numerous other efforts that have 

been financed through base rates or additional borrowing. At the same time.

PGW has experienced material increases in operating costs while seeing weather 

normalized levels of sales and associated revenues dramatically decrease. During 

this period. PGW’s financial health has continued to improve, compared to 2008 

levels. However. PGW's pro forma results clearly demonstrate that a rale 

increase is needed if the Company is going to maintain its financial status and 

current favorable bond ratings and be able to continue with its significant efforts 

to improve the safety, efficiency and reliability of its system and continue to work 

to improve customer service.

,'1.0661931.3;
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II. BACKGROUND FOR CONSIDERATION OF RATE REQUEST

Financial Condition

Q. PLEASE PROVIDE THE BACKGROUND OF PGW'S CURRENT 
FINANCIAL CONDITION.

A. Since its last general rate increase in 2010, PGW’s financial strength has slowly 

improved such that it has achieved revenue bond upgrades from all three rating 

agencies' that rate the City of Philadelphia Gas Works Revenue Bonds (”PGWTs 

Bonds’*):

S&P: to A- (Positive Outlook) from BBB+ (Stable Outlook) 
Moody’s to Baal (Stable Outlook) from Baa2 (Stable Outlook) 
Fitch to BBB+ (Stable Outlook) from BBB (Stable Outlook)

In addition, S&P has improved its “outlook” for PGW’s Bonds from 

“Stable** to ‘'Positive”. But, as Mr. Douglas Moser, PGW St. No. 7, explains, as 

its financial health has improved. PGW has steadily increased its efforts to 

improve safety, reliability, and customer service on its system. As Mr. Daniel 

Hartman, PGW St. No. 3, also explains, it is crucially important that PGW, at 

least, maintain these bond ratings - or, ideally, improve them - so that it can 

continue to have access to the capital markets on acceptable terms and to finance 

a portion of these improvements through internally generated funds. Since 2009, 

PGW has been able to finance about $185 million in capital additions through 

internally generated funds, which otherwise would have had to come from 

additional long term borrowing. Mr. Hartman describes the important financial 

metrics PGW must maintain in order to do this. Thus, the rate increase requested 

by PGW is critically necessary to place the Company in a position to continue to

1 See Exhibit JFG-3.
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modernize its infrastructure, take additional steps to make its distribution system 

safer and more efficient, and continue to improve customer service.

Long-Term Debt

Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE RECENT ACTIVITY REGARDING PGW’S 
LONG-TERM DEBT ISSUANCES.

A. PGW successfully completed revenue bond refunding transactions in August of 

2016 and 2015 in the amounts of $312.4 million and S261.8 million, respectively. 

The long-term debt refunding completed in August 2016 achieved gross savings 

of $71.1 million and net present value (UNPVV) savings of $38.2 million. With 

level debt service savings, this transaction lowered debt service and the costs that 

will be imposed on customers, by approximately $4.05 million ($2.7 million in 

debt sendee and $1.35 million in debt service coverage at 1.5x) per year for the 

next 22 years.

The transaction completed in August 2015 achieved gross savings of 

$74.1 million and NPV savings of $34.3 million. With level debt service savings, 

this transaction lowered debt service and charges to ratepayers by approximately 

$4.95 million ($3.3 million in debt service and $1.65 million in debt service 

coverage at 1.5x) per year for the next 19 years. As Mr. Hartman explains, 

PGW‘s ability to continue to take advantage of an attractive interest rate 

environment and refinance existing debt requires that PGW maintain or improve 

its current financial condition. It is noteworthy that interest expense has 

decreased from the 2009/2010 base rate case when compared to the FPFTY (FY 

2018) by $12.6 million ($61.8 million reduced to $49.2 million annually) because

L066I93U} \
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PGW: 1) has refinanced long term debt at lower interest rates; and 2) reduced 

long term debt by normal amortization.

WHAT PLANS DOES PGW HAVE TO SELL BONDS IN THE 
FORESEEABLE FUTURE?

PGW anticipates issuing City of Philadelphia Gas Works Revenue Bonds in the 

par amount of $270.0 million in its tiscal year (WFYM) 2017, the 12 months ended 

August 31, 2017. The exact timing of the issuance would be subject to market 

conditions. The next bond issuance is projected to be in FY 2020 and in the 

amount of $180 million.

PRO FORMA FINANCIAL RESULTS

HAVE YOU PREPARED A PRO FORMA TEST YEAR INCOME 
STATEMENT, CASH FLOW, DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE AND 
BALANCE SHEET THAT PROJECTS THE COMPANY'S STATUS IN 
THE CURRENT YEAR AS WELL AS ON A PROJECTED BASIS?

Yes.

FIRST, PLEASE EXPLAIN THE TEST YEAR ON WHICH PGW’S 
CLAIMED REVENUE REQUIREMENT IS BASED.

As permitted by Act 11 of 2012, PGW has based its claimed revenue requirement

on the fully forecasted 12 months ending August 3 k 2018. referred to as the Fully

Projected Future Test Year ("FPFTY"). The Future Test Year (“FTY”) is FY

2016-2017 or FY 2017 and the Historical Test Year ("HTY") is FY 2015-2016 or

FY 2016. Those results are displayed on Exhibit JFG-1. Each page of this

exhibit shows data for: (1) the H TY, the 12 months ended August 31,2016 or FY

2016; (2) the FTY. the 12 months ended August 31,2017 or FY 2017; and (3) the

FPFTY, the 12 months ended August 31,2018 or FY 2018. The Exhibit also

shows projections for FY 2019 through FY 2022 (which 1 will refer to as the

!l.066l‘>3U!
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'‘Forecast Period"). Page 1 of Exhibit JFG-1 displays operating revenues, 

operating expenses and net earnings (Statement of Income); page 2 displays 

PGW!s Cash Flow Statement, page 3 shows Debt Service Coverage; and page 4 

shows the Company's Balance Sheet and capitalization ratios.

Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE HOW THE DATA FOR THE HISTORIC TEST 
YEAR WERE DERIVED.

A. The HTY is the actual audited results for FY 2015-2016. Note that these data are 

not adjusted for normal weather.

Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE HOW THE FUTURE TEST YEAR AND FULLY 
PROJECTED FUTURE TEST YEAR RESULTS WERE CREATED.

A. The FTY and FPFTY results were derived by starting with PGW’s current (FY 

2016-2017) Budget ("Budget year"), approved by the Philadelphia Gas 

Commission ("PGC"). PGW develops its annual Budget generally, as follows:

1. PGW's Marketing and Gas Planning departments calculate 

revenues and sales by class for the Budget year, and provide projections for the 

forecast years. This process is fully described in the testimony of Kenneth 

Dybalski (PGW St. 6). Revenue-related expenses (chiefly natural gas) arc then 

calculated.

2. The Budget year expenses are then determined. Each department 

submits its view of the expense levels it will experience in the budget year.

Where a specific cost category increase or changes affecting the expense level 

was identified, those levels were used to establish the expense for the respective 

Budget year. For example, PGW utilized the annual wage increases established in 

its current collective bargaining agreement to calculate wage expense for various 

departments. Also, PGW utilized information provided by its benefits consultant

<>11.0661931J
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to project health care costs and other benefit costs, including Other Post- 

Employment Benefits ("OPEIV*). Long-term debt interest expense and debt 

amortization was also adjusted to reflect more recent information concerning the 

results of the recent debt refinancing. These results were then used to prepare 

four key financial schedules for J:Y 2016-2017: income statement; cash flow 

statement; debt service coverage; and the balance sheet.

Q. DOES PGW ALSO PREPARE A FIVE YEAR FORECAST OF 
FINANCIAL OPERATIONS?

A. Yes. Using the Budget year as the base year. PGW rolls forward its budgeted

operating results to create a five-year forecast, taking account of any known rate 

or other changes that might affect the results in a particular year. PGW used the 

first year of its five year forecast. FY 2017-2018, as its FPFTY.

Q. WHAT IS THE REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCESS ASSOCIATED 
WITH THIS BUDGET AND FIVE YEAR FORECAST?

A. In addition to an internal review and approval process by the PGW executive 

team, PGW is required to obtain approval of its annual budget from both the 

Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation F'PFMC") (the equivalent of 

PGW's Board of Directors) and the PGC. PGWMs capital budget must be 

approved by the PFMC, the PGC. and Philadelphia City Council.

Q. HOW ARE THE AMOUNTS SHOWN ON JFG-t DIFFERENT THAN 
THOSE APPROVED BY PFMC, PGC, AND PHILADELPHIA CITY 
COUNCIL?

A. For the FPFTY (FY 2017-2018) and the Forecast Period (FYs 2019, 2020, 2021 

and 2022), and as explained more fully by Mr. Kenneth Dybalski, PGW St. No. 6, 

pro forma revenues have been adjusted to reflect normal weather using a ten-year 

average for heating degree days and the estimated impact of gas cost changes.

I.OftfWUl 7
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Test year expenses have also been updated for known changes, the most 

significant of which is the effect of GASB 75 on the I;Y 2017-2018 year.

Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN GASB 75 AND ITS EFFECT ON PGW.

A. Both privately and publicly owned companies are required to adhere to General 

Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP") established by accounting review 

boards. Investor owned utilities must adhere to GAAP established by the 

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB"). States and municipalities must 

adhere to similar standards promulgated by the Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board (“GASB”). GASB 75. the equivalent of FASB for 

municipalities, mandated that starting in FY 2017-2018, OPEB costs for retirees 

be shown as deferred inflows of funds and deferred outflows of funds on the 

balance sheet rather than as current expenses. The necessary adjustments were 

made in the FPFTY to reflect these accounting mandates. Importantly, this 

accounting change relates to compliance with GAAP and does not eliminate or 

change PGW’s obligation to continue to pay the appropriate level of cash outlays 

as calculated by the actuary.

Q. WHAT OTHER ITEMS HAVE BEEN UPDATED?

A. The cost of PGW's most recent refinancing has been reflected in the FPFTY. In

addition, PGW's rate case expense has been amortized over three years.

IV. CALCULATION OF REVENUE REQUIREMENT

Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN THE BASIS ON WHICH PGW HAS CALCULATED 
ITS REVENUE REQUIREMENT FOR THE FPFTY.

A. As noted. PGW is not regulated on the basis of a fair rate of return on a used and 

useful rale base as are investor-owned utilities; instead, the Company's revenue

LOfifthUI 3 K



1 requirement is established on the basis of the ‘'Cash Flow Method.'* While I am

2 informed that the use of the Cash Flow Method is mandated by the Gas Choice

3 Act.2 the Commission has explained how it intends to implement that standard for

4 PGW. In its 2010 Policy Statement, the Commission described the requirements

5 of the Cash Flow Method as follows:

6 (b) The Commission is obligated under law to use the cash How
7 methodology to determine PGW's just and reasonable rates. Included in that
8 requirement is the subsidiary obligation to provide revenue allowances from
9 rates adequate to cover its reasonable and prudent operating expenses,

10 depreciation allowances and debt service, as well as sufficient margins to
11 meet bond coverage requirements and other internally generated funds over
12 and above its bond coverage requirements, as the Commission deems
13 appropriate and in the public interest for purposes such as capital
14 improvements, retirement of debt and working capital.3

15 The Commission also slated that, in determining just and reasonable rate

16 levels for PGW it w'ould consider, among other relevant factors, the

17 following financial factors:

18 • PG W’s lest year-end and (as a check) projected future levels ol*
19 non-borrowed vear-end cash.

20
21

Available short term borrou'ing capacity and internal 
generation of funds to fund construction.

22
23

• Debt to equity ratios and financial performance of similarly 
situated utility enterprises.

24
25
26 
27

Level of financial performance needed to maintain or improve 
PGW's bond rating thereby permitting PGW to access the 
capital markets at the lowest reasonable costs to customers 
over time.4

66 Pa.C.S. § 2212(e); 52 Pa.Code § 69.2702(b) ("The Commission is obligated 
under law to use the cash flow methodology to determine PGW?s just and 
reasonable rates.").

52 Pa.Code § 69.2702.

52 Pa.Code § 69.2703.

106619313 9
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Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN HOW PGW HAS APPLIED THIS GUIDANCE IN 
DETERMINING ITS REVENUE REQUIREMENT.

A. As a ‘‘cash How” regulated company, PGW’s operations are entirely funded from 

rates, either indirectly as a result of short-term or long-term borrowing (which 

then must be paid back by ratepayers) or directly through charges to customers. 

Accordingly, PGW's most important financial metrics are:

1) debt service coverage ratios; and

2) end of year days cash on hand; and, separately.

3) liquidity balance.

First. PGW's debt service coverage levels are crucial because if the 

Company falls below the 1.5x minimum requirement in its bond covenants, 

reflected in the City of Philadelphia Ordinance that establishes the requirements 

for PGW’s bonds' then it will be in technical default and its access to capital 

markets will evaporate. However, it needs higher levels of coverage (above the 

1.5x minimum) in order to meet cash requirements not contained in the Bond 

Ordinance calculation or in the operating expense category of the income 

statement.

Second. PGW's end of year cash balance is also crucial because PGW 

needs an accumulated balance of cash in its accounts at fiscal year-end to pay its

The General Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1998, approved on May 30. 
1998. Bill No. 980232. as amended and supplemented from time to time (the 
“1998 General Ordinance'*) and the General Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance 
of 1975. approved on May 30, 1975, Bill No. 1871. as amended and 
supplemented from time to time (the “1975 General Ordinance*’) (collectively 
referred to as the “Bond Ordinance'*).

L066IV.ll J 10
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substantial obligations (the largest of which are invoices for natural gas and 

upstream pipeline capacity used by its customers) and working capital 

requirements beginning in the fall and continuing into the winter, prior to 

collecting revenues for the winter heating season.

Third. PGW's year-end liquidity (cash plus available short-term 

borrowing capacity) is also important to meet its substantial obligations during the 

winter prior to receiving revenues from customers, and to provide a responsible 

and reasonable measure of cushion for unforeseen circumstances.

In addition to the three metrics discussed above, the other indices that are 

important are the Company's capitalization ratio and its sources of internally 

generated funds to fund construction. Both of these factors are listed in the 

Commission's 2010 Policy Statement and arc among the main focus points that 

are considered by the bond rating agencies in evaluating the creditworthiness of 

PGW6

Q. HOW DO THE OPERATING RESULTS SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED 
EXHIBITS TREAT THE CITY PAYMENT OF $18.0 MILLION?

A. The City Payment is shown as an expense of the Company since PGW is legally 

obligated to make this payment.7 While the City of Philadelphia “granted back" 

this payment during PGW's financial crisis in the late 2000s, it has, since 2010. 

ended the grant back. Based upon the latest budget and forecast information

6 See. e.g.. Exhibit JFG-3 at Moody's Investors Service. Philadelphia (City of) PA 
Gas Works. Credit Opinion ( August 8, 2016); S & P Global RatingsPircct, 
Philadelphia; Gas: Joint Criteria (August 10,2016).

7 See 66 Pa.C.S. 2212(f),

iL066l()3IJ 11
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submitted by the City, it intends to continue to have PGW remit this fee for the 

foreseeable future. Accordingly, the City Payment is treated as a “known and 

definite'* expense in PGW’s operating results and resulting financial metrics.

Non-Borrowed Year-End Cash

Q. WHAT LEVELS OF YEAR END CASH IS PGW PROJECTING IT WILL 
EXPERIENCE IN THE FPFTY?

A. In FY 2017-2018, PGW is projecting that it will end the year with just $47.4 

million in cash; this projection dramatically decreases in the Forecast Period.

This equates to just 35.7 days of cash on hand8 with the cash balance quickly 

turning negative in the Forecast Period. As more fully explained by Mr. Hartman, 

the bond rating agencies that closely follow PGW*s financial performance have 

indicated that a cash balance of between 70 and 90 days of cash on hand is 

adequate for PGW to maintain its existing bond rating and not be downgraded.9 

Therefore, a cash balance of only 36 days would not only be extremely 

concerning to the rating agencies, it would also pose real challenges to the 

Company's ability to meet all of its obligations when they came due.

It is important to understand that the measurement of 36 days cash on 

hand is being presented as of August 31, 2018, PGW’s fiscal year-end. PGW's 

cash balance changes throughout the fiscal year and is at a low point in the middle 

of the fiscal year (including in FY 2017-2018. the FPFTY). Maintaining a days' 

cash on hand balance of 70 to 90 days at August 31sl will be followed by a lower

8 Days of cash on hand calculation: Total Operating Expenses, less non-cash items, 
depreciation and amortized pensions, divided by 365, divided into cash balance.

*’ F.xhibit JFG-3 at Moody's Ratina Action. August 8, 2016. p. 5 (Moody's 
forecasts that direct cash liquidity will remain in the 70 to 90 days range).

11.0661931.3: 12
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balance in ihe middle ofPGW's fiscal year. Thus, the FPI;TY?s balance of just 36 

days cash on hand at fiscal year-end would result in just 22.6 days of cash on 

hand ($30 million) at the low point in December of that year, leaving very little 

ability to respond to contingencies such as lower than pro forma sales or 

unanticipated expenditures.

Q. PLEASE DISCUSS PGW’S DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIOS IN 
THE FPFTY AND IN THE FORECAST PERIOD.

A. Turning back to the first important financial metric, at present rales, PGW?s debt 

sendee coverage ratios are just minimally above its Bond Ordinance coverage 

requirement of 1.5x in the FPFTY. This coverage calculation does not take 

account of certain cash obligations that are not in the operating expense section of 

the income statement, including the City Payment, and certain pension and OPEB 

obligations, all of which must be paid out of the cash that is part of the ‘‘coverage*’ 

in excess of the debt sendee. PGW’s calculations show that it needs coverages at 

2.0x and above in order to produce enough cash to be able to meet all of its 

obligations throughout the year, including the City Payment, pensions, OPEBs. 

capital funding from internally generated ftmds, and additional funds for working 

capital.

Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN PGW’S USE OF THE CASH GENERATED BY THE 
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO REQUIREMENT IN EXCESS OF 
1.0 TIMES COVERAGE.

A. Under the Bond Ordinance, PGW has a mandatory debt service coverage ratio of’ 

1.5x the debt service, which is calculated by subtracting operating expenses from 

total funds available to derive total funds available to cover debt service. The 

cash generated by this ratio (funds available to cover debt service) is used to pay

[UKtoWI 3
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other expenses that do not appear on the Statement of Income, but influences the 

debt service coverage calculation. These payments include the $18.0 million City 

Payment. $18.5 million to the OPEB Trust Fund. $2.0 to $3.0 million to the 

pension fund, and $5.0 million towards retiree health care cost. Additionally. 

PGW continues to utilize internally generated funds (“IGF”) for capital 

construction to reduce its dependence on long-term debt financing and contributes 

approximately $50.0 million to $60.0 million towards IGF. As of August 2016 

this has saved PGW approximately $12.5 million in interest costs over the last 

five fiscal years.

Q. WOULD THE RATING AGENCIES VIEW A DEBT SERVICE 
COVERAGE LEVEL JUST ABOVE 1.5X AS CAUSE FOR A 
DOWNGRADE?

A. Yes, most definitely. The rating agencies calculate PGW coverages differently

than in the Bond Ordinance, accurately treating the $18.0 million City Payment as 

a fixed obligation. When the Company's debt service coverage is calculated 

including the $18.0 million as a fixed obligation, PGW’s debt service coverage 

falls to just above 1,3x in the FPFTY and drops to below 1.3x in the Forecast 

Period:

FPFTY 2019
Forecast

2020
Forecast

2021
Forecast

2022
Forecast

1.33 1.39 1.34 1.39 1.26

Since these coverage levels are materially below the 1.5-1.6x level that 

Moody's has observed for PGW, they would very likely cause a downgrade by 

Moody's, followed by similar negative ratings action by the other bond rating 

agencies. PGW Witness Hartman discusses this in detail in his testimony. 

Borrowing Capacity And Internal Generation Of Funds

{1.0661931.3] 14
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Q. HOW WOULD THESE FINANCIAL RESULTS AFFECT ROW’S
ABILITY TO USE NON-DSIC INTERNALLY GENERATED FUNDS TO 
FUND CONSTRUCTION?

A. These financial results would reduce the IGF to below $30 million per year ($26.4 

million in the FPFTY). This compares unfavorably to the level of non-DSIC IGF 

the Company experienced in FY 2015-2016 of $33.1. At this level of revenues 

PGW would not be able to maintain the 50/50 balance of funding for capital 

programs that the rating agencies have commented on with favor. The Company 

would have to either cut back on capital projects or issue more debt.

Q. WHY HAS PGW CHOSEN A FINANCING STRATEGY FOR CAPITAL 
SPENDING COMPRISED OF 50 PERCENT OF FUNDS FROM 
INTERNALLY GENERATED FUNDS AND 50 PERCENT OF FUNDS 
FROM DEBT?

A. PGW has chosen the financing strategy for capital spending comprised of 50 

percent of funds from internally generated funds and 50 percent of funds from 

debt in order to spread out some payments over time rather than have the 

ratepayers finance all capital improvements on a "pay-gov basis. This 

combination financing strategy allows PGW to use long-term debt, its tax-exempt 

commercial paper program, and internally generated funds to finance the 

improvements to its infrastructure.

Q. IF PGW WERE FORCED TO UTILIZE DEBT FINANCING RATHER 
THAN INTERNALLY GENERATED FUNDS FOR THE NEXT FOUR 
YEARS WHAT WOULD THE IMPACT BE ON PROJECTED DEBT 
SERVICE AND THE DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO 
REQUIREMENT?

A. PGW would experience a decrease in its debt service coverage ratio for an

incremental increase in debt service. Debt sendee on a bond issuance of $100.0 

million at a composite rate of approximately 4% would be approximately $7.0

{1.06619.11 j i 15
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million per year. The bond covenant that mandates a 1.5x debt service coverage 

would require additional revenues of $10.5 million per year to take account of 

this requirement. After several bond issuances the debt service coverage 

requirement would exceed a "pay as you gov financing strategy. This significant 

savings to ratepayers over time is also why PGW does not finance its 

construction program using entirely long-term bonds. In addition, any increase in 

the level of debt PGW is already projecting will drive its debt to total 

capitalization ratio to unacceptable levels.

Debt To Equity Ratio and Financial Performance

Q. WHAT IS PGW’S PROJECTED DEBT TO TOTAL CAPITALIZATION 
RATIO FOR THE FULLY PROJECTED FUTURE TEST YEAR?

A. PGW’s debt to total capitalization ratio in the FPFTY is approximately 90%, well 

above its actual level in the historic test year, 76.3%. While by FY 2022 the debt 

to total capitalization ratio is projected to move to 88.5%. PGW would be very 

concerned about increasing its debt burden, resulting in even higher levels of debt, 

if it were required to do so to compensate for reduced levels of available IGF. 

Recall that PGW has had a goal of reducing its debt to equity level to under 60% 

of total capitalization, and the Commission Staff has opined that a level of 70% 

was not unreasonable.10

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, Staff Report: Inquiry into the 
Philadelphia Gas Works' Pipeline Replacement Program, dated April 21,2015, p. 
6, 44, 50.

11.066193IJ 16
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Bond Ratines

Q. WHAT WOULD HAPPEN [F PGW WERE TO EXPERIENCE THE 
FINANCIAL RESULTS PROJECTED FOR THE FY 2018 FPFTY?

A. PGW would be in serious risk of not being able to meet its cash obligations—and 

absent some timely emergency action—having its debt service coverage levels 

fall below the level mandated in the Bond Ordinance. If either of these events 

occurred, it would be entirely realistic for the rating agencies to downgrade or put 

a negative outlook on PGW’s bonds. Such adverse actions by the rating agencies 

would add to PGW?s borrowing costs and could trigger increased rates on PGW’s 

variable rate debt (the Fifth Series A-2 Bonds and the Eighth Series B, C. D and E 

Bonds). 'I'he increased costs and/or the Company's liquidity profile would limit 

PGW?s reasonable access to capital markets. More importantly, the projected 

level of cash is not an adequate level for a firm with over $600.0 million in 

revenues and $500.0 million in operating expenses. If actual expenses were to 

exceed ‘‘normar* levels because of abnormally cold weather or an unanticipated 

spike in gas prices, PGW could be left having to rely on its limited short-term 

commercial paper for liquidity. Although PGW has the ability to issue up to 

$120.0 million of commercial paper on a short-term basis, this approach would 

add costs to customers and remove PGW’s only source of short-term protection 

against a failure to be able to pay its bills when due.

Q. HOW DOES PGW CURRENTLY USE ITS COMMERCIAL PAPER?

A. Currently PGW utilizes its commercial paper for capital financing. This strategy 

allows PGW to hold off the issuance of long-term debt, thus putting off the 

associated costs, and also so that it can issue bonds at the optimal lime relative to

:I.06619.1|.3: 17
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the long term bond market. Such optimal market timing can also reduce the costs 

of long term borrowing. Utilization of commercial paper for working capital 

would deny PGW the ability to reduce ratepayer costs by using the commercial 

paper for capital projects.

The Company would also have to seriously consider issuing more debt in 

order to continue its existing capital program. The Company does not believe that 

issuing more debt would be prudent or viewed with favor by the bond rating 

agencies. Cutting back on capital projects - the only other prudent alternative - 

would have a materially adverse effect on the ability of PGW to continue to 

modernize and increase the safety of its distribution network, as well as to attempt 

to improve customer sendee.

Q. WHAT ARE YOUR CONCLUSIONS BASED ON THE FINANCIAL 
RESULTS AT PRESENT RATES FOR THE FPFTY AND THE 
FORECAST PERIOD?

A. It is crucially important that PGW obtain rate relief in order to repair these

financial indicators, as well as to have sufficient cash in order to prudently operate 

the Company. A failure to improve these results with additional revenues would 

almost certainly result in a bond rating downgrade, which would raise the costs of 

borrowing and limit PGW?s access to capital markets.

Q. WHAT LEVEL OF RATE RELIEF DOES PGW REQUIRE TO
MAINTAIN ITS FINANCIAL INDICATORS AT THE APPROPRIATE 
LEVELS AND HAVE SUFFICIENT CASH TO PRUDENTLY OPERATE 
THE COMPANY?

A. PGW has determined that an increase of $70.0 million would provide sufficient 

additional revenues to enable it to maintain its financial metrics at adequate levels 

and maintain its existing bond rating.

■ x|L0661‘)3U
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Q. HAVE YOU CALCULATED PGW’S FINANCIAL RESULTS IN THE
FPFTY AS WELL AS IN THE FORECAST PERIOD IF ITS PROPOSED 
S70.0 MILLION RATE INCREASE IS GRANTED?

A. Yes. those results are shown on Exhibit JFG-2. At $70.0 million. PGW would 

have coverages that exceed 2.Ox in the FPFTY and in the Forecast Period. 

Including the City Payment as an expense, PGW’s coverage lor the FPFTY would 

he almost at the desired 2.0x range, and would go above that minimum required 

level in subsequent years. As I indicated above, coverages at this level are 

required to permit PGW to have the funds it needs throughout the year to satisfy 

all of its obligations. The proposed rate increase would also produce about 

$114.0 million in year-end cash, or about 84 days of cash on hand at the end of 

the FPFTY. This is slightly better than the level that Moody's observed for PGW 

for FY 2015 (77 days of cash on hand) and is in the range (70 to 90 days) that 

Moody's has indicated it expects for a company rated at Baal. This is consistent 

with Moody's August 2016 Credit Opinion. Finally, a $70.0 million rate increase 

would produce enough IGF so that PGW could continue to fund its construction 

budget from both long-term debt and IGF on an equal basis.

Q. HOW WOULD THE RATE INCREASE AFFECT PGW’S FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE DURING THE FORECAST PERIOD?

A. It would similarly keep PGW at the levels it was experiencing in the historic test 

year and the levels on which the rating agencies have commented favorably. For 

example, cash on hand would improve in FY 2018 to 85.7 days on hand and then 

slowly decrease to 57.3 days on hand in FYr 2022. Debt service coverage would 

stay above 2.Ox in the Forecast Period and PGW's debt to total capitalization 

would slowly modulate to 74% in FY 2022. This highlights the fact that any

{1.06619.11.3;
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Commission rate increase granted in 2017 will make steady improvement in 

PGW’s financials because 100% of the excess over costs is retained by the 

Company. This is essentially what is shown by the improved cash flow and debt 

service numbers.

Q. ARE THERE CIRCUMSTANCES THAT COULD MATERIALLY 
AFFECT THE FINANCIAL INDICATORS THAT YOU HAVE 
PROJECTED?

A. Yes? PGW?s pro forma income statement is calculated assuming a 4% bad debt 

expense rate and a 96% collection rate. These projections do not assume any 

material change in PGW’s collection practices. However, there may be a material 

change in the FPFTY to one of its key tools - its ability to place a lien on 

properties where the delinquent customer of record is not the owner of the 

properly. Part of the Company’s collection strategy is to use its municipal lien 

ability to lien properties to secure overdue amounts, including locations at which 

tenants are responsible for the natural gas bill and the lien is placed on properties 

owned by landlords. PGW is typically paid for its lien upon transfer of the 

properly or it can try to reduce the lien to a money judgment and execute on the 

judgment. In this way PGW can eventually obtain payment for at least some of 

these arrearages and reduce the bad debt expense that other customers otherwise 

would have to bear. At the present time, PGW collects about $22 million each 

year from accounts associated with liens. However, on January 5, 2017 a federal 

district judge issued a Permanent Injunction/Order that arrested PGW’s ability to 

continue to lien properties where the customer of record was not the owner.

While this decision is being appealed, at the present time, it is not clear how this 

ruling, as well as another PUC order affecting liened arrearages, will ultimately

20
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affect PGW's liening ability, and. correspondingly, its ability to collect these 

arrearages from the responsible parties. If PGW’s liening ability with respect to 

non-owner occupied properties is materially reduced or otherwise affected. 

PGW's bad debt expense could increase by as much as one or more percentage 

points (i.e.. from 4% to 5%. or greater). While PGW has not made an adjustment 

to its pro forma results to account for this potential at the present time, it reserves 

the right to do so if the effects of these legal proceedings become more '“known 

and definite."

V. CONCLUSION

Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?

A. Yes.

|1.06Ml>3U 21
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS

STATEMENT OF INCOME

(Dollars in Thousands)

Presnt Rales
JFG - i
Page i

ACTUAL HTY FTY FPFTY FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST like

N& 20U-15 2015-16 2018-17 2017-18 2018-19 201B-20 2020-21 2021-22 m
OPERATING REVENUES

i Non-Healing S 30.753 S 21873 5 26,425 8 26,230 S 25.370 S 24.494 S 23.651 $ 22.873

2. Gas Transport Service 39.962 38.550 45.674 44.614 46.222 47.594 48.853 50.055 2.
3 Healing 618.164 472,275 524,234 534.832 543.666 552.484 S8'.620 571.396 3.
d Wenlher Normalization Adjustment (10,747) 41,479 5.905 4.

5 Unbilled Afliustment <2.105i (1.830) 1.073 315 104 83 119 109 5,
6 Total Gas Revenues 676.027 572.347 603.51 1 605.991 615.370 624.655 634.143 544.433 6.
7. Appliance Repair & Other Revenues 8,727 7.962 8.18? 8.265 8.347 8.431 8.515 6.601 7(

e Other Operating Revenues 12,493 10,928 13.023 12.757 12.903 13.044 13.186 13.339 8.
9. Total Other Operating Revenues 21.220 18.890 21.205 21.022 21.250 21.475 21.701 21.940 9

10. Total Operating Revenues 697.247 591.237 625.116 527.013 636.620 646.130 655.844 666.373 10.
OPERATING EXPENSES

11 Natural Gas 252.158 146.515 176.731 184.960 191,471 197,808 204.518 211,904 11.
12. Other Raw Material 11 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 12.
13. Sub-Tolol Fuel 252.169 146,524 176,741 184,970 191,481 197.818 204.526 211.914 13

14. CONTRIBUTION MARGINS 445.078 444.713 448,376 442,043 445,139 448.312 451.316 454.459 14.

15 Gas Processing 18.180 17.948 17.666 17.521 17,837 18.216 18.457 18.857 15.
16. Field Services 36.874 36.276 39.369 40.340 41.299 42,096 42.611 43.456 16
17. Distribution 38.629 37.173 41.690 42.562 43.528 44.358 44.925 45.824 •7_

18 Collection 3.457 3.341 4.354 4.420 4,519 4.609 4,651 4.695 16.
19. Customer Service 12.262 12.432 13.503 13.807 14.126 14.408 14.627 14.919 19.
20, Account Management 7.735 7,57' 8.399 8.487 8.671 8.844 6.977 9,157 20
21. Bad Debt Expense 34.633 27.133 30.654 26.956 27,639 28.347 28,804 28.834 21.
22. Marketing 6.956 3.671 4,355 4439 4.538 4,625 4,694 4.785 22.
23 Administrative & General 60.253 67.139 69,025 66.334 66.160 67,162 97,516 68.595 23
24 Health insurance 5V051 53.370 58.305 30.811 33.641 36.627 39,880 43.424 24
25 Environmental Remeaiat'on - 2.045 1.696 927 997 25.
26 Capitalized Fnnge Benefits (8.860) 110.0771 (11.537) (11.620) (12,238) (12.937) 113.744) (14.613) 26
27 Capitalized Administrative Charges (9.0971 (10.770) (15.791) (12.945) (13.736) 113.409) 114,032) (15,579) 27
28 Pensions 43.748 62.336 65.022 51.800 40,308 39.670 22.691 20.383 28
29. Ta»es 7,823 7.521 8.232 8.437 8.647 8.821 8,997 9,177 29
30. Other Post Employment Benefits 6.725 9.929 6,632 31.028 29.663 28.023 26.045 23683 30
31. Cost / labor Savings (2.073) - 31.
32. Sub-Total Other Operating & Maintenance 310.570 324.985 337.805 322.377 316.645 321.164 306.028 306.594 32.
33 Depreciation 46.474 47.894 48,84? 50.596 52.436 54.244 56.019 57.827 33.
34. Cost of Removal 2,897 3.765 4.100 4,100 4.100 4.100 4.100 4.100 34
35. To Clearing Accounts (5.584) (6.231) (6.771) (7.516) (7.562) (7.579) (7.219) (7.186) 35
36 Net Depreciation 43.787 45,448 46.171 47,180 48.974 50.765 52,900 54.741 36.
37 Sub-Total Other Operating Expenses 354,357 370.433 383.976 369.557 365.619 371.929 358.928 361.335 37.

38. TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 608,526 516.957 560.717 554,527 557,100 589,747 563.456 573,249 38
39 OPERATING INCOME 90,721 74.280 64.399 72.486 79,520 76.383 92.368 93.124 39
40. Interest Coin 1 (Loss) and Other Income 3,784 1.393 2.698 3.031 2.684 2.879 3291 2,890 40.
41. INCOME BEFORE INTEREST 94.505 75.673 67,297 75.517 82.204 79,262 95,679 96.014 41.

INTEREST
42. Long-Term Debt 45.756 40.295 44,634 49,160 46.807 48,738 50.601 47,766 42.
43 Other 7.448 3,966 (4.059) (6.893) (6.252) (5.519) (4.784) (4,004) 43
44 AFUDC (781) (1.120) (1,136) (920) (985) (964) (997) (1.030) 44.
45 Loss From Extinguishment of Debt 4.100 4.476 6.061 5.666 5.300 4.894 4.490 4.072 45.
46. Total Interest 56.523 47.619 45.720 47.013 44.870 47.149 49.310 46.804 46
47 NET INCOME 37.982 28,054 21.877 28.504 37.334 32,113 48.369 49.210 47.
48 Crty Payment 18.000 19.000 18,000 18,000 18.000 18.000 18.000 16.000 48.
49 NET EARNINGS S 19.982 S 10.054 S 3.577 S 10.504 5 19.334 S 14.113 S 28.389 S 31.210 49



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS Presnt Rates
CASH FLOW STATEMENT JFG '1

(Dollars in Thousands) ^ 2

MNS ACTUAL HTY FTY FPFTV FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST UNE

SOURCES
2014-15 2015.18 2016.17 2017-18 2018-19 2070-21 2021-32 NO.

i Net Income S 37.982 S 28.054 $ 21.577 5 28.504 S 37.334 $ 32.113 S 46.369 5 49.210 1.
2. Deprecation & Amortization 53,258 50,371 45,049 47.000 49.114 51,246 53.350 55.518 2.
3. Earnings on Restricted Funds Wi'.hdrawaUlNo Withdrawal) 7.051 23 (1.663) (1.324) (958) (1.133) (1.224) (1.104) 3.
4 Proceeds from Bond Refunding to Pay Cost of issuance 2,700 • 500 4
5. inc.'eased/(Decreased) Other Assetsnia&i<4ies 23696 28.209 29.078 (5.274) (18.246) (31.0911 (46.024) (53.725) 5.
6. Available From Operations 121.987 106,657 96,741 68.906 67.244 51.635 52.471 49.899 6.

7 Drawdown of Bond Proceeds 65.000 52.000 57,000 55,000 57,000 59.000 7
a Release of Restricted Fund Assets 8.562 6.673 . 8
9. Release of Bond Proceeds lo Pay Temporary Financing - 71.000 9.

10 Temporary Financing 30.000 41,000 - - 10
11. TOTAL SOURCES 160.549 154.330 232.741 120.906 124.244 106.635 109.471 108.899 11

USES
12. Net Construction Expenditures 85.499 100.333 132.632 109.010 115.628 113,149 117.009 120.996 12.
13. Funded Debt Reduction: 13.503 - 13.
14. Revenue Bonds 62.190 53.825 34.790 51.634 47.747 62.905 44.084 57,749 14
IS Temporary Financing Repayment - 71.000 - 15.

16. Distribution of Earnings
Additions To {Reductions of)

18,000 18.000 18.000 18,000 18.000 18,000 18.000 18.000 16

17 Non-Cosh Working Capital (27.236) 4.756 (37.736) 423 1.149 (2.783) (564) 175 17.

18. Cash Needs 151.956 ’76.914 218.684 179,267 182.524 191,271 178.529 196.920 18.
19 Cash Surplus (Shortfall 8.593 (22.584) 14.057 (58.361) (58 280) (84.636) (69.058) (88.021) 19
20. TOTAL USES 160.549 154,330 232.741 120.906 124.244 106.635 109,471 108.899 20

21 Cash - Beginning of Period 105,734 114,327 91.743 105.800 47,439 (10.84li (95,477) (164.535) 21
22 Cash - Surplus iShodfall) 8.593 (22.584) 14.057 (58 361) (58.280) (84.636) (69.058) (88.021) 22
23. ENDING CASH S 114.327 5 91.743 105.800 S 47.439 % 110.841) l (95.477) $ 1164,535) 5 (252,555) 23

24. Outstanding Commercial Paper . 24.
25 Outstanding Commercial Paper • Capital 30.000 71,000 - 25
26 OSIC Revenue 13.764 26.253 32.541 30,579 30.695 31.214 31.516 31,846 26.
27 Internally Gonereted Funds 31.735 33.080 35,091 26.431 27.733 20,935 28.491 30.150 27
28 TOTAL IGF ♦ Incremental OSIC Revenue 45.499 59.333 67,632 57,010 58.628 58.149 60.009 61.996 28



DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE iFG I
Pago 3

(Dollars in Thousands)

PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS presnt Rates

ACTUAL MTV FTY FPFTY FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST UKE
NQ.

FUNDS PROVIDED
201A-15 201S-16 2016*17 2017*16 2018-19 2W-2P 2020-21 2021-22

i. Total Gas Revenues S 676.027 S 572.347 S 603,911 S 605.991 S 615.370 S 624,655 S 634.143 $ 844.433 1.
2. Ottior Ooeratina Revenues 21.220 18.890 21.205 21.022 21.250 21,475 21.701 21.940 2.
3 Tola) Operating Revenues 697,247 591.237 625.H6 627,013 636.620 646,130 655,844 666.373 3
A Other Income Inez / (Decr.t Restricted Funes 10.835 1.416 1.235 1,707 1.726 1,746 2.067 1.786 4.
5 Cfly Grant - - - - 5
6 AFUDC (Interest) 781 1.120 1.136 920 985 964 997 1.030 6.

TOTAL FUNDS PROVIDED 708.863 593.773 627.487 629.640 639.331 646.840 658,908 669.189 7,

FUNDS APPLIED
6 Fuel Costs 252.169 146,524 176.741 184.970 191.481 197.818 204,528 211,914 8
9 Othof Operating Costs 354,357 370,433 383.976 366.557 365.619 371,929 358.928 361,335 9

10. Total Operating Expenses 606.526 516.957 560.717 554.527 557,100 569,747 563,456 573,249 10
11 Less Non-Cash Expenses 74,535 89.059 92.630 78.214 68,463 69.770 55.503 55,924 11.
12 TOTAL FUNDS APPLIED 531,991 427.898 468.087 478,313 488,637 499.977 507,953 517,325 12.

13. Funds Available lo Cover Debt Service 176,872 165.875 159,400 1S3.327 150,894 148,863 150,955 151.864 13.

14. 1975 Ordinance Bonds Debt Service 26.904 . - . 14.
15. Debt Service Coverage 1975 Bonds 6.57 - • • - 15.

16. Net Available after Pnor Debt Service 149.966 185,875 159,400 153,327 150,894 148,863 150.955 151,864 16
17 Equipment Leasing Debt Service - 17
18. Net Available alter Pnoi Capital Leases 149.966 165,875 159,400 153.327 150.694 148,863 150.955 151.864 18.

19. t998 Ordinance Bonds Debt Service 70,139 77,867 66,868 101.720 95,276 97,858 95459 106.342 19.
20. 1999 Ordinance Subordinate Bonds Debt Service • (TXCPt - - . - 20
21. Total 1998 Ordinance Debt Service 70,139 77,867 66,868 101.720 95.276 97,858 95.459 106.342 21.

22 Debt Service Coverage 1996 Bonds 2.14 2.13 2.38 1.51 1.58 1.52 1.58 1.43 22

23 Net Available after 1998 Debt Service 79,829 68.008 92.532 51.607 55,418 51.005 55.496 45.522 23.

24. Aggregate Debt Service 97.043 77.867 66,668 101.720 95.276 97,658 95.459 106,342 24
25 Debt Service Coverage (Combined hens) 1 82 2 13 2.38 1.51 1.56 1.52 1 58 1.43 25
26 Debt Service Coverage (Combined bens v.itn $18.0 City Fee) 1.64 1.90 2.11 1.33 1.39 1.34 1.39 1.26 26



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS 
BALANCE SHEET 

(Dollars in Thousands)

Present Rates
JFG - 1
Page 4

LINE ACTUAL HTY FTY FPFTY FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST LINE
NO. 8/31/15 8/31/16 8/31/17 8/31/18 8/31/19 8/31/20 8/31/21 8/31/22 NO.

ASSETS
1. Utility Plant Net 1,232.370 1.284.810 1.368.600 1.427.014 1,490,206 1.549.111 1.610.101 1,673,270 1
2. Sinking Fund Reserve 90.141 66.652 105.196 106.253 107,320 120,248 121.456 122,676 2.
3. Capital Improvement Fund • 113.603 61.864 4.742 117.435 60.431 1.295 3

Workers' Compensation Fund
4. & Health Insurance Escrow 5,820 2.603 2,610 2,616 2.629 2,642 2.662 2.682 4.
5. Cash 114,327 91.743 105.800 47.439 (10.641) (95,477) (164.535) (252.555) 5.

Accounts Receivable:
6. Gas 182,433 142.435 136,100 133.168 129.686 126,572 122.911 119,664 6.
7. Other 1.250 2.046 1.500 1.525 1.550 1,575 1,600 1.625 7.
8. Accrued Gas Revenues 5.199 3.368 5.041 5.356 5.460 5,543 5,662 5.771 S.
9. Reserve for Uncollectible (102.029) (74.286) (71.890) (70.484) (68,805) (67,813) (66,338) (64.880) 9.

to. Total Accounts Receivable: 86.853 73.563 70.751 69,565 67,891 65,877 63.835 62.180 10.
11. Materials & Supplies 50.908 47.891 47,005 49,220 50.734 52,002 53.509 54.872 11.
12. Other Current Assets 460 1.642 455 459 463 467 471 475 12.
13. Deferred Debits 13,135 29.376 4,782 4,987 4.489 4.464 4.348 4.311 13.
14. Unamortized Bond Issuance Expense 3.473 512 393 341 303 270 241 215 14.
15. Unamortized Loss on Reacquired Debt 30,953 53.946 47.865 42.199 36.899 32.005 27.515 23.443 15.
16. Deferred Environmental 29.609 28.425 28.767 28,767 26.722 25.026 24.099 23.102 16.
17. Deferred Pension Outflows 78,129 88.043 41.908 13,952 - 17.
18. Other Assets 35.503 24.357 39,720 40.604 42.007 43.378 44.799 46.216 18.
19. TOTAL ASSETS T77TU8T 1.813 563 1,37>455 1.323,564 1,917,448 -------T545W 1762 J &2 19.

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
20. City Equity 277.984 288.038 30.427 40,931 60.265 74.378 102.747 133,957 20.
21. Revenue Bonds 915.175 837.830 1.073.041 1,021,208 973,460 1,090,557 1.046.473 988.724 21.

TECA Accretions -

22. Unamortized Discount (787) (110) (875) (825) (778) (732) (686) (641) 22.
23. Unamortized Premium 43.360 88.703 78.667 69,303 60.595 52.623 45,389 38,938 23.
24. Long Term Debt 957.748 926.423 1.150.833 1.089,686 1,033,277 1,142.448 1,091,176 1,027,021 24.
25. Notes Payable 30.000 71,000 - • - . _ 25.
26. Accounts Payable 56.027 55,870 56,084 57.221 57,434 56.011 56,216 56,144 26.
27. Customer Deposits 2.858 3,308 3,000 2.870 2.747 2.630 2,519 2,413 27.
26. Other Current Liabilities 6.196 7.792 4.930 4,932 4,936 4,941 4.946 4.922 28.
29. Pension Liability 239.869 296.093 291.253 285.870 280.051 274.416 267.534 260.380 29.
30. Deferred Credits 7.895 5.999 2.091 4.497 2,791 2.018 2,084 2.080 30
31. Deferred Pension inflows 11.653 - - - 2,813 11.120 12,290 12,302 31.
32. Accrued Interest 6.709 2.808 15.564 14.839 14,117 17.903 17,129 16.303 32.
33. Accrued Taxes & Wages 3,342 3.609 5.975 4.100 4.631 5.170 5.696 6.228 33.
34. Accrued Distribution to City 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3,000 3.000 3.000 3.000 34.
35. Other Liabilities 168.400 149.623 414,298 387,334 357,502 323.413 283,595 237.432 35.
36. TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 1.771.681 1.813.563 1.977,455 rss&sso 1,823,564 1.917.448 T.b4$,§32 1^7(32 182 36.

CAPITALIZATION
37. Total Capitalization 1,235.732 1.214.461 1,181,260 1,130,617 1.093.542 1.216.826 1,193,923 1,160.978 37.
38. Total Long Term Debt 957.748 926.423 1,150.833 1,069,686 1,033.277 1.142,448 1.091.176 1.027.021 38.
39. Debt to Equity Ratio 77.50% 76.28% 97.42% 96.36% 94.49% 93.89% 91.39% 88.46% 39.
40. Capitalization Ratio 3.45 3.22 37.82 26.62 17.15 15.36 10.62 7.67 40.
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STATEMENT OF INCOME

(Dollars in Thousands)

I INF ACTUAL HTY FTY FPFPf FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST UHE
NO.

OPERATING REVENUES
2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 3M0-21 2021-22 U&

1. Non-Healing S 30.753 S 21,873 S 26.425 S 26,230 $ 25,378 S 24.494 S 23.651 5 22,873 1.
2 Gas Transport Service 39.962 38,550 45,674 44,614 46.222 47.594 48,853 50,055 2
3. Heating 618.164 472,275 524.234 534,832 543.666 552,484 561.520 571.396 3
4 Revenue Enhancement / Cost Reduction - 70,000 70.000 70,000 70.000 70.000 4

5. Weather Normalization Adjustment (10.747) 41,479 5.905 - 5.
6. Unbilled Adjustment (2.1051 (1.830) 1.673 315 104 83 119 109 6
7. Total Gas Revenues 676,027 572.347 603.911 675,991 685.370 694,655 704,143 714.433 7.
e. Appliance Repair & Other Revenues 8.727 7,962 8,182 8.265 8,347 8,431 8.515 8.601 8
9. Other Operating Revenues 12.493 10.928 13,023 12,757 12,903 13.044 13.186 13.339 9.

10 Total Other Operating Revenues 21.220 18.890 21.205 21,022 21.250 21,475 21.701 21.940 10.
11 Total Operating Revenues 697.247 591,237 625.116 697.013 706.620 716,130 725.844 736.373 11.

OPERATING EXPENSES
12. Natural Gas 252.158 146.515 176.731 184.960 191.471 197.808 204.518 211.904 12.
13. Other Raw Matenal 11 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 13
14. Sub-Total Fuel 252,169 146,524 176,741 184,970 191,481 197.818 204.528 211,914 14

15 CONTRIBUTION MARGINS 445,078 444,713 448,376 512,043 515,139 518.312 521,318 624,459 IS

16 Gas Processing 18,160 17,948 17,666 17,521 17.837 18.216 18.457 18,857 16.
17 Field Services 36 874 36,276 39,369 40.340 41.299 42.096 42.611 43.456 17.
18 Distribution 38,629 37,173 41,690 42.562 43.528 44.356 44.925 45.824 18
19. Collection 3,457 3.341 4,354 4.420 4,519 4.609 4,651 4,695 19.
20. Customer Service 12,262 12,432 13.503 13,807 14.126 14,408 14,627 14.919 20
21 Account Managemem 7,735 7,571 8,399 8,487 8.671 8.844 8,977 9,157 21.
22. Bad Debt Expense 34,833 27,133 30,654 30,073 30.784 31.524 31.984 31.967 22
23 Marketing 6.956 3,671 4,355 4.439 4.538 4.625 4,694 4.785 23
24 Administrative & General 60.253 67.139 69.025 66,334 66,160 67.162 67,518 68,595 24
25. Health insurance 51.051 53,370 58.305 30.811 33.641 36.627 39.880 43,424 25
26. Environmental - - 2.045 1.696 927 997 26.
27. Capitalized Fringe Benefits (8.850) (10,077) (11.537) (11.620) (12,238) (12.937) (13,744) (14,613) 27
28. Capitalized Administrative Charges (9.097) (10,778) (15.791) (12.945) (13,738) (13.409) (14.032) (15,579) 28.
29. Pensions 43,748 62.336 65.022 51.600 40.308 39.678 22.691 20,383 29.
30. Taxes 7.823 7,521 6,232 8.437 8,647 8.821 8,997 9,177 30
31. Other Post Employment Benefits 6.726 9.929 6.632 31.028 29 663 26.023 26,045 23.683 31.
32. Cost / Labor Savings - (2.073) - - - 32
33 Sub-Total Other Operating & Maintenance 310,570 324.985 337,805 325,494 319790 324.341 309,208 309,727 33
34. Depreciation 46474 47.894 48,842 50.596 52,436 54.244 56,019 57.027 34
35. Cost of Removal 2.897 3.785 4,100 4.100 4.100 4.100 4.100 4.100 35
36. To Clearing Accounts (5.584) (6.231) (6.771) (7.516) (7.562) L7-5T?). (7,219) (7.186) 36
37 Net Depredation 43.787 45.448 46.171 47.180 48.974 50.765 52,900 54.741 37
38 Sub-Total Other Operating Expenses 354.357 370,433 383 976 372.674 368.764 375.106 362.108 364.468 38.

39, TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 606.526 516,957 560.717 557.644 560.245 572.924 566.636 576.382 39
40. OPERATING INCOME 90.721 74,280 64.399 139.369 146,375 143,206 159.208 159,991 40
41 Interest Gain / (Loss) and Other Income 3.784 1,393 2.898 3,031 2,684 2.879 3.291 2.890 41
42 INCOME BEFORE INTEREST 94.505 75,673 67,297 142.400 149,059 146.085 162.499 162,881 42.

INTEREST
43 Long-Term Debt 45756 40.295 44,834 49.160 46,807 48.738 50,601 47.766 43
44. Other 7.448 3,966 (4,059) (6.693) (6.252) (5.519) (4,784) (4.004) 44
45. AFUOC (781) (1.120) (1,136) (920) (985) (964) (997) (1.030) 45.
46. Loss From Extinguishment of Debt 4.100 4.478 6,081 5.666 5.300 4.894 4.490 4.072 46
47. Total Interest 58.523 47.619 45,720 47.013 44.870 47.149 49.310 46.804 47.
48 NET INCOME 37.982 28.054 21.577 95.387 104.189 98.938 113.189 115.077 48
49 City Payment 18.000 18.000 18,000 18.000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18.000 49.
50. NET EARNINGS $ 19,982 S 10.054 5 3.577 $ 77,387 S 86.189 S 80.936 5 95.199 S 98.077 50
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS PaSe 2

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Dollars In Thousands)

UNg ACTUAL HTY FTY FPFTY FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST Utti
N&

SOURCES
20K-15 2015-16 2018.19 CT1MQ 2Q2Q-21 2021-22 NO.

1 Net Income $ 37.982 J 28.054 S 21.577 5 95,387 S 104,189 S 98.936 $ H3.189 S 116.077 1
2 Deprecation S Amortization 53.258 50.371 45.049 47,000 49.114 51.246 53,350 $5,518 2
3 Earnings on Restricted Funds Withdrawal/(No Withdrawal 7.051 23 (1.663) (1.3241 <9581 (1,133) (1.224) <1.1041 3
4. Proceeds from Bond Refunding to Pay Cost of Issuance 2.700 - 500 4
5. increased/{Decreasedi Other Assets/UaB.lrties 23.696 28.209 29.078 (5.274) (16.246) (31.09D (46.024) (53.725) 5
6. Available From Operations 121.967 106.657 96.741 135,789 134.099 118,458 119,291 116.766 6

7 Drawdown of Bond Proceeds 65.000 52.000 57.000 55,000 57,000 59.000 7
S Release of Resinned Fund Assel 8.562 6,673 8
9. Release of Bond Proceeds to Pay T emporary Financing • 71,000 5.

10. Temporary Financing 30.000 41,000 - - - 10
11 TOTAL SOURCES 160.549 154.330 232.741 187,789 191.099 173.458 176.291 175,766 11

USES
12 Not Construction EnpenrMures 85.499 100,333 132,632 109,010 115.628 113.149 117,009 120.996 12
13 Funded Debt Reduction: 13,503 - 13
14 Revenue Bonds 62,190 53.825 34,790 51.834 47,747 62.905 44.084 57,749 14
15. Temporary Financing Repayment - 71.000 15

16 Distribution of Earning* 18.000 18.000 18,000 18.000 18,000 18.000 18,000 18.000 16
Additions To (Reductions of)

17 Non-Cash Working Capital (27.236) 4.756 (37.736) 188 886 (3.078) (062) (76)

18. Cash Needs 151,956 176.914 218,684 179,032 182.261 190.976 178.231 196.669 18.
19. Cash Surplus (Shortfall) 8.593 (22.584) 14.057 8,757 8.838 (17.518) 0.940) (20.903) 19.
20 TOTAL USES 160.549 154.330 232.741 187,789 191.099 173.458 176.291 175.766 20.

21 Cash • Beginning ct Ponod 105,734 114.327 91,743 105,600 114,557 123.395 105.877 103,937 21
22 Cash • Surplus (Shortfall) 8.593 (22.584) 14,057 8.757 8638 (17.510) (1.940) (20.903) 22
23 ENDING CASH S 114,327 S 91.743 105.800 5 114.557 5 123,395 S 105.877 5 103.937 S 83.035 23

24 Outstanding Commercial Paper 24.
25 Outstanding Commercial Paper - Capital 30.000 71.000 - - 25.
26. DSIC Revenue 13,764 26.253 32,541 30.579 30.895 31.214 31.518 31.846 26
27 internally Generated Funds 31,735 33.080 35,091 26.431 27.733 25.935 28491 30,150 27
28 TOTAL IGF ♦ Incremental OStC Revenue 45.499 59.333 67.632 57.010 58.628 58.149 60.009 61.996 28
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DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE 
(Dollars In Thousands)

UNE ACTUAL HTY FTY FPFTY FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST UNE

FUNDS PROVIDED
ZfiJillg 2015*16 2016*17 2017*18 2019-19 2019-20 2020.21 2021-22 HQ,

1 Total Gas Revenues 5 676.027 S 572,347 5 603.911 S 675.991 S 685.370 $ 694.655 S 704.143 $ 714,433 i
2. Oiher Operating Revenues 21.220 18.690 21.205 21.022 21.250 21.475 21.701 21.940 2
3 Toiol Operating Revenues 657.247 591.237 625.116 697.013 706.620 716.130 725.844 738.373 3.
d Other Income Incr. 1 (Deer.) Restricted Funds 10,835 1,416 1.235 1,707 1,726 1.746 2.067 1.786 4.
5. City Grant • 5.
6. AFUDC {Interest) 781 1.120 1.136 920 985 964 997 1.030 6.
7 TOTAL FUNDS PROVIDED 708.663 593,773 627,487 699.640 709,331 718.840 728.908 739.189 7.

FUNDS APPLIED
6. Fuel Costs 252.169 146,524 176.741 164.970 191.481 197,818 204,528 211,914 8
9. Other Operating Costs 354.357 370.433 383.976 372.674 368.784 375.106 362,108 364.468 9

10. Total Operating Expenses 606.526 516.957 560.717 557,644 560.245 572.924 566.636 576.382 10.
11. Less: Non-Cash Expenses 74.535 89.058 92.630 78,214 66.463 69.770 55.503 55.924 11
12. TOTAL FUNDS APPLIED 531,991 427,898 468.087 479,430 491,782 503.154 511.133 520,458 12.

13 Funds Available to Cover Debt Service 176.872 165.875 159.400 220.210 217.549 215.686 217.775 218,731 13.

14. 1975 Ordinance Bonds Deb! Service 26.904 . 14,
15 Debt Service Coverage 1975 Bonds 6.87 • 15.

16 Net Available after Prior Debt Service 149.968 165.875 159.400 220.210 217.549 215.686 217.775 218,731 16.
17 Equipment Leasing Debt Service - . 17
18. Net Avertable after Poor Capita! Leases 149.968 165.875 159,400 220,210 217.549 215.686 217.775 218.731 18.

19. 1998 Ordinance Bonos Debt Service 70.139 77,867 66.888 101.720 95.276 97,858 95.4 59 106.342 19
20 1999 Ordinance Subordinate Bonds Debt Service - (TXCF - 20

Total 1998 Ordinance Debt Service 70.139 77,867 66.868 101,720 95.275 97.858 95.459 106.342 21

22 Debt Service Coverage 1698 Bonds 2.1* 2.13 2.38 2.16 2.28 2.20 2.28 2.06 22.

23 Net Available after 1998 Debt Service 79,829 88.006 92.532 118.490 122.273 117.828 122.316 112.309 23.

24. Aggregate Debl Service 97.043 77,667 66.668 101.720 95.278 97.858 95.459 106.342 24
25. Debt Service Coverage {Combined liens) 1.82 2.13 2.38 2.16 2 28 2 20 2 28 2.06 25.
26. Debt Service Coverage {Combined liens with $16.0 City F 1.64 1.90 2.11 1.99 2.09 2.02 2.09 1.89 26.
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BALANCE SHEET 

(Dollars in Thousands)

LINE ACTUAL HTY FTY FPFTY FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST UNE
NO. 8/31/15 8/31/16 8/31/17 8/31/18 8/31/19 8/31/20 ft/31/21 8/31/22 NO.

ASSETS
1. Utility Rant Net 1,232.370 1.284.810 1,368.600 1.427.014 1.490.206 1.549.111 1.610.101 1,673.270 1.
2. Sinking Fund Reserve 90,141 86.652 105,196 106.253 107.320 120.248 121,456 122,676 2.
3. Capital Improvement Fund 113,603 61.864 4.742 117,435 60.431 1,295 3.

Workers' Compensation Fund
4. & Health Insurance Escrow 5.820 2.603 2,610 2,616 2.629 2.642 2.662 2.682 4.
5. Cash 114.327 91.743 105.800 114.557 123.395 105.877 103.937 83.035 5.

Accounts Receivable:
6. Gas 182.433 142.435 136,100 132.838 128.969 125.516 121.461 117.870 6.
7. Other 1,250 2.046 1.500 1.525 1.550 1.575 1,600 1.625 7.
B. Accrued Gas Revenues 5,199 3.368 5,041 5.356 5.460 5.543 5,662 5.771 8.
9. Reserve (or Uncollectible (102.029) (74,286) (71.890) (70.380) (68.586) (67.550) (65,979) (64,428) 9.

10. Total Accounts Receivable: 66.853 73,563 70.751 69.330 67,393 65.084 62,744 60.838 10.
11. Materials & Supplies 50,908 47,891 47,005 49.220 50.734 52.002 53,509 54,872 11.
12. Other Current Assets 460 1.642 455 459 463 467 471 475 12.
13. Deferred Debits 13.135 29.376 4,782 4.987 4.489 4.464 4,348 4,311 13.
14. Unamortized Bond Issuance Expense 3.473 512 393 341 303 270 241 215 14.
15. Unamortized Loss on Reacquired Debl 30.953 53.946 47,865 42.199 36.899 32.005 27,515 23,443 15.
16. Deferred Environmental 29.609 28.425 28.767 28.767 28.722 25.026 24,099 23,102 16.
17. Deferred Pension Outflows 78,129 88,043 41.908 13.952 • 17.
18. Other Assets 35.503 24.357 39.720 40.604 42.007 43.378 44.799 46.216 18.
19. TOTAL ASSETS 1.771.681 1.813.563 1.S77.455 1.962,163 1,957.302 2.118.009 2.116 313 ------- 2.096.430 19.

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
20. City Equity 277.984 288,038 30.427 107.814 194.003 274.939 370,128 468,205 20.
21 Revenue Bonds 915.175 837,830 1.073.041 1,021.208 973.460 1,090.557 1,046.473 988.724 21.

TECA Accretions -
22. Unamorlized Discount (787) (110) (875) (825) (778) (732) (686) (641) 22.
23. Unamortized Premium 43.360 88.703 78.667 69,303 60.595 52.623 45,389 38.938 23.
24. Long Term Debl 957.748 926,423 1.150.833 1.089.686 1.033.277 1.142,448 1,091.176 1.027.021 24.
25. Notes Payable 30,000 71.000 - - - 25.
26. Accounts Payable 56.027 55.870 56,084 57,221 57.434 56,011 56,216 56.144 26.
27. Customer Deposits 2.858 3,308 3.000 2.870 2.747 2.630 2.519 2.413 27
28. Other Current Liabilities 6.196 7,792 4.930 4.932 4,936 4,941 4.946 4,922 28.
29. Pension Liability 239.869 296.093 291,253 285.870 280,051 274.416 267.534 260.380 29,
30. Deferred Credits 7,895 5,999 2,091 4.497 2.791 2.018 2.084 2,080 30.
31. Deferred Pension Inflows 11.653 • 2,813 11.120 12.290 12,302 31.
32. Accrued intoresl 6,709 2,808 15.564 14.839 14.117 17,903 17.129 16,303 32,
33. Accrued Taxes & Wages 3,342 3,609 5.975 4,100 4.631 5.170 5.696 6,228 33
34. Accrued Distribution to City 3.000 3,000 3.000 3,000 3.000 3,000 3.000 3,000 34
35. Other Liabilities 168.400 149,623 414,298 387.334 357.502 323.413 283.595 237,432 35.
36. TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 1.771.681 1.813.563 1.977,455 rsBrrar 1,957.302 ?JW5TT~ 2.096.430 36

CAPITALIZATION
37. Total Capitalization 1.235.732 1,214.461 1.181.260 1,197.500 1,227,280 1.417,387 1.461,304 1,495,226 37.
38. Total Long Term Debt 957.748 926.423 1.150,833 1,089.686 1,033.277 1.142,448 1.091,176 1.027.021 38.
39. Debt to Equity Ratio 77.50% 76.28% 97.42% 91.00% 84.19% 60.60% 74.67% 68.69% 39.
40 Capitalization Ratio 3.45 3.22 37.82 10.11 5,33 4.16 2.95 2.19 40.
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New Sale: Moody's revises PGW's outlook to positive; Assigns 

Now issue Baa11° $220 mil Gas Works Rev. Refunding Bds., 14th Series

Moody's Investors Service has revised the outlook to positive from stable and assigned a Baal 

rating to the Philadelphia Gas Works (PGW) $??0 million Gas Works Revenue Refunding 

Bonds, Fourteenth Series (1998 General Ordinance). Concurrently, Moody's has affirmed the 

Baal rating on approximately $903 million of PGWs pre-refunding 1998 Ordinance bonds 

outstanding.
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Summary Rating Rationale
Ihe change in outlook to positive from stable recognizes PGWs strengthened financial 

position that is expected to continue owing to sound operational and cost management, 

a solid liquidity position and credit supportive rate regulation that improves cost recovery, 

evidenced by the further increase in the distribution system improvement charge (DSIC) that 

allows for greater cash funding of ongoing capital expenditures

PGWs rating recognizes the utility's credit supportive regulatory environment that has 

increased the utility's asset base and supported an acceleration to its main replacement 

program; a stable financial position that is expected to be maintained; a sizeable low income 

and stagnant customer base; and the utility's position as a supplier of last resort, which 

yields consistently above average retail rates. The rating also incorporates the utility’s sound 

management that has enhanced PGWs operating efficiencies resulting in recurring cost 

savings. The rating further considers PGW's outstanding indebtedness which has declined 

in recent years but is forecast to rise given the issuance of new debt to finance capital 

improvements through 2020. The moderately higher leverage profile is manageable given 

about $50 million of annual principal amortization, a declining debt service repayment 

schedule, and the fact that assets will be added to the balance sheet from the capital 

improvement program.

PGW’s state rate regulation constrains its cost recovery framework in comparison to the 

majority of municipally owned gas utilities in the US, which benefit from local unregulated 

rate setting. Thus, the rating heavily factors the constiuctive relationship PGW has with the 

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (PUC) and Ihe fact that the PUC must approve rates 

sufficient for PGW to satisfy its indenture required 1.5 limes debt service coverage ratio 

(DSCR) rate covenant.
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MOODY'S INVfSrORS StRVICt U.S: PUBLIC fINANCE

Rating Outlook
The positive outlook reflects Moody’s view that PCWs sound fiscal management and credit supportive regulatory environment should 

continue to result in stable financial metrics and improved operations despite a forecast increase in leverage related to ongoing capital 

expenditures as well as the execution of the Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) expansion project.

Factors that Could Lead to an Upgrade

» Prudent management of the potential LNG expansion project

j> PCWs financial metrics are maintained at or near current levels

Factors that Could Lead to a Downgrade

» financial metrics narrow due to higher than expected costs and/or weaker revenue collections 

» A less credit supportive rate regulatory environment

» Increased leverage without sufficient cost recovery or a material decline in hquidity

Credit Strengths

» Supportive rate regulatory environment and history of an effective working relationship with the state regulatory board and the 

City of Philadelphia (A2, stable)

» Strong 1.5 times rate covenant and The Public Utility Code requires the state regulatory board to establish rates that meet bona 

ordinance requirements

» Ongoing operating improvements contain costs and support PGWs recent financial improvement

s tow natural gas prices, strategic location of its LNG assets, and significant storage capacity allow for effective gas cost 

management and has already yielded new revenues from off-system LNG sales since 2013

» Aggressive strategy for collections of receivables has yielded strong and stable collection rates above 95%, except for a decline to 

91.9% in FY 2013, reportedly due to timing differences in the calculation

i> The City can only increase the $18 million City payment by 10% or $1.8 million with PUC approval

Credit Challenges

» Sizable low income residential population contributes to delinquencies that may grow if federal assistance programs are cut and 

these residents face higher monthly bills

» Customer base remains stagnant, despite the city’s expanding economy and declining unemployment rate 

» Above average retail rates compared to peers

» High system leverage, while declining, is expected to remain above average, despite increased cash funded capital expenditures

» Maintaining sufficient available liquidity to balance exposures to gas prices, variable rate debt liquidity risks, high receivable levels 

and other general liquidity needs
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MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S: PUBLIC FINANCE

Key Indicators

uhitxtl
Key Financial Metrics for Philadelphia Gas Works

2012 2013 2014 2015
Operating Revenues ($’000) 644,583 693,471 759,136 697,247
Debt Outstanding ($'000) 1,093,440 1.065,720 1,015,920 915,175

Debt to Operating Revenue (x) 1.70 1.S4 1.34 1.31

Days Cash on Hand S4 69 65 77
Adjusted Days Liquidity on Hand (hd Bank lines) 97 110 13B 138

Moody's Net Revenue Total Debt Service Coverage Rath) (x) 1.2S 1.89 1.55 1.51
Bond Ordinance Total Debt Service Coverage Ratio (x) 1.7S 2.90 2.11 2.14

Seme PCWAudced nrjrxhl Sutemtnts ind Hoody'i tmausn Servkt

Recent Developments
In January 2016, me PUC approved PCWs request to increase the Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC) to 7.5% from 

5% of the non-gas component of a customer's bill This additional $11 million enables PGW to further accelerate its long-term cast 

iron main replacement program while fully recovering about $33 million annually through the DSIC In addition to the DSIC increase, 

the PUC issued an order in July 2016 to allow PGW to recover past under collections of the DSIC Over a period of two years starting 

in October 2016. The recoverable amount, anticipated to be $11.4 million total, will also help fund the main replacement program.

The PUC also approved continuation of the OPEB surcharge beyond 2015 and PGW will continue to fund their OPEB obligation $18.5 

million annually.

Tliere is no material change regarding PGW's expansion plan to increase its liquefaction capacity at one of its LNG plants in order to 

improve gas supply cost management while also enhancing PGW's ability to sell excess LNG into the local market. PGW commissioned 

a study by Pace Global to assess the potential regional LNG market demand for the expanded capacity at the Richmond LNG plant 

The current LNG liquefaction facilities were put into service in 2005 to replace the older, and more energy intensive, liquefaction 

plant that was then at the end of its useful life The current Richmond plant was originally planned as a two phase project with the 

second phase intended to increase PGWs liquefaction capacity, this was not completed during the original construction. The current 

construction approach and timing of the potential expansion has yet to be finalized.

The potential addition of a new modern liquefier with 21,000 Mcf per day of capacity will double PGW’s liquefying capacity, allowing 

the utility to take full advantage of its 4 Bcf storage capacity that is only about 50% utilized currently. The potential new liquefier also 

provides redundancy with the 2005 vintage existing liquefier, but uses more energy. The existing liquefier technology utilizes rapid 

pressure reduction to cool down the gas, thus limiting the energy usage during the liquefaction process compared to the new liquefier 

that requires more energy to cool down the gas.

PGW is forecast to issue new debt to fund this potential liquefaction expansion along with other capital improvements over the next 

five years. Given the annual principal repayment of about $50 million a year and a declining debt service amortization schedule, 

the new debt is not expected to notably weaken coverage or leverage metrics. However, the new debt would reverse a multi-year 

deleveraging trend. Management reports it is unlikely to move forward with the expansion unless a few long-term contracts are signed 

to ensure new revenues are generated to at least cover the debt service on the debt issued to fund the expansion. Further, there are 

many layers of approval required from all of PGW’s multiple oversight boards, including Uie City Council that has 7 new members 

before PGW can issue debt to finance the LNG expansion plan.

PGW signed a new five year collective bargaining agreement (CBA) on June 17,2015. effective May 15,2015. The new contract includes 

manageable wage increases between 2.0% to 2.5% annually. A key modification to the CBA allows PGW to hire outside contractors 

to perform work including work to replace the steel and cast iron mains. Outside contractors may also be used to perform main 

abandonment projects regulated by the PUC.

BE
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Detailed Rating Considerations
{(e-venue Generating
PGW serves approximately 500,000 customers in [lie Philadelphia area by supplying, storing and transporting natural gas As the 

largest municipally owned regulated gas distribution utility in the US, PGW has a distribution monopoly, yet their residents have the 

ability to choose their gas supplier. If customers use another gas supplier, PGW is paid a transportation fee for the use of its lines. PGW 

is also the regional supplier of last resort.

Per moodyseconomy.com, Philadelphia’s economy is performing well. Job growth is now outpacing the national average with 

employment up in most sectors. Income growth has improved and spurred spending as the labor market tightens and the single and 

multifamily housing market is its strongest since the mid ?000s.

Favorably, low natural gas prices have helped keep bills relatively low and the weather normalization adjustment (WNA) mechanism 

has also helped keep margins stable. The weather normalization adjustment is key to the utility's financial stability. While the WNA 

tempers PGWs revenue upside during cold periods, it also limits the downside risk during warm years. For example, the 2012 year 

was reportedly the warmest year on record and the WNA added $45 million of revenues in 2012 that helped mitigate the toss of $121 

million of top line revenue due to the notably lower demand. Conversely, in the colder 2014 year, the WNA resulted in a refund to 

customers of $12.3 million. We view the WNA as a favorable driver of credit stability.

In addition to the WNA, PGWs current rate structure benefits from historic regulatory support that has provided the utility with a 

demand side management (DSM) program, the DSIC, and an Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) rate to fund the outstanding 

OPEB liability. The combination of these adjustment mechanisms along with prudent fiscal management is forecast to enable the 

utility to avoid another base rate increase until fiscal 2018. This credit supportive rate regulatory history and PGWs current rate 

structure is considered to be satisfactory and right sized for full cost recovery and the generation of adequate excess cash flow to fund 

capital reinvestment.

The PUC support of PGW grew post 2000 when the PUC and PGW settled an appeal and the PUC adopted a new provision when 

setting PGWs rates. The provision requires the PUC to allow PGW to charge sufficient rates to satisfy its bond covenants, including the 

1.5 times debt service coverage ratio rate covenant. Moody's calculation of net revenue debt service coverage treats the $18 million 

annual payment to the city as an operating expense, which results in a lower DSCR than the bond ordinance calculation.

Operational and financial Pfrionnanre
FY 2015 operating revenues were down 8% over f Y 2014 as low gas prices coupled with a mocest winter which lowered demand drove 

revenue down. These factors also lead to a decrease in operating expenses particularly for natural gas purchases leaving net revenues 

before debt service in line with previous years, albeit slightly below 2014. for this reason Moody's calculated total net revenue debt 

service coverage on all PGW revenue bonds in 2015 of 1.51 times was marginally lower than the 1.55 times In 2014. Moody's DSCR 

includes the $18 million payment to the city as an operating expense, which lowers Moody's DSCR compared to the bond ordinance 

DSCR of 2.14 times for FY 2015.

PGWs forecast DSCR for FY 2016 (ending August 31) is likely to be in close to the DSCR for the last two years, but will improve in 2017 

given the advance retirement of debt service in 2016. Thereafter, DSCRs are forecast to be in the 1.5 to 16 times range or stronger 

following a forecast base rate increase in FY 2018.
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ExtttnW
Moody's calculated Debt Service Coverage Ratio, which includes PGW's payment to the dty as an operating expense, is expected to 
continue to be In the 1.5-V6 times range through FY 2017.
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LIQUIDITY
Days cash on hand increased to 77 days in FY 2015 from 65 days in FY 2014 as this improvement was driven by lower operating 

expenses from lower sales and a moderate winter as well as a modest increase in unrestricted cash. PGW also had $90 million of 

available commercial paper capacity backed by a letter of credit as of the end of FY 2015. This is forecast to decline to about S50 

million by the end FY 2016 as PGW draws on the program to partially fund capital spending, The commercial paper program is 

currently supported by letters of credit in the amount of $50 million from JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. (Aa2(cr). stable) and $70 million 

from PNC Bank, NA (A1(cr), siable). Moody's forecast for days liquidity on hand will likely remain in the 110 to ISO days range with 

direct cash liquidity remaining in the 70 lo 90 days range, depending on the amount of excess cash flow or commercial paper used to 

fund capital investments.

Debt and Gibe:' Lidbilhie-i
PGWs outstanding debt continued to decline and is at its lowest debt level in about two decades in FY 2015 despite still having 

relatively high leverage compared toother gas utilities. PGW's capital plan, covering IY 2017 to FY 2021, totals about $587 million with 

the majority (82% or $483 million) dedicated to the distribution system, which is primarily the cast iron main replacement program. 

About half of the current plan will be funded with debt white the balance will come from the DSIC and internally generated funds.

DEBT STRUCTURE

While PGW repays about $50 million in debt principal annually, new debt for capital improvements of about $270 million in FY 2017 

and $180 million in FY 2020 will increase the utility's debt levels back to FY 2011 levels PGW's debt service repayment schedule, post 

refunding, is dedining overall with final maturity ir FY 2040. this amortization profile provides PGW with the flexibility to layer in new 

debt service payments for new debt without notably raising annual debt service costs that would require a base rate increase. PGWs 

debt is primarily fixed rate with variable rate demand bonds accounting for about a quarter of the outstanding debt in recent years.

The current refunding fixes the interest rate on a portion of the variable Series fiB, 8C, 8D and 8E, of the 1998 Ordinance Bonds, which 

constitute most of PGW's variable rate debt, along with redudng the notional amount of the associated swap agreements. PGWs only 

other remaining variable debt, Series 5A-2 of the 1998 Ordinance Bonds, will remain unchanged and has approximately $30 million 

outstanding.
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lihii t i

PGW's current capital plan increases debt outstanding to historically higher levels 
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DEBT-RUATEO DERIVATIVES

PGW currently has one outstanding floating-to-fixed rate swap with JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A (Aa2(cr). stable) for a $2?5.5 million 

notional amount that synthetically fixes the variable interest rate on S225.S million of outstanding variable rate demand bonds. This 

amount will be reduced to match the amount of variable rate debt still outstanding post refunding Under the swap agreement, PGW 

pays JP Morgan semiannual fixed rate payments of 3.6745% and receives floating payments based on 70% of 1-month LIBOR. The 

mark-to-market value on the swap was a negative $50.6 million as of June 30.2016. PGW has no collateral posting requirement 

and the swap is insured by Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp {A2, stable), whose rating is considered under the swap's additional 

termination events should the insurer's rating fall below A2/A and PGW's rating would also have to fall below Baa2/BBB.

PENSIONS AND OPEB

The City of Philadelphia sponsors PGW’s single employer defined-benefit pension plan, the Philadelphia Gas Works Pension plan 

In December 2011, the City passed an ordinance to offer all new PGW employees a one-time option of entering into a deferred 

compensation plan with an employer contribution equal to 5.5% of applicable wages or the defined-benefit pension plan with an 

employee contribution of 6% of applicable wages. PGW’s defined-benefit pension funded ratio was decreased to about 68% In FY 

2015 from about 74% in FY 2014 due to the adoption of GASB 68 in 2015 that changed ihe underlying assumptions including a 30 

basis points reduction in the assumed discount rate and adjustments to life expectancies. The 68% funded status is also about even 

with the post-recession low seen in FY 2010. While PGW continues to pay its annual actuarial required contribution (ARC), the current 

funded ratio remains below pre-recession levels that averaged about 86%.

As of FY ?015 PGW’s OPtB funded ratio is line with the prior year at about 21% but is an improvement from zero five years prior as a 

result uf the PUC approved OPEB rate surcharge. We would expect this ratio to continue to annually improve given the PUCs approval 

to extend tire OPFB surcharge beyond 2015 which would correspondingly lower the annual OPEB costs to the utility but note than 

an increase in unfunded liabilities in 2015. PGW's OPEB plan includes healthcare and life insurance benefits in accordance with their 

retiree medical program.

Management ond Covernanr*:

PGW is municipat.y owned by the City of Philadelphia, but unlike other municipally owned utilities, PGWs rates are regulated by the 

state's PUC PGW has a monopoly over gas distribution in its 134 square mile service territory. PGW is responsible for the day-to- 

day operation, management and maintenance of the gas system, yet several other entities have oversight over PGW's operations, 

including budgetary and rate approval Ihe slate's PUC regulates PGWs rates, services and safety, while the seven member board 

of the Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation (PMFC) is the executive management and operational director of PGW.

The Philadelphia Gas Commission (PGC) is a five member oversigtit board who approves PGWs operating budget and some PFMC 

personnel, as well as reviewing tire capital budget, real estate transactions and gas supply contracts lor approval by the City Council 

The live member PGC board is made up of the City Controller, two mayoral appointees, and two city council appointees. The City
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Council enacts legislation to approve HOWs capital budget and gas suppiy contracts, as well as other material operating changes, real 

estate transactions and capital investments.

Legal Security
The 1998 Ordinance bonds are secured by net revenues of the system. There is a strong rate covenant and additional bonds test 

requiring net revenues to be 150% of annual debt service costs and a cash funded debt service reserve fund at maximum annual debt 

service. Ihe indentures requires PGW to operate and maintain the Gas Works System as long as any bonds or notes are outstanding, 

effectively restricting the sale of PGWs assets unless lire outstanding debt is paid in full.

Use of Proceeds
Bond proceeds will refund approximately $180 million fixed rate 7th Series Bonds, $3.3 million fixed rate 9th Series Bonds, $4 million 

fixed rate 8th Series A and about $63.5 million of the variable rate 8th Series Bonds. This will reduce PGWs variable rate exposure 

from about 28% of total debt as of the end of FY 2015 to about 22% as of the end of FY 2016, assuming the sale closes before 

the end of the fiscal year on August 31. The corresponding $63.5 million notional amount of the floating*to-fixed rate swap that 

synthetically fixes the interest rate on the 8th Series Bonds wilt be terminated. The letters of credit available to support a potential 

failed remarketing of the variable rale demand bonds will also be reduced by $63.5 million. PGW will also use about $14 million of 

cash on hand to advance redeem 2017 maturities in 2016, increasing the net present value savings of the transaction. The refunding is 

estimated to be about $220 million for an estimated net present value savings of 10.4% taken over the life of the debt Bond proceeds 

will also fund issuance costs and a debt service reserve fund.

Obligor Profile
PGW is a municipally owned regulated gas distribution utility that supplies and transports natural gas to 500,000 primarily residential 

customers within the City of Philadelphia. PGW has a distribution monopoly in the Gty and serves as the supplier of last resort given 

there is gas supplier choice in Pennsylvania. If customers use another gas supplier, PGW is paid a transportation fee for the use of 

its lines. PGWs gas distribution system consists of approximately 3,032 miles of gas mains. 475,010 service lines, and 202 regulato'’ 

stations. Approximately 48% (by length) of the gas mains are cast iron, 33% are steel, 4% are ductile iron and 15% arc plastic. Of the 

steel lines, 50% are wrapped, coated and cathodically protected. About 29% of the service lines are steel and 71% are plastic. PGW 

also operates two LNG facilities for liquefaction, storage, and regasification of natural gas, which is used during the winter in addition 

to the utility's firm take from two interstate pipelines. The utility has laddered firm gas supply contracts and has a relatively balanced 

gas supply mix with half coming from the Spectra pipeline and the other half coming from the Transco-Williams pipeline. The proposed 

expansion to the LNG facility should further enable PGW to manage fluctuations in demand due to weather while also providing a 

physical hedge against price fluctuations.

Methodology
Ihe principal methodology used in this rating was US Municipal Utility Revenue Debt published in December 2014. Please see the 

Ratings Methodologies page on www.moodys com lor a copy of this methodology.

Ratings

ixhibit 4

PhiUdelphio (City of) PA Gas V.'oi ks
Issue Ratine
Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds, fourteenth 
Series (1998 General Ordinance)

Baal

Rating Type Undertying LT
Sate Amount $220,485,000

Expected Sale Date 08/18/2016
Rating Description Revenue: Government 

Enterprise
Sotwc Moody't Imtiton Strike
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Rating Action: Moody's revises PGW's outlook to positive; Assigns Baal to 
$220 mil Gas Works Rev. Refunding Bds., 14th Series

Global Credit Research • 08 Aug 2016

New York, August 08,2016 - Issue: Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds, Fourteenth Series (1998 General 
Ordinance); Rating: Baal; Rating Type: Underlying LT; Sale Amount: $220,485,000; Expected Sale Date: 
08/18/2016; Rating Description: Revenue: Government Enterprise;

Moody's Investors Service has revised the outlook to positive from stable and assigned a Baal rating to the 
Philadelphia Gas Work's (PGW) $220 million Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds, Fourteenth Series (1998 
General Ordinance). Concurrently, Moody's has affirmed the Baal rating on approximately $903 million of 
PGW’s pre-refunding 1998 Ordinance bonds outstanding.

Summary Rating Rationale

The change in outlook to positive from stable recognizes PGWs strengthened financial position that is 
expected to continue owing to sound operational and cost management, a solid liquidity position and credit 
supportive rate regulation that Improves cost recovery, evidenced by the further Increase in the distribution 
system improvement charge (DSIC) that allows for greater cash funding of ongoing capital expenditures.

PGWs rating recognizes the utility's credit supportive regulatory environment that has increased the utility's 
asset base and supported an acceleration to its main replacement program; a stable financial position that is 
expected to be maintained; a sizeable low income and stagnant customer base; and the utility's position as a 
supplier of last resort, which yields consistently above average retail rates. The rating also incorporates the 
utility's sound management that has enhanced PGWs operating efficiencies resulting in recurring cost 
savings. The rating further considers PGWs outstanding indebtedness which has declined In recent years but 
is forecast to rise given the issuance of new debt to finance capital improvements through 2020. The 
moderately higher leverage profile is manageable given about $50 million of annual principal amortization, a 
dedining debt service repayment schedule, and the fact that assets will be added to the balance sheet from the 
capital Improvement program.

PGWs state rate regulation constrains its cost recovery framework in comparison to the majority of municipally 
owned gas utilities in the US, which benefit from local unregulated rate setting. Thus, the rating heavily factors 
the constructive relationship PGW has with the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (PUC) and the fact that 
the PUC must approve rates sufficient for PGW to satisfy its indenture required 1.5 times debt service 
coverage ratio (DSCR) rale covenant.

Rating Outlook

The positive outlook reflects Mood/s view that PGWs sound fiscal management and credit supportive 
regulatory environment should continue to resuil in stable financial metrics and improved operations despite a 
forecas: increase in leverage related to ongoing capital expenditures as we!) as the execution of the Liquefied 
Natural Gas (LNG) expansion project.

Factors that Could Lead to an Upgrade

Prudent management of the potential LNG expansion project

PGWs financial metrics are maintained at or near current levels

Factors that Could Lead to a Downgrade

Financial metrics narrow due to higher than expected costs and/or weaker revenue collections 

A less credit supportive rate regulatory environment

Increased leverage without sufficient cost recovery or a material decline in liquidity
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Legal Security

The 1998 Ordinance hones are secured oy net revenues of the system. There is a strong rate covenant ana 
additional bonds test requiring net revenues to be 150% of annual debt service costs and a cash funded debt 
service reserve fund at maximum annual debt service. The indentures requires PGW to operate and maintain 
the Gas Works System as long as any bonds or notes are outstanding, effectively restricting the sale of PGWs 
assets unless the outstanding debt is paid in full.

Use of Proceeds

Bond proceeds will refund approximately $180 million fixed rate 7th Series Bonds. $3.3 million fixed rate 9th 
Series Bonds. $4 million fixed rate 8lh Series A and about $63.5 million of the variable rale 6th Series Bonds. 
This wiO reduce PGWs variable rale exposure from about 28% of total debt as of the end of FY 2015 to about 
22% as of the end of FY 2016, assuming the sale closes before the end of the fiscal year on August 31. The 
corresponding $63.5 million notional amount of the floating-to-fixed rate swap that synthetically fixes the 
interest rate on the 8lh Series Bonds will be terminated. The letters of credit available to support a potential 
failed remarketing of the variable rate demand bonds will also be reduced by $63.5 million. PGW will also use 
about $14 million of cash on hand to advance redeem 2017 maturities in 2016, Increasing the net present 
value savings of (he transaction. The refunding Is estimated to be about $220 million for an estimated net 
present value savings of 10.4% taken over the fife of the debt. Bond proceeds will also fund Issuance costs 
and a debt service reserve fund.

Obligor Profile

PGW is a municipally owned regulated gas distribution utility that supplies and transports natural gas to 
500,000 primarily residential customers within the City of Philadelphia. PGW has a distribution monopoly In the 
City and serves as the supplier of last resort given there Is gas supplier choice in Pennsylvania. If customers 
use another gas supplier, PGW is paid a transportation fee for the use of its lines. PGWs gas distribution 
system consists of approximately 3,032 miles of gas mains, 475,010 service lines, and 202 regulator stations. 
Approximately 48% (by length) of the gas mains are cast Iron, 33% are steel, 4% are ductile iron and 15% are 
plastic, Of the sleel lines, 50% are wrapped, coated and cathodicatly protected. About 29% of the service lines 
are steel and 71% are plastic. PGW also operates two LNG facilities for liquefaction, storage, and 
regasification of natural gas, which is used during the winter in addition lo the utility's firm take from two 
interstate pipeiines. The utility has laddered firm gas supply contracts and has a relatively balanced gas supply 
mix with half coming from the Spectra pipeline and the other half coming from the Transco-Williams pipeline. 
The proposed expansion to the LNG facility should further enable PGW to manage fluctuations In demand due 
to weather while also providing a physical hedge against price fluctuations.

Methodology

The principal methodology used In this rating was US Municipal Utility Revenue Debt published in December 
2014. Please see the Ratings Methodologies page on www.moodys.com for a copy of this methodology.

Regulatory Disclosures

For ratings issued on a program, series or category/dass of debt, this announcement provides certain 
regulatory disclosures in relation to each rating of a subsequently issued bond or note of the same series or 
category/dass of debt or pursuant to a program for which the ratings are derived exclusively from existing 
ratings in accordance with Moody's rating pradices. For ratings issued on a support provider, this 
announcement provides certain regulatory disclosures in relation to the credit rating action on the support 
provider and in relation to each particular credit rating action for securities that derive their credit ratings from 
the support provider's credit rating. For provisional ratings, this announcement provides certain regulatory 
disclosures In relation to the provisional rating assigned, and in relation to a definitive rating that may be
assigned subsequent tn the final issuance of the debt, in each case where the transaction stmetureand terms
have not changed prior to the assignment of the definitive rating in a manner that would have affected the 
rating. For further information please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page for the respective issuer on 
www.moodys.com.

Regulatory disclosures contained in this press release apply to the credit rating and, If applicable, the related 
rating outlook or rating review.

Please see www.moodys.com for any updates on changes to the lead rating analyst and lo the Moody's legal 
entity that has Issued the rating.
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Please see the ratings tab on the Issuer/entity page on www.moodys.cam for additional regulatory disclosures 
for each credit rating.

John Medina
Lead Analyst
Project Finance
Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
7 World Trade Center 
250 Greenwich Street 
New York 10007 
US
JOURNALISTS: 212-553-0376 
SUBSCRIBERS: 212-553-1653

Kurt Krummenacker 
Additional Contact 
Project Finance 
JOURNALISTS: 212-553-0376 
SUBSCRIBERS: 212-553-1653
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Mood/s Investors Service, Inc.
250 Greenwich Street 
New York, NY 10007 
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© 2016 Moody's Corporation, Moody's Investors Service, Inc., Moody's Analytics. Inc. and/or their licensors and 
affiliates (collectively, “MOODY'S''). All rghts reserved.

CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY’S INVESTORS SERVICE, INC. AND ITS RATINGS AFFILIATES 
(“MIS*) ARE MOODY’S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, 
CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND CREDIT RATINGS AND 
RESEARCH PUBLICATIONS PUBLISHED BY MOODYS (“MOODYS PUBLICATIONS") MAY INCLUDE 
MOODY'S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT 
COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES. MOODYS DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK 
THAT AN ENTITY MAY NOT MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL. FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE 
AND ANY ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT 
ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK. MARKET VALUE 
RISK, OR PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODYS OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY'S 
PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT. MOODYS 
PUBLICATIONS MAY ALSO INCLUDE QUANTITATIVE MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF CREDIT RISK AND 
RELATED OPINIONS OR COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY’S ANALYTICS. INC. CREDIT RATINGS 
AND MOODYS PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL 
ADVICE, AND CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND DO NOT PROVIDE 
RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. NEITHER CREDIT 
RATINGS NOR MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR 
ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR. MOODYS ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS AND PUBLISHES MOODY S 
PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION AND UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH 
DUE CARE, MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER 
CONSIDERATION FOR PURCHASE, HOLDING, OR SALE. MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODYS 
PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY RETAIL INVESTORS AND IT WOULD BE RECKLESS 
AND INAPPROPRIATE FOR RETAIL INVESTORS TO USE MOODYS CREDIT RATINGS OR MOODY’S 
PUBLICATIONS WHEN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION. IF IN DOUBT YOU SHOULD CONTACT 
YOUR FINANCIAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER.
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ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, 
COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE 
REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED. TRANSFERRED. DISSEMINATED. 
REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN 
WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER. BY ANY PERSON 
WITHOUT MOODY'S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY'S from sources believed by it lo be accurate and 
reliable Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error as well as other factors, however, all 
information contained herein is provided "AS IS" without warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary 
measures so that the information it uses In assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources 
MOODY'S considers to be reliable Including, when appropriate, independent third- party sources. However, 
MOODY'S is not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received 
in Ihe rating process or in preparing the Mood/s Publications.

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY'S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, 
licensors and suppliers disclaim liability to any person or entity for any indirect, special, consequential, or 
inddenial losses or damages whatsoever arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or 
the use of or inability to use any such information, even if MOODY'S or any of its directors, officers, employees, 
agents, representatives, licensors or suppliers is advised in advance of the possibility of such losses or 
damages, including but not limited to: (a) any loss of present or prospective profits or (b) any loss or damage 
arising where the relevant financial instrument is not the subject of a particular credit rating assigned by 
MOODY’S.

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY'S and Its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, 
licensors and suppliers disclaim liability for any direct or compensatory losses or damages caused to any 
person or entity, including but not limited to by any negligence (but excluding fraud, willful misconduct or any 
other tyoe of liability that, for the avoidance of doubt, by law cannot be excluded) on the part of, or any 
contingency within or beyond the control of, MOODY'S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, licensors or suppliers, arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the 
use of or inability to use any such information.

NO WARRANTY. EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY. TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS. 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY SUCH RATING OR OTHER 
OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY'S IN ANY FORM OR MANNER 
WHATSOEVER.

Moody's Investors Service, Inc., a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Corporation 
("MCO"), hereby discloses that most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds, 
debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. hove, 
prior to assignment of any rating, agreed to pay to Moody's Investors Service. Inc. for appraisal and rating 
services rendered by It fees ranging from $1,500 lo approximately $2,500,000. MCO and MIS also maintain 
policies and procedures to address the independence of MIS's ratings and rating processes. Information 
regarding certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and rated entities, and between entities 
who hold ratings from MIS and have also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more 
than 5%, is posted annually at www.moodys.com under the heading "Investor Relations — Corporate 
Governance — Director and Shareholder Affiliation Policy."

Additional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to the Australian 
Financial Services License of MOODY’S affiliate, Moody's Investors Service Pty Limited ABN 61 003 399 
657AFSL 336969 and/or Moody's Analytics Australia Pty Ltd ABN 94 105 136 972 AFSL 383569 (as 
applicable). This document is intended to be provided only to "wholesale clients" within the meaning of section 
761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By continuing to access this document from within Australia, you represent 
to MOCDY'S that you are. or are accessing the document as a representative of, a "wholesale dienT and that 
neither you nor Ihe entity you represent will directly or indirectly disseminate this document or its contents to 
"retail clients* within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. MOODY’S credit rating Is an 
opinion as to the creditworthiness of a debt obligation of the Issuer, not on the equity securities of the Issuer or 
any farm of security that is available to retail investors. It would be reckless and inappropriate for retail investors 
to use MOODY'S credil ratings or publications when making an investment decision. If in doubt you should 
contact your financial or other professional adviser.
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Aoditional terms for Japan only: Moody‘s Japan K.K. (“MJKK") is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary 
of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is wholiy-owned by Moody's Overseas Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of MCO. Moody's SF Japan K.K. (“MSFJ") Is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of 
MJKK. MSFJ is not a Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (“NRSRO''). Therefore, credit 
ratings assigned by MSFJ are Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings. Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings are assigned by an 
entity that is not a NRSRO and, consequently, the rated obligation will not qualify for certain types of treatment 
under U.S. laws. MJKK and MSFJ are credit rating agencies registered with the Japan Financial Services 
Agency and their registration numbers are FSA Commissioner (Ratings) No. 2 and 3 respectively.

MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) hereby disclose (hat most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and 
municipal bonds, debentures, notes anc commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by MJKK or MSFJ (as 
applicable) have, prior to assignment of any rating, agreed to pay to MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) for 
appraisal and rating services rendered by it fees ranging from JPY200,000 to approximately JPY350,000,000. 
MJKK and MSFJ also maintain policies and procedures to address Japanese regulatory requirements.
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Philadelphia's Gas Works Revenue Bonds 
Upgraded To 'A' From 'A-' On Stronger Fixed Cost 
Coverage

Primary Credit Analyst:
Jeffrey M Panger, New York (1) 212-438-2076; jeff paoger@spglobal.com

Secondary Contact:
David N Bodek, New York (1) 212-438-7969; david.bodek@spglobal.com

NEW YORK (S&P Global Ratings) Aug. 10, 2016--S&P Global Ratings has raised its 

rating on the City of Philadelphia's gas works (PGW) revenue bonds, issued 

under its 1998 ordinance, to 'A' from 'A-1. At the same time, S&P Global 

Ratings has assigned its 'A' rating to Philadelphia's revenue refunding bonds, 

14th series, issued under the Philadelphia Gas Works' (PGW) 1998 ordinances. 

The outlook is stable.

S&P Global Ratings has also raised its rating on the following issues rated 

under our joint support criteria (low correlation):
• 1998 ordinance, 8th series D bonds, jointly supported by a letter of 

credit from Royal Bank of Canada, to ,AA+/A-l4l from ,AA/A-3+'

• 1998 ordinance, 8th series B bonds, jointly supported by a letter of 
credit from Wells Fargo Bank N.A., to 'AA+/A-1+' from 'AA/A-1+'

• 1998 ordinance, 8th series C bonds, jointly supported by a letter of 
credit from Barclays Bank PLC, to 'AA/A-2' from 'AA-/A-2'

Finally, S&P Global Ratings affirmed its 'AA/A-l' rating on the 1998 ordinance 
0th series C bonds, jointly supported (low correlation) by a letter of credit 

from PNC Bank N.A.

"The upgrade reflects strengthened coverage of fixed costs, and our 

expectation of additional improvement over the next five years," said S&P 

Global Ratings credit analyst Jeff Panger.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIitBCT 
THIS VMS PREPARED EXCLUSIVELY FOR USSR ADAM KEITH. 
MOT FOR REDISTRIBUTION UNLESS OTHERWISE PERMITTED.

AUGUST 10, 2016 1
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Philadelphia's Gas Works Revenue Bonds Upgraded To 'A' From 'A-' On Stronger Fixed Cost Coverage

We understand that a portion of the proceeds of 14th series bonds will refund 

debt outstanding (including the 6th series B, C, D, and E bonds), and make an 

estimated $6.6 million in termination payments on $63.5 million in notional 

swaps.

PGW is the nation's largest municipally owned gas utility, serving 

approximately 500,000 customers in Philadelphia. Low collection rates had 

plagued it for several years, although this has improved recently. We believe 

that the improvement has resulted from low natural gas prices and lower demand 

associated with generally warmer weather, driving down customer bills and 

reducing delinquencies. While we also believe that the general improvement in 

collection rates has been in part due to the implementation of more stringent 

enforcement to address delinquent accounts, we remain uncertain as to whether 

this trend will continue under less optimal circumstances.

The stable outlook reflects our view of improved coverage levels over the past 

two years, and projection of further improvement, which we believe will 

preserve credit quality at the higher rating.

We do not expect to raise the rating further over the next two years, even if 

the utility gains full approval for its requested base-rate increase 

(resulting in higher coverage), because this would not lead to an appreciable 

improvement in credit quality for the rating.

Although unlikely, downward rating pressure could result if financial metrics 

(coverage and liquidity) fall materially below recent recorded levels.

Certain terms used in this report, particularly certain adjectives used to 

express our view on rating relevant factors, have specific meanings ascribed 

to them in our criteria, and should therefore be read in conjunction with such 
criteria. Please see Ratings Criteria at www.6tandardandpoors.com for further 

information. Complete ratings information is available to subscribers of 
RatingsDirect at www.globalcreditportal.com and at www.spcapitaliq.com. All 

ratings affected by this rating action can be found on the S&P Global Ratings' 

public website at www.standardandpoorB.com. Use the Ratings search box located 

in the left column.

WWW.STANPARDANDPnORS.cmvi/RATlNCSDinBCT

THIS WAS PREPARED EXCLUSIVELY FOR USER ADAM KEITH. 
NOT FOR REDISTRIBUTION UNLESS OTHERWISE PERMITTED.

AUGUST 10, 2016 2

15909S2 | 302128706



ExM. JFG-3

Copyrif^Ji C 201b by S&P Globa) Maricet Inidligence, a division of S&P Global Inc. All righli reterved

No coment (including ratings, credil-rdated analyses and data, valuations, model, software or otlicr appliesttun or output therefrom) or any part 
thereof (Content) may be modified, reverse engineered, reproduced or distributed in any form by any means, or stored m a database or retrieval 
system, without the prior written permission of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC or its offUialrs (collectively, SAP). The Content shall not be 
used for any unlawful or unauthorized purposes. SAP and any third-party providers, as well as their directors, officers, shareholders, employees or 
agents (collectively SAP Parties) do not guarantee the accuracy, completeness, timeliness or availability of the Content. SAP Patties arc not 
responsible for any errors or omissions (negligent or otherwise), regardless of the cause, for the results obtained from the use of the Content, or for 
the security or maintenance ofany data input by the user. The Content is provided on on ‘as is* bests. SAP PARTIES DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES. INCLUDING. BUT NOT LIMITED TO. ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR 
A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE. FREEDOM FROM BUGS. SOFTWARE ERRORS OR DEFECTS. THAT THE CONTENTS FUNCTIONING 
WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED. OR THAT THE CONTENT WILL OPERATE WITH ANY SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE CONFIGURATION. In no 
event shall S&P Parties be liable to any party for any direct, indirect, incidental, exemplary, compensatory, punitive, special or consequential 
damages, costs, expenses, legal fees, or losses (including without limitation, lost Income or lost profits and opportunity costs or losses caused by 
negligence) in connection with any use of the Content even if advised of the possibility of such damages.

Credit •related and other analyses, including ratings, and statancnls in the Content arc statements of opinion as of the date they are expressed and 
not statements of fact SAP's opinions, analyses, and rating acknowledgment decisions (described below) are not recommendations to purchase, 
hold, or sell any securities or to make any investment decisions, and do not address the suilabDity ofany security. S&P assumes no obligation to 
update the Content following publication in any form or formal. The Content should not be relied cm and is not a substitute for the drill, judgment 
and experience of the user. Its management, employees, advisors and/or dlents when making Investment and other badness decisions. SAP docs 
not act as a fiduciary or an Investment advisor except where registered as such. While SAP has obtained information from sources U believes to be 
reliable, SAP doea not perfonn an audit and undertakes no duty of due diligence or Independent verification of any information it receives.

To the extern that regulatory authorities allow a rating agency to acknowledge in one jurisdiction a rating issued in another jurisdiction for certain 
regulatory purposes. SAP reserves the right to assign, withdraw, or suspend such ocknowlcdgemrat at any time and in its sole discretion. S&P 
Parties disclaim any duty whatsoever arising out of the assignment, withdrawal, or suspension of an acknowledgment as well as any liability for any 
damage alleged to have been suffered on account thereof

SAP keeps certain activities of its business units separate from each other in order to preserve the independence and objectivity of their respective 
activities. As a result, certain business units of S&P may have information that is not available to other S&F business units. S&P has established 
policies and procedures to maintain the confidentiality of certain nonpublic information received in connection with each analytical process.

S&P may receive compensation for its ratings and arriaoi analyses, normally from iwum or underwriter* of securities or from obligors. SAP 
reserves the right to disseminate its opinions and analyses. SAP* public ratings and analyses arc made available on it* Web tiles, 
www.slandardandpoora com (free of charge), and www.ratingtdircct.com and www g)obu3creditportal.com (subscription) and wwwjpcapitaliq.com 
(subscription) and may be distributed through other means, including via S&P publications and third-party redistributors. Additional information 
about our ratings foes is available at wwwjstandardandpoors.com/usratingslecs.

STANDARD A POOR’S. SAP and RATINGSDIRECT are registered trademarks of Standard A Poor** Financial Seivices LLC

WWW.STANDARDANDP00RS.COM/RAT1NCSD1RECT 

THIS WAS PREPARED EXCLUSIVELY FOR USER ADAM KEITH. 
NOT FOR REDISTRIBUTION UNLESS OTHERWISE PERMITTED.

AUGUST 10, 2016 3

1690952 | 302l287i>U



Exh. JFG-3

S&P Global
Ratings

Summary:

Philadelphia; Gas; Joint Criteria

Primary Credit Analyst:
Jeffrey M Ranger, New York (1) 212-438-2076; jeff.panger@spglobal.com 

Secondary Contact:
David N Bodek. New York (1) 212-438-7969; david.bodek@spglobal.com

Table Of Contents

Rationale

Outlook

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINCSDIRECT AUGUST 10, 201B 1

1690980 | 302491964



Exh. JFG-3

Summary:

Philadelphia; Gas; Joint Criteria

US$220.S mil gas wks rev rfdg bnds Mth series (1998 gen ordinance) ser 2016 due 10/01/2037

Long Tirm Rating A/Stable New

Philadelphia gas wks (Gen Ordinance) 

Jntnhanctd Rating A(SPUK)/Stab!e Upgraded

Philadelphia gas wks (1898 General Ordinance) 

Unenhanced Rating A(SPUR)/Stable Upgraded

Philadelphia gas wks 4th series (1998 Gen Ordinance)

Unenhanced Rating A(SPUR)/Stab!e Upgraded

Rationale

S&P Global Ratings has raised its rating on the City of Philadelphia's gas works (PGW) revenue bonds, issued under its 

1998 ordinance, to 'A' from 'A-'. At the same time, S&P Global Ratings has assigned its 'A' rating to Philadelphia's 

revenue refunding bonds. 14th series, issued under the Philadelphia Gas Works' (PGW) 1998 ordinances. The outlook 

is stable.

S&P Global Ratings has also raised its rating on the following issues rated under our joint support criteria (low 

correlation):

• 1998 ordinance, 8th series D bonds, jointly supported by a letter of credit from Royal Bank of Canada, to 

'AA+/A-1+' from 'AA/A-1+'

• 1998 ordinance, 8th series B bonds, jointly supported by a letter of credit from Wells Fargo Bank N.A., to 

'AA+ / A-1 +' from' AA/A-1 +’

• 1998 ordinance, 8th series C bonds, jointly supported by a letter of credit from Barclays Bank PLC, to 'AA/A-2‘ from 

'AA-/A-2'

Finally, S&P Global Ratings affirmed its 'AA/A-l' rating on the 1998 ordinance 8th series C bonds, jointly supported 

(low correlation) by a letter of credit from PNC Bank NA

The upgrade reflects strengthened coverage of fixed costs, and our expectation of additional improvement over the 

next five years.

The 1998 ordinance bonds, although rated as working-lien bonds, were subordinate to the dosed senior Hen 1975 

ordinance debt. They are now effectively senior-lien obligations because the 1975 ordinance bonds have been

refunded.

We understand that a portion of the proceeds of Mth series bonds will refund debt outstanding (including the 8th
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Summary: Philadelphia; Gas; Joint Criteria

scries B. C. D. and E bonds), and make an estimated $6.6 million in termination payments on $63.5 million in notional 

swaps.

The ratings reflect what we view as PGW's credit strengths:

« Solid coverage of debt service requirements over fiscal years 2013 through 2015 (after the annual payment to 

Philadelphia's general fund). Management estimates strengthening coverage in Fiscal year 2016, and we expect this 

to continue over fiscal years 2017-2021. However, the out-year coverage levels depend on die utility receiving 

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (PAPUC) approval to increase base rates $40 million increase for Fiscal 

2018. While the prospect of approval in full is uncertain, the PAPUC has been significantly more supportive of PGW 

rate filings in recent years;

• Good liquidity, with $114 million in unrestricted cash, (measuring an adequate 76 days of operating expenses), 

which we project will remain steady through 2021. A $120 million commercial paper (CP) program the utility can 

use to provide working capital, as well as capital purposes, also bolsters liquidity;

• Moderate capital spending planned for the next five years, with a prudent mix of debt-financing and internally 

generated binding helping to further reduce PGW's debt-to-capitalization ratio, though debt burden per customer is 

expected to increase;
• Generally solid collections that have enhanced the utility’s financial stability. The improved collections are partially 

due to above-average temperatures and. to a greater extent, lower and more stable gas prices. These conditions 

have made bills generally more affordable, but cannot necessarily be counted on. However, the improved 

collections are also a function of the PGW’s enhanced billing and collection procedures, which are expected to 

continue;
• A credit supportive rate structure that insulates margins from weather variability and automatically passes on gas 

costs to ratepayers through quarterly adjustments; and

• The utility’s strong management team.

Constraining further credit improvement arc the following factors:

• Weak service area demographics and above-average rates , historically exposing PGW to collection difficulties 

during periods of high gas costs or below-average temperatures, while also limiting financial flexibility;

• Dependence on the PAPUC for approval for base-rate increases, with a mixed history of support for filings, although 

this has improved recently;

• Very high user rates; and.

• VVe consider debt levels moderately high

PGW’s rates are subject to PAPUC approval, which we view as a credit weakness. From 2000 (when the commission 

began regulating the utility’s rates) to October 2008, the PAPUC approved just 42% of the total amount of base-rate 

increases PGW requested, although all gas cost rate adjustments have been received in full and on time.

In July, 2010. the PAPUC approved a settlement between PGW and six interveners to make permanent a $60 million 

extraordinary base-rate increase and a $ 16 million surcharge to build funding of rhe annually required contribution for 

other postemployment benefits. As part of the approved settlement, the utility agreed not to seek another base rate 

increase for two years, and not issue additional new money debt three

We believe that the 2010 settlement resulted in improved cash flow and financial flexibility, and PGW has received 

approvals in full for several surcharges filed with PAPUC over the past several years. The utility expects to seek u $40
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Summary: Philadelphia; Gas; Joint Criteria

million base-rate increase in January 2017 (effective for fiscal 2018). We believe that PGW's recent track record 

indicates a more supportive regulatory environment. Moreover, we believe that even if the utility receives less than its 

full request, financial metrics will continue to support the higher rating.

PGW has not issued new money debt since 2010, and debt ratios have shown steady improvement. Debt per customer 

has declined nearly 20% since 2011, to $1,973, while debt has decline to 78% of total capitalization in 2015, down from 

82% in 2010. The utility expects to issue about $41 million of CP to provide interim financing of capital needs in fiscal 

2016; long-term debt issuance plans include a $270 million issuance in fiscal 2017 (new money and CP take-out) and 

$ 180 million in fiscal 2020 (we note that the latter issuance is $80 million higher than previously planned). PGW 

expects debt-to-capitalization will continue declining, reaching a projected 64% by 2021. However, this is higher than 

previously expected, because the anticipated 2020 issuance has been upsized.

We understand that PGW is exploring the possibility of increasing its current liquefaction capabilities at its existing 

Richmond liquefied natural gas facility, and estimates a roughly $120 million capital cost, $110 million of which would 

be debt-financed and amortized over 25 to 30 years. Management expects that it will proceed with the project only if it 

is able to secure firm bilateral contracts (of 15 to 20 years) that would enable them to break-even through the sale of 

roughly 40% of the expanded liquefaction capabilities over the (longer) life of the debt Although the project would 

provide some operational benefits (creating redundancies and providing a possible replacement to its current aging 

liquefier, for example), we believe that it does increase risk. However, we believe the risks are manageable within the 

context of PGW's improved financial profile and increased costs associated with the project should the utility fail to 

make sufficient sales at projected prices.

PGW's residential heating rates range from 21% to 92% higher than those of other Pennsylvania utilities. We believe 

this is a function of historically weak collections, sizable bad debt expense, and customer responsibility and senior 

citizen discount programs. Similar disparities exist among other customer classes as well. As such, much of the utility's 

growth is for unbundled service, with about 37% of load supplied by alternate suppliers.

In our opinion, PGW has a mutually interdependent relationship with Philadelphia. Historically, the city received an 

$18 million annual payment from the utility, but with PGW facing cash flow problems, the city forgave the payment in 

2004, and annually granted the payment back to PGW from 2005 through 2010. From fiscal years 2011-2015, 

Philadelphia retained the payment, a decision that we believe was made in light of the utility's improving financial 

condition and the impact of the economy on the city’s budget. Philadelphia's five-year financial plan anticipates the 

continuation of the annual payment.

Coverage levels have shown steady improvement, and are at levels that we consider both supportive of a higher rating 

and sustainable. S&P Global Ratings evaluates PGW's financial metrics assuming the annual payment is made, treating 

it as an operating expense. Since 2017, coverage levels have ranged from 1.7.Sx (2012) to 1.9lx (2013), with the low 

partially explained by above-average temperatures, and the high explained by a one-ycar dip in debt service 

requirements. Coverage levels were solid in 2015 at 1.54x, consistent with that of the previous year, and our 

expectations at our most recent review. PGW estimates 2016 coverage at 1.77x, and projects coverages ranging from 

1.8x to 2.0x through 2021, levels we consider strong. Although these projections assume PAPUC approval of PGW’s 

expected $40 million base-rate increase request for fiscal 20)8, we believe coverage levels will continue to support the
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higher rating even if the utility does not receive full approval of its rate request.

We consider PGW's liquidity to be adequate. About $114 million in unrestricted cash and investments provides 76 

days of operating expenses, and a $ 120 million CP program that can be used for working capital purposes supplements 

this. Management's projections suggest that unrestricted cash levels should continue over the next five years.

PGW is the nation's largest municipally owned gas utility, serving approximately 500,000 customers in Philadelphia. 

Low collection rates had plagued it for several years, although this has improved recently. We believe that the 

improvement has resulted from low natural gas prices and lower demand associated with generally warmer weather, 

driving down customer bills and reducing delinquencies. While we also believe that the general improvement in 

collection rates has been in part due to the implementation of more stringent enforcement to address delinquent 

accounts, we remain uncertain as to whether this trend will continue under less optimal circumstances.

Outlook

The stable outlook reflects our view of improved coverage levels over the past two years, and projection of further 

improvement, which we believe will preserve credit quality at the higher rating.

Upside scenario
We do not expect to raise the rating further over the next two years, even if the utility gains full approval tor its 

requested base-rate increase (resulting in higher coverage), because this would not lead to an appreciable 

improvement in credit quality for the rating

Downside scenario
Although unlikely, downward rating pressure could result if financial metrics (coverage and liquidity) fall materially 

below recent recorded levels.

[RatingSjDetaiT'(AsJDf August To, 2016)

Philadelphia gas wks (199B Gen Ordinance)

Long Term Rating A/Stable Upgraded

Philadelphia gas wks (1998 Gen Ord) (wrap of insured) (AMBAC & AGM) (SBC MKT)

Unenhanced Rating A(SPUR)/Stable Upgraded

Philadelphia gas works rev bnds (1975 Gen Ordinance) ser 19TH dtd 05/15/2007 due 10/01/2021-2023 

Unenhanced Rating NR(SPUR)

Philadelphia gas works rev bnds (1975 Gen Ordinance) ser 19TH dtd 05/15/2007 due 10/01/2021-2023

Unenhanced Rating NR(SPUR)

Philadelphia JOINTCRIT

Long Term Rating AA+/A-1+ Upgraded

Unenhanced Rating A(SPUR)/Stable Upgraded

Philadelphia JOINTCRIT

Long Term Rating AA/A-1 Affirmed

Unenhanced Rating A(SPUR)/Stab!e Upgraded
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Ratings Detail (As Gi-August 10, 2016) (coni;)

City of PhUadeiphia, Pennsylvania, Gas Works Revenue Refonding Bonds, Eighth Series C (1098 General 
Ordinance)

Unenhanceif Rating A(SPUR)/Stablc Upgraded

Long Term Rating AA/A-2 Upgraded

City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds, Eighth Series D (1998 General 
Ordinance)

Unenhanced Rating A(SPUK)/Stable Upgraded

Long Ttm Rating AA+/A-1+ Upgraded

PhUadeiphia gas wks (1975 Gen Ordinance) Seventeenth ser

Unenhanced Rating NR(SPUR)

Many issues are enhanced by bond insurance.

Certain terms used in this report, particularly certain adjectives used to express our view on rating relevant factors, 

have specific meanings ascribed to them in our criteria, and should therefore be read in conjunction with such criteria. 

Please see Ratings Criteria at www.standardandpoors.com for further information. Complete ratings information is 

available to subscribers of RatingsDirect at www.globalcreditportal.com. All ratings affected by this rating action can 

be found on the S&P Global Ratings' public website at www.standardandpoors.com. Use the Ratings search box 

located in the left column.
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l^ATES PHILADELPHIA, PA'S GAS WORKS 

REV REFUNDING BONDS; OUTLOOK STABLE

Filch Ratings-New York-08 August 2016: Fitch Ratings has assigned a 'BBB+' rating to the 
following revenue bonds issued by the city of Philadelphia on behalf of the Philadelphia Gas 
Works (PGW):

—Approximately $220,550,000 Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds, Fourteenth Series (1998 
General Ordinance).

The bonds arc scheduled to price via negotiation August 20. The bonds will refund a portion of 
outstanding parity bonds (Seventh Series, Ninth Series and Eighth Series A-E) for interest cost 
savings, fund termination payments related to corresponding swap agreements and pay issuance 
costs.

In addition, Fitch affirms the following rating:

—$915,175,000 million gas works revenue refunding bonds, various series (senior 1998 general 
ordinance) at 'BBB+\

The Rating Outlook is Stable.

SECURITY

The 1998 general ordinance bonds arc secured by net revenues of the gas works utility.

KEY RATING DRIVERS

LARGE GAS DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM; PGW is the largest municipally-owned gas distribution 
utility in the nation serving slightly more than 500,000 accounts located entirely within the City 
of Philadelphia (general obligation bonds rated 'A-VStable Outlook). The system provides natural 
gas on a retail basis to a considerably diverse and largely residential customer base exhibiting no 
concentration among users.

SUSTAINED IMPROVEMENT IN FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: A sustained improvement 
in financial metrics and a continued reduction in debt levels resulted in a rating upgrade in 2015. 
Contributing factors include prior rate relief, greater cost recovery through various surcharges, 
historically low natural gas prices and PGW's ability to current fund its capital needs and maintain 
healthier collection rates. Filch expects these trends will continue based on the latest financial 
forecast.

STABLE FINANCIAL METRICS: Fitch calculated debt service coverage has averaged a solid 
1.52x over the prior five years while coverage of full obligations, which reflects the annual transfer 
made to the city's general fund, has also remained at a healthy level, averaging 1,37x since 2010. 
Liquidity continued at an acceptable level in fiscal 2015, equal to 74 days of cash on band.

RATE REGULATED: PGW's ability to establish its rates is subject to oversight by Pennsylvania 
Utility Commission (PUC), potentially limiting needed rate increases and overall financial 
flexibility. Positively, the utility's relationship with the PUC has remained constructive and 
supportive in recent years.



WEAK BUT STABLE DEMOCiRAPHiCS: The city's economy continues to strengthen and is 
well anchored by several large health care and higher education institutions. However, wealth 
indicators for the service area remain are generally weak, contributing to chronically below 
average collection rates and sizeable write-offs, and compounding PGW's high rates.

RATING SENSITIVITIES

LIMITED FINANCIAL FLEXIBILITY: Despite the overall improvement in Philadelphia Gas 
Works' credit quality in recent years, Fitch expects the utility's exceptionally high rates, the service 
area's low income levels and a regulatory environment that includes state and local oversight will 
continue to limit financial flexibility. A return to weaker collection rates, diminished cash flow 
and an inability to gain needed rate relief and recover costs would exert downward pressure on the 
ratings.

FORECAST RESULTS REALIZED: PGW's ability to generate financial results included in 
its latest financial forecast, which hinge on gaining rate relief and further sustaining its trend of 
improved revenue collection could ultimately warrant positive rating consideration.

CREDIT PROFILE

IMPROVED CREDIT QUAILITY

PGW's financial performance since gaining rate relief beginning in fiscal 2010 has exhibited a 
generally more favorable trend with metrics supportive of the lBBB+> rating. Fitch calculated debt 
service coverage of both senior and subordinate lien obligations has averaged 1,52x over that span, 
compared to l.lx between fiscal 2006 and 2009. Coverage of full obligations, which reflects the 
annual transfer made to the city's general fund, has also remained at a healthy level, averaging 
I.37x since2010.

Liquidity is somewhat low but still adequate for the rating category. Unrestricted cash and 
investments peaked at 74 days in fiscal 2015 and have remained at no less than 55 days since 2010, 
despite management's prudent decision to use cash flow to defease or accelerate bond principal by 
approximately $50 million in recent years.

MANAGEABLE CAPITAL PROGRAM

PGW's capital improvement program (CIP) through fiscal 2021 appears manageable with spending 
levels moderately higher compared with historical programs. Planned spending spanning fiscal 
years 2017-2021 totals $587.2 million, the vast majority of which will be to reduce the inventory 
of cast iron mains. PGW remains committed to an ongoing cast iron main replacement program 
that has accelerated in recent years following the implementation and subsequent increase of a 
distribution system improvement charge.

Capital program funding sources will be almost evenly split between excess cash flow and debt 
issuances planned for midway through fiscal 2017 and the second half of fiscal 2020. Leverage 
ratios have fluctuated over the years but have generally exhibited gradual improvement with the 
current funding of capital projects leading to a steady decline in total debt outstanding. The ratios 
of equity to capitalization and debt to funds available for debt service (FADS) progressed to 22% 
and 7.lx, respectively, at the close of fiscal 2015 compared to 17.8% and 8.8x, respectively, in 
2010.

Fitch expects a moderate increase in total debt outstanding by 2020 based on the additional 
borrowings plans; however, the related change in leverage ratios should be tolerable at the current
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rating category. Additional debt associated with a tentatively planned expansion of existing 
liquefied natural gas (LNG) facilities would likely pressure debt metrics further. However, 
the potential for higher LNG sales as a result of the expansion could enhance cash flow and 
sufficiently mitigate any rating concerns.

SOCIOECONIOMIC CHARACTERISTICS COMPOUND HIGH RA TES

PGW's exceptionally high rates, the city's challenging demographics and the state’s regulation 
of retails rates continue to constrain PGWs operating flexibility. Residential rates are more 
than 50%higher than all other gas distribution systems operating within the state in part due to 
historically weak collections and extensive utility-sponsored discount programs that benefit low- 
income customers. The city's nearly 27% poverty rate is nearly twice the national rate, and median 
household income (MHI) approximates just 70% of the state and national averages. Consequently, 
PGW's accounts receivable balances and annual write-offs are routinely high relative to most 
utilities. Filch notes, however, that after remaining consistently below 90% prior to 2004, revenue 
collection has averaged a more acceptable 96% over the prior 10 years.

HEIGHTENED REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

PGW operates within a heightened regulatory environment with the gas commission, city council 
and the PUC maintaining oversight of the utility's operations and the PUC retaining rate setting 
authority.. While the regulatory bodies have been increasingly more supportive over the last 
several years, Fitch believes the multiple layers of oversight wilt continue to limit the utility's 
financial flexibility,

Fitch notes the PUC's ratemaking methodology is designed to ensure PGW recovers its costs, 
meets its rate covenant of 1,5x coverage on senior and subordinate lien obligations, and continues 
to fund a required SI 8 million annual utility payment to the city.
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1 I. INTRODUCTION

2 Q. PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND POSITION WITH THE COMPANY.

3 A. My name is Joseph F. Golden, Jr. My position is Executive Vice President and

4 Acting Chief Financial Officer for Philadelphia Gas Works (“PGW” or

5 “Company’3)-

6 Q. DID YOU PREVIOUSLY SUBMIT TESTIMONY IN THIS PROCEEDING
7 ON BEHALF OF PGW?

8 A. Yes. I submitted my direct testimony, PGW St No. 2 on February 27, 2017.

9 Q. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?

10 A. My rebuttal testimony responds to certain portions of the following direct

11 testimony submitted by other parties, including the Office of Consumer Advocate

12 (“OCA”), the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement (“I&E”) and the Office of

13 Small Business Advocate (“OSBA”). The primary purpose of my rebuttal

14 testimony is to: (1) update the Fully Projected Future Test Year (“FPFTY”)

15 financial schedules; (2) reply to the various revenue requirement

16 recommendations; (3) address the financial metrics recommendations of various

17 parties; and (4) respond to arguments regarding PGW’s claims for certain

18 revenues and expenses.

19 Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY.

20 A. My testimony first provides updated pro forma financial schedules for the FPFTY

21 reflecting four adjustments and updates. On net these adjustments are not

22 material and do not change PGW’s claimed $70,000,000 rate increase request. I

23 also comment on the overall rate increase recommendations of Ms. Maurer, the

24 witness for I&E, Ms. Everette for OCA, and Mi*. Knecht for OSBA and the

1{10688313.2}



1 financial standards they recommend be used to judge the reasonableness of

2 PGW’s rate request. Next I provide responses to the revenue and expense

3 adjustments proposed by I&E witnesses Keller and Apetoh and OCA witness

4 Everette. Finally, I discuss PGW’s proposal to accept the recommendation of

5 I&E witness Keller to reestablish a health insurance trust flind including and show

6 the effect on PGW’s revenue requirement of accepting that recommendation.

7 II. UPDATED FPFTY

8 Q. HAVE YOU PROVIDED A REVISED JFG-I AND JFG-2?

9 A. Yes. The revisions reflected in the attached exhibits are as follows:

10 1. I have revised PGW’s calculation of debt service coverage to remove

11 $1,971,000 in pension expense that was inadvertently excluded when calculating

12 the Debt Service Coverage or "DSC”;

13 2. I have reduced proforma expenses by $250,000 to remove a portion of

14 claimed insurance expense in the FPFTY recognizing that it is associated with

15 PGW's contemplated LNG expansion project, which, if it becomes operative, will

16 not do so unti 1 after the end of the FPFTY;

17 3. I have added $1,167,000 to pro forma uses of cash in order to implement

18 the recommendation of I&E that PGW reinstate its Health Insurance Escrow

19 Fund. Offsetting this additional use of cash, I have also included an equivalent

20 increase in PGW’s gas revenues.

21 4. 1 have reduced pro forma expenses by $ 115,000 to reflect updated rate

22 case expense.

23 These revisions and updates are reflected in the attached exhibits, JFG-1-

24 A and JFG-2-A. These revisions, at present rates, increase FPFTY pro forma net

1L0691388.1 2
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9 Q.
10
11

12 A.

13
14

Q.

15 A.

16
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18
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20

21

22

23

earnings by $1,282,000, year-end cash by $802,000, and Net Cash Available after 

1998 Debt Service by $2,336,000.1 After consideration of the proposed, 

$70,000,000 rate increase, PGW’s debt service coverage would increase by 4 

basis points (from 2.16 to 2.20) and its year end cash on hand by $365,000.2 

Consequently, they have a non-material effect on PGW’s pro forma financial 

metrics and do not change our position that a $70,000,000 rate increase is 

necessary and reasonable.

REVENUE REQUIREMENT CALCULATION

HAVE YOU EXAMINED THE DIRECT TESTIMONY FILED BY I&E 
WITNESS RACHEL MAURER, OCA WITNESS ASHLEY EVERETTE 
AND OSBA WITNESS ROBERT KNECHT IN THIS CASE?

Yes, I have.

PLEASE SUMMARIZE THEIR OVERALL RECOMMENDATION 
REGARDING REVENUE REQUIREMENT.

My understanding of the recommendation regarding the revenue requirement of 

I&E witness Maurer is for PGW to borrow $75,000,000 for its operations and 

capital spending in excess of I&E’s recommended base rate increase of 

$33,802,000 (using 10-year average weather normalized sales) and spend funds 

on the related debt service for the additional bonds issued in the FPFTY and for 

the subsequent thirty years. The recommendation regarding the additional 

revenue requirement of OSBA witness Knecht is in the $30,000,000 to 

$35,000,000 range. Witness Knecht also irreverently recommends that the PUC 

behave in an irresponsible manner by “starving the beast [PGW]” in an effort to

Exh. JFG-l-A.

Exh. JFG-2-A.
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keep PGW one step above a financial crisis. I also note in witness Knecht’s 

testimony that there is a strong recognition of the additional burden on ratepayers 

related to interest expense in debt service. This is in direct contrast to witness 

Maurer’s recommendation to add to this burden for ratepayers.

Regarding OCA witness Everette, there is a recognition of the need for a 

revenue increase of $33,972,000 while shifting to a 20 year heating degree day 

average for the determination of pro forma revenues, and a change in the 

collection rate by 1% of revenue, or approximately $7,900,000.

Q. DO YOU HAVE ANY OVERALL RESPONSE TO THESE 
RECOMMENDATIONS?

A. Yes, I recognize the good faith effort the witnesses have used to determine a 

reasonable revenue requirement for PGW using the Cash Flow Method of 

ratemaking, the method mandated by law, and in general accordance with the 

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission’s (“PUC” or “Commission”) Policy 

Statement regarding PGW’s ratemaking methodology.3 I also take into account 

that the witnesses’ recognize the need for PGW to maintain financial health in 

order to continue its efforts to modernize its system and improve safety, reliability 

and customer service. I nonetheless believe that if the witnesses’ 

recommendations are adopted by the PUC, they would threaten PGW’s ability to 

maintain financial health and its efforts to modernize its system and improve 

safety reliability and customer service, the very essence of what their 

recommendations purport to achieve. Additional problems with their overall 

recommendations are described below.

3 52 Pa. Code §§ 69.2701 to 69.2703.

{L0688313.2} 4



1IV. FINANCIAL METRICS

i

2 Q. DO YOU AGREE WITH THE RECOMMENDATION OF I&E WITNESS
3 MAURER THAT PGW MOVE TOWARD A MORE BURDENSOME AND
4 DEBT-LADEN CAPITAL STRUCTURE?

5 A. No, I do not. With the recent implementation of the DSIC surcharge, as it is

6 utilized in a Cash Flow methodology company such as PGW, the PUC has

7 recognized the importance of infrastructure replacement and system improvement

8 on a “pay-go” basis. Recommending the use of additional debt to fund current

9 capital projects defies the PUC efforts to use “pay-go” funds for this exact

10 purpose. In authorizing the DSIC surcharge the PUC already took into account

11 PGW’s funding of its existing capital program at an approximate 50/50 split of

12 debt financing and funding from IGF. In increasing the DSIC surcharge from

13 5.0% to 7.5% the PUC chose to further expand the “pay-go” component of

14 PGW’s funding of its capital program. This proceeding should not be utilized to

15 undo the PUC’s great efforts to better PGW infrastructure improvement program

16 while attempting to maintain PGW’s financial health by prudently “deleveraging”

17 PGW’s concemingly high debt to equity ratio. The recommended I&E strategy is

18 akin to “kicking [the problem] down the road” to future ratepayers at a

19 compounded burden of additional borrowing related interest expense, bond

20 issuance expense, and additional pressure on the debt service coverage ratio.

21 Ms. Maurer’s recommendation also would push PGW’s debt to total

22 capitalization ratio (akin to its “debt to equity ratio”), now resting above 90%

23 even higher. Ms. Maurer quoted with favor from the PUC Staffs Report on the

24 need to increase the pace of PGW’s infrastructure modernization in which the

25 Staff opined that it might be acceptable for a municipal utility to have a debt to

{L0688313.2} 5
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equity ratio of as high as 70%.4 Even assuming PGW were to receive the full rate 

increase it has requested - but continuing with PGW’s prudent course of 

financing construction at an approximate 50/50 split of debt financing and 

funding from IGF - PGW’s debt to equity ratio in the FPFTY is already at 91%, 

reducing to around 70% only in FY 2022.5 The combined effect of Ms. Maurer’s 

recommendation to reduce PGW’s allowed rate increase by 52% while at the 

same time assuming that PGW will increase its reliance on long term debt to fund 

its capital program would increase PGW’s debt to equity ratio even more - to 

94.35% in the test year. If Ms. Maurer’s recommendation were accepted, PGW’s 

debt to equity ratio would still be a 78.93% in FY 2022. This is certainly a long 

way from the 70% that the PUC Staff suggested might be reasonable for PGW,6 

and moving seriously in the wrong direction compared to PGW’s proposal. PGW 

projects that, with the full $70,000,000 rate increase, its debt to total capitalization 

in the FPFTY will be 91% falling to 68.50% in FY 2022.7 Mr. Hartman explains 

that a Commission determination to consign PGW to such enormous leverage 

would certainly be viewed negatively by rating agencies and investors.

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, Staff Report: Inquiry into the Philadelphia Gas Works' 
Pipeline Replacement Program, dated April 21 , 2015, p. 6,44, 50.

Exh. JFG-2-A, p. 4.

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, Staff Report: Inquiry into the Philadelphia Gas Works' 
Pipeline Replacement Program, dated April 21 , 2015, p. 6,44, 50.

Exh. JFG-2-A, p. 4.

{L0688313.2} 6



1

2
3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

Q. DO YOU BELIEVE THAT THE ADJUSTMENTS MS. MAURER HAS 
MADE TO ACCOUNT FOR AN INCREASE IN DEBT FINANCING 
WOULD BE A GOOD DEAL FOR RATEPAYERS?

A. No, I do not. As I testified in the past, when one considers that rates must reflect 

not only the debt service but the debt service coverage of any new issuance, 

customers will pay more overall when PGW finances its capital via the issuance 

of long-term debt, rather than from IGF. Accordingly, the revenue requirement 

for bond financed capital improvements would be 50% more than just the debt 

service. Moreover, because PGW would have to continue to issue bonds every so 

often to continue to fund the capital improvements at the mix of debt and IGF 

recommended by Ms. Maurer, the cost of financing through long-term debt will 

continue to grow over time. Because of the 150% debt service coverage factor, 

the cost to the customer of funding the program via a long-term debt option 

becomes more expensive than the IFG option in relatively short order, as the 

following chart illustrates.

{1.0688313.2} 7
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Q. PLEASE DISCUSS MS. MAURER’S CRITICISM OF YOUR 
ASSESSMENT OF CASH ON HAND.

Ms. Maurer’s discussion of cash on hand is inconsistent with sound financial 

management. Ms. Maurer points to PGW’s cash on hand at a level of 

$107,800,000 and deems this as adequate. However, this level of “adequate” cash 

on hand comes at a cost of additional debt of $75,000,000 and additional debt 

service of $5,250,000 million for 30 years. From the perspective of personal 

finance, would anyone prudently recommend a person take a cash advance on a 

credit card or access a home equity line of credit to show others, including credit 

reporting agencies, the adequacy of their cash on hand to pay ongoing bills?

{L0688313.2} 8
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Suggesting a similar plan of finance for PGW is founded on the same faulty

financial footing and as such, should be rejected.

Q. DISCUSS MS. MAURER’S DISAGREEMENT WITH YOUR DEBT 
SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO.

A. Ms. Maurer claims that a debt service coverage ratio of 1.82x is adequate for

PGW to maintain its progress in the financial market.

Q. DO YOU AGREE WITH MS. MAURER’S PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE 
COVERAGE RATIO?

A. I do not agree that the debt service coverage ratio recommended by Ms. Maurer, 

or the similar level - 1.85x - recommended by OCA witness Habr, is adequate. 

While this ratio is only one view of financial soundness it does not fully identify 

the ability to cover cash requirements that are not included in the operating 

expenses of PGW’s income statement such as the City fee, OPEB contributions to 

the OPEB Trust, retiree health payments, and IGF for capital spending. The data 

below illustrates the inadequacy of the opposing parties’ recommendations. As 

noted, PGW as a cash flow company must secure from rates the cash it needs to 

meet its cash obligations and satisfy its debt service obligations. In the FPFTY,

PGW’s cash obligations after debt service are as follows:

OPEB Payment 
City Payment 
CAPX spending 
Retiree Insurance 
Additional Pension 
Health Escrow
Total

$ 18,500,000 
$ 18,000,000
$ 57,010,000 (assumes 50% from IGF, 50% via DSIC) 
$ 5,120,000 
$ 1,971,000s
$ 1,167,000
$101,768,000

Please note that later in my testimony 1 explain that PGW inadvertently excluded this amount 
when calculating PGW’s debt service coverage. While 1 agree that this item should not be 
included as an obligation in the calculation of the debt service coverage, it, nonetheless is an item 
that PGW must pay. Accordingly, I have shown it in the above analysis of obligations that must 
be satisfied in from Net Available after 1998 Debt Service.

{L0688313.2} 9
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Notably, PGW will also incur fees and interest for outstanding tax-exempt

commercial paper that will have to be issued to fund construction projects until

the proceeds of long-term bonds can be utilized. Those fees will be as follows:

LOG Fees - 8lh Series Bonds $2,092,000

LOG Fees-TXCP $1,271,000
LOG Fees - 5th Series Bonds $ 271,000

Total $3,634,000

Therefore, the minimum amount needed by PGW after debt service in the

FPFTY is $105,402,000. Compare that to the FPFTY net available after debt

service produced by the recommendations of OCA and I&E:

Minimum Needed: $ 105,402,000

OCA: $86,462,0009

I&E: $87,531,00010

Of course, PGW strongly believes that an amount above this minimum

amount is absolutely necessary in order to both actually deal with unanticipated

contingencies and to provide assurance to the investment community that it has

the capacity to maintain adequate coverages and not approach its minimum

coverage requirement of 1.5x. PGW prudently recommended a ratio in excess of

2.0 time coverage which produces a Net Available of $121,993,000n: to increase

the likelihood that it will be able to meet its obligations, as set forth above, and to

OCA St. 1, Exh. AEE-2, “Net Available After 1998 Debt Service.”

I&E St. 1, Sch. “Net Available After Debt Service.” I&E’s Net Available After Debt Service is 
slightly higher, even though its recommended debt service coverage is lower because of Ms. 
Maurer’s suggestion that PGW should use long term debt to fond over 60% of its capital budget, 
rather than PGW’s recommended 50/50 approach. I explain why this recommendation would not 
be prudent in another part of this testimony.

PGW Exh. JFG-2A, p3, In. 23.

{L0688313.2} 10



1

2

3

4
5

6

7
8

9

10

11

12

13

14
15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

achieve a bond rating in the “A” category. This would have the effect of lowering 

the interest expense burden on all ratepayers. But the above analysis clearly 

shows why the OCA and the I&E recommendations are simply inadequate.

Q. HAVE YOU EXAMINED THE DIRECT TESTIMONY FILED BY OCA 
WITNESS DR. DAVID HABR IN THIS CASE?

A. Yes, I have.

Q. DO YOU AGREE WITH DR. HABR’S CALCULATION OF PGW’S 
ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE?

A. 1 do not agree that the debt service coverage ratio recommended by Dr. Habr is 

adequate to maintain or improve PGW bond rating. As noted above, PGW 

prudently recommended a ratio in excess of 2.0 times coverage both to be assured 

that PGW can meet its PUC-approved obligations in excess of debt service as 

well as to attempt to achieve a bond rating in the “A” category.

Q. DO YOU AGREE WITH DR. HABR’S ASSESSMENT OF DEBT 
SERVICE RELATED TO A NEW MONEY BOND ISSUE?

A. No, I do not.

Q. CAN YOU PROVIDE MORE INSIGHT INTO THIS DISAGREEMENT?

A. While Dr. Habr notes the recent debt service schedule of PGW’s bond refinancing 

did not result in level debt service he does not take into account, or acknowledge, 

that the debt service of these recent transactions was purposefully uneven to fit 

into PGW’s overall levelization and gradual reduction of future debt service. 

These recent transactions were to refinance bonds, not to issue new money bonds. 

Each of these transactions are accompanied with different financial strategies.

{L0688313.2} 11
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A.

WHAT IS PGW’S STRATEGY REGARDING DEBT SERVICE?

When the City of Philadelphia issues “new money” bonds for PGW, as it plans to

in August 2017, the standard strategy is to provide PGW with level debt service

consistent with its then outstanding debt service obligations.

WHAT EFFECT WOULD MOVING ONE PRINCIPAL PAYMENT FROM 
THE FPFTY TO A FUTURE YEAR HAVE ON PGW?

The effect would be to push, or postpone, the related cash requirement of PGW in

the FPFTY to a time one year later. However, immediately after the postponed

payment is made PGW would be in the same cash position. Making the test year

debt service payment a little lower in the analysis does not provide for adequate

rate relief when the same bill is coming due a year later. This is especially true

when considering that the PUC’s determination of just and reasonable rates

includes a review of PGW’s test year-end and (as a check) projected future levels

of non-borrowed year-end cash.

ARE YOU FAMILIAR WITH THE TESTIMONY OF OSBA WITNESS 
ROBERT KNECHT?

Yes, I am.

PLEASE COMMENT ON MR. KNECHT’S DISCUSSION OF THE 
ACCOUNTING CHANGES RESULTING FROM PGW’S ADOPTION OF 
GASB 68, 71, AND 75.

Mr. Knecht correctly recognizes the dramatic accounting changes caused by the 

adoption of recent accounting pronouncements related to pensions and other post­

employment benefits. It is also apparent that there is a recognition by Mr. Knecht 

that not all of these changes are cash related and therefore will not affect PGW’s 

rate request in this proceeding.

{1.0688313,2} 12
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Q. DOES MR. KNECHT NOTE THE CHANGES IN THE PENSION
ACTUARY’S ASSUMPTIONS FROM THOSE UTILIZED IN THE LAST 
BASE RATE CASE?

A. No, Mr. Knecht states that “it is not clear to me [Mr. Knecht] whether the 

continually rising pension costs are related to the accounting changes, other 

changes that affect the unfunded pension liabilities (e.g., return on fimd asset), the 

Company offering early retirement benefits to manage the size of its workforce, 

or other factors.5’12

Q. IS MR. KNECHT CORRECT THAT PGW HAS NOT PROVIDED
INFORMATION SHOWING WHY ITS PENSION COSTS HAVE RISEN?

A. Not in my opinion. As PGW showed in actuary reports provided in its initial

filing requirements, audited financial statements, and its Financial Report13 it is 

obvious from these documents that PGW was directed to revise its earnings 

assumptions, from 7.95% in the last rate case to 7.65% in FY 2015 and 7.30% in 

FY 2016. These changes alone have served to increase PGW’s unfunded liability 

by tens of millions of dollars because lowering the earnings assumption has the 

effect of lowering the future fund balance. As identified in PGW’s CAFR for FY 

2016 in Note 10 to the financial statements, a mere 1.0% downward movement in 

the earnings rate from 7.3% to 6.3% will increase PGW’s pension liability by 

$91,000,000.14 Additionally, PGW was advised to adopt, and did in fact adopt, 

updated mortality tables. This change reflected the longer lifespan of 

beneficiaries in PGW’s pension plan and resulted in the recognition of the related

OSBA St. No. 1 at 8-9.

PGW Response to Filing Requirements II.A.3; See also, PGW Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report 2015 and 2016 at 7, 57 (relevant portions of which are attached as Exh. JFG-7).

CAFR (PGW Exh. JFG-7) at 58.
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increase in the pension liability. This change is also reflected in Note 10 to 

PGW’s financial statements.15 Accordingly, I don’t believe that there should be 

any question about the appropriateness and reasonableness of the changes in 

pension assumptions.

FORFEITED DISCOUNTS

PLEASE ADDRESS THE RECOMMENDATION OF I&E TO MODIFY 
THE CALCULATION OF FORFEITED DISCOUNTS REVENUE.

On pages 9-12 of I&E Statement No. 3, Mr. Apetoh recommends the use of a

three-year average of the Company’s most recent Historic Fiscal Years 2014,

2015, and 2016 rather than the timeframe used by PGW, which is the three-year

average of Historic Fiscal Years 2012, 2013, and 2014. Use of Mr. Apetoh’s

proposed timeframe would result in an increase in revenues at present rates of

$1,192,000 arising from a higher amount of forfeited discounts, or late payment

charges.

DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. APETOH’S RECOMMENDATION 
REGARDING FORFEITED DISCOUNT REVENUE?

No. Both PGW and I&E used a three year average of forfeited discounts as a

percent of revenues. PGW used the three year average FY 2013 - 2015,

producing a 1.3% relationship, while I&E used the three year average 2014-2016,

fora 1.5% percent (PGW’s projection was made prior to FY2016 data being

available). Importantly, the relationship for FY2017 through April is 1.3%, the

same percentage that PGW used to project FPFTY levels. The 1.3% level appears

to be the norm and the FY2016 level appears to be an outlier. Accordingly, I

Id.

{L0688313.2} 14



1 continue to believe that the use of 1.3% is reasonable and Mr. Apetoh’s 

adjustment should be rejected.2

3
4 VI. COLLECTION RATE

5 Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE THE RECOMMENDATION OF OCA FOR THE
6 USE OF A COLLECTION RATE OF 97%.

7 A. On pages 16-18 of OCA Statement No. 1, Ms. Everette recommends the use of a

8 collection rate of 97%, rather than the 96% collection rate proposed by PGW, for

9 purposes of calculating bad debt expense. This proposal results in an adjustment

10 of $7,928,000.

11 Q. DO YOU AGREE WITH MS. EVERETTE’S RECOMMENDATION?

12 A. No. Although Ms. Everette is correct that the average collection rate in 2015 and

13 2016 was 97.76%, PGW’s proposed 96% collection rate reflects the collection

14 rate that PGW anticipates during the FPFTY. The 96% collection rate is higher

15 than both the four-year average collection rate of 95.14% and the five-year

16 average collection rate of 95.79%, based on Table 4 on page 17 of Ms. Everette’s

17 testimony. In addition, the collection rate for the 2017 Test Year to date through

18 April 2017 is 96.58% on a rolling 24 month basis and 92.4% on a rolling 12

19 month basis.16 Based on this data, as well as the unsettled lien issues that are

20 pending in the Third Circuit Court, it would not be prudent to reduce bad debt

21 expense at this time, particularly as rates are increasing. It is appropriate to use

22 the 96% collection rate proposed by PGW and OCA’s proposal to use a 97%

23 collection rate should be rejected.

PGW Exh. JFG-8.

{L06883I3.2} 15



1 VII. LOBBYING EXPENSE

2 Q. PLEASE RESPOND TO OCA’S RECOMMENDATION TO EXCLUDE
3 PGW’S LOBBYING EXPENSE.

4 A. On page 19 of OCA Statement No. 1, Ms. Everette recommends excluding

5 PGW’s lobbying expense of $228,352 for ratemaking purposes. While I

6 understand and acknowledge the Commission’s general rule with respect to

7 lobbying expense, I respectfully submit that these amounts are reasonable for

8 PGW. PGW is a municipal utility and therefore has an obligation to maintain

9 lines of communication with other parts of government. Moreover, I understand

10 that PGW’s government relations professionals assist in obtaining information

11 and appropriate funding for state and federal programs such as LIHEAP. These

12 efforts directly benefit customers. In fact, since PGW has no shareholders, all of

13 PGW’s lobbying efforts accrue to the benefit of customers. Under these

14 circumstances, I believe that lobbying expense should be deemed a reasonable pro

15 forma expense for PGW.

16
17 VTII. RATE CASE EXPENSE

18 Q. PLEASE RESPOND TO THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF OCA AND I&E
19 TO NORMALIZE RATE CASE EXPENSES OVER A FIVE-YEAR
20 PERIOD.

21 A. On pages 20-21 of OCA Statement No. 1, Ms. Everette recommends that PGW’s

22 rate case expenses be normalized rather than amortized and further proposes a

23 five-year normalization period. On pages 18-23 of I&E Statement No. 2, Mr.

24 Keller likewise recommends that PGW’s rate case expenses be normalized rather

25 than amortized. He suggests that a 61-month normalization period be used.

26
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PGW accepts the parties’ recommendation to normalize rather than 

amortize its rate case expenses. However, PGW continues to believe that the 

proper time period for normalizing these expenses is three years. Depending 

upon the outcome of this proceeding, PGW currently plans to file another rate 

case within three years.

Q. PLEASE ADDRESS OCA’S ASSERTION THAT PGW’S RATE CASE 
EXPENSE IS OVERSTATED.

A. PGW is revising its rate case expense to incorporate most recent information. The 

following was provided in response to OCA-II-6:

Filing Requirement III.A.20. includes 2 amounts for rate case consultants - 

$1,150,000 and $150,000.

The amount of $1,150,000 is based on an earlier estimated scope 

of services to be provided by:

• The Brattle Group related to the cost of service study with related 

testimony, benchmarking research/analysis with related testimony 

and weather trending with related testimony.

• Public Financial Management related to municipal capital markets 

with related testimony.

The amount of $150,000 is mislabeled as “Rate Case Consultants;” 

this amount represents the cost of legal notices for the initial filing, legal 

notices for the public input hearings, printing (e.g. bill inserts, customer 

handouts), and external communications support.

{1.0688313.2} 17
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The following are the updated amounts for the rate case consultant 

amount of $1,150,000 included in the filing requirements:

Brattle - original contract 

Brattle Amendment (5/18/17)

PFM - orginal agreement
PFM amendment (amendment currently in process)
H. Gil Peach and Associates (agreement currently in process)

$ 600,000.00

$ 120,000.00
$ 31,999.00

$ 20,000.00
$ 31,999.00

$ 803,998.00

Please note that OCA incorrectly inferred that $90,000 in expenses were in 

addition to the original Brattle contract amount. The contract provision permits 

expenses totaling 15% of professional fees but they are not in addition to the 

$600,000.

In addition to the $803,998, PGW also expects to incur $150,000 for the 

cost of legal notices for the initial filing, legal notices for the public input 

hearings, printing (e.g. bill inserts, customer handouts), and external 

communications support as set forth in OCA-II-6. Combined with a newly 

revised legal expense of $480,000, PGW now projects the total rate case expense 

is as follows:

PGW Rate Case Expense

Legal Fees, prior year 
Consultant Fees, current year 
Legal Notices, etc.
Legal Fees, current year

Total

$ 7,51517

$ 803,998 
$ 150,00018 

$ 480.000

$1,441,513

See PGW’s response to OCA-II-6. 

See PGW’s response to OCA-II-6.

{L0688313.2} 18



3 year normalization 
Prior 3 year normal claim 
Reduction in pro forma expenses

$ 480,504 
$ 595.000
$ 114,496 ('round to $115,000)

Accordingly, PGW has revised its rate case expense in JFG-l-A and JFG-2-A 

downward by $115,000 (original claim was $595,000).

IX. INCENTIVE COMPENSATION EXPENSE

Q. PLEASE ADDRESS OCA’S RECOMMENDATION TO EXCLUDE PGW’S 
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION EXPENSES.

A. On pages 24-26 of OCA Statement No. 1, Ms. Everette recommends that PGW’s 

$115,000 expense for incentive compensation be excluded for ratemaking 

purposes. In offering this recommendation, Ms. Everette claims that there is a 

lack of well-defined, quantitative goals and criteria upon which the executive 

incentive compensation is based.

Q. DO YOU AGREE WITH OCA’S CONTENTION REGARDING THE 
LACK OF QUANTITATIVE GOALS AND CRITERIA FOR THIS 
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION?

A. No, 1 do not. Incentive compensation is a practice of the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation (PGW’s Board of Directors) and 

is designed to promote the successful completion of annual corporate goals. 

PGW’s corporate goals that were used for determining the incentive 

compensation for fiscal year 2017 are as follows:

CUSTOMER SERVICE
Customer
Satisfaction

Continued improvement in JD Power average annual score 
> Obtain a score of 2% above the 2016 four quarter average of 659 =

672

SAFETY
Reportable
Incidents

> 0 Reportable incidents per year
PUC/PHMSA “Reportable Incidents per year” due to PGW process

{L0688313.2} 19



or procedure failure (To the extent an incident occurred requiring 
notification of PUC/PHMSA that Management believes was not due 
to process/procedure failure. Management will report the 
circumstances to the Board.)

EMPLOYEE
Incidents > OSHA Safety Rate

> Number of PMVA
History:
OSHA 3 yr. average: 5.64 GOAL - 5% below 3 yr. average:

5.35
PMVA 3 yr. average: 72 GOAL - 5% below 3 yr. average:

68
OSHA Safety Rate = multiply the number of recordable cases by 

200,000,
then divide that number by the number of labor hours

FINANCIAL
Revenue
Enhancement

> Additional top line revenue from new business (non-LNG) $7.0M 
History:
FY2014: $7.1M
FY2015: $7.5M
FY2016: $6.5M
3 year average: $7.0M

Collections > Obtain a collection rate of 96.0% of total billed revenues as measured 
on a 24 month rolling average.

OPERATIONS

Cast Iron
Main
Reduction

^ Annual goal for cast iron main reduction is 35 miles with a program 
spend of $53M

1

2 These corporate goals and criteria for 2017 were provided to OCA in discovery.19

3 As the rate case is using a FPFTY, the corporate goals for FY 2018 are not yet

4 available. However, it is anticipated that a similar methodology will be utilized

5 for FY 2018. PGW submits that this information sufficiently supports its claim

6 for incentive compensation expense.

PGW Response to OCA Interrogatory IX-2.
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1 X. INSURANCE EXPENSE

2 Q.
3
4
5

6 A.

7

8

9

10

11 Q.
12

13 A.

14

15
16X1.

17 Q.
18

19 A.

20

21

22

23 Q.

24 A.

25

26

27

PLEASE ADDRESS OCA’S RECOMMENDATION TO EXCLUDE A 
PORTION OF THE INSURANCE COMPONENT OF RISK 
MANAGEMENT EXPENSE WHICH IS PART OF PGW’S TOTAL 
CLAIM FOR ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSE.

On pages 26-27 of OCA Statement No. 1, Ms. Everette recommends the

exclusion of the $250,000 Insurance expense associated with insurance needs 

relating to planned expansion of PGW’s liquefied natural gas plant. Ms. Everette 

contends that this expense should be excluded because the plant expansion may 

not occur.

WHAT IS YOUR RESPONSE TO MS. EVERETTE’S 
RECOMMENDATION?

PGW accepts this adjustment. In JFG-1 and JFG-2 I have adjusted pro forma 

revenues to remove this amount from the FPFTY.

PAYROLL EXPENSE

PLEASE ADDRESS I&E’S PROPOSED REDUCTION TO PGW’S CLAIM 
FOR PAYROLL EXPENSE.

On pages 3-6 of I&E Statement No. 2, Mr. Keller recommends a reduction of 

$2,212,320 to PGW’s claim of $91,530,680 for payroll expense. As explained by 

Mr. Keller, his recommendation excludes 40 positions from the FPFTY to reflect 

the average monthly vacancy rate of 40 positions for the last three years.

DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. KELLER’S PROPOSED ADJUSTMENT? 

No. PGW’s claim for payroll expense in the FPFTY is based on a headcount of 

1,650 employees. Currently (as of June, 2017), PGW has 1,648 employees, with 

the count trending up, and plans to stay at that level, or just two less than the level 

assumed in the FPFTY. The number of vacancies to which Mr. Keller referred.

{L0688313.2} 21



N

1 and on which he based his adjustment actually reflects the expectations of the

2 Company to employ 1,690 individuals. But PGW did not use that expectation in

3 formulating FPFTY payroll expense. Therefore, it would be inappropriate to

4 exclude 40 positions from PGW’s claim for payroll expense and I&E’s proposed

5 adjustment should be rejected.

6 Q.
7

PLEASE RESPOND TO I&E’S PROPOSAL TO REDUCE PGW’S CLAIM 
FOR PAYROLL TAX EXPENSE.

8 A. On pages 6-7 of I&E Statement No. 2, Mr. Keller proposes to reduce PGW’s

9 claim for payroll tax expense by $199,109 to correspond to his recommended

10 adjustment to payroll expense. This adjustment should be likewise rejected for

11 the reasons explained in the answer above regarding PGW’s claim for payroll

12 expense.

13

14 XII. DISTRIBUTION EXPENSE

15 Q.
16

PLEASE ADDRESS I&E’S RECOMMENDED REDUCTION FOR PGW’S 
CLAIM FOR MAINTENANCE CONTRACTORS.

17 A. On pages 7-9 of I&E Statement No. 2, Mr. Keller recommends a $450,000

18 reduction in PGW’s claim for maintenance contractors. This proposed adjustment

19 is based on the normalization of hydrostatic testing, which occurs once every ten

20 years. However, because this expense was incurred during the 2017 Future Test

21 Year, PGW did not include this expense in the FPFTY. Thus, Mr. Keller reduced

22 PGW’s FPFTY claim for an amount that it never claimed, and I&E’s proposed

23 adjustment is unwarranted.

24
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Q. PLEASE ADDRESS I&E’S PROPOSAL TO REDUCE PGW’S CLAIM 
FOR INFORMATION SERVICES.

A. On pages 10-11 of I&E Statement No. 2, Mr. Keller proposes to reduce PGW’s 

claim for information services by $634,163. In support of this recommended 

adjustment, Mr. Keller contends that PGW has not provided supporting 

documentation to show how the allocation of overhead charges was calculated or 

how the increase in per unit cost is determined.

Q. ARE MR. KELLER’S ASSERTIONS REGARDING INFORMATION 
SERVICES CORRECT?

A. No. As PGW Killy explained in I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 6 (PGW Answer to 

OCA-VI-22), information services expenses are overheard charges that are 

applied to various departments and are charged to various operating and capital 

accounts. The methodology used to determine these expenses is directly tied to 

the number of devices, such as computers and phones, that are used (or projected 

to be used) by each department and the unit cost. Importantly, in preparing its 

operating budget, PGW surveys each department and requests that they provide 

their existing levels of services and equipment as well as a projection of how 

those levels will change in the budget year. The data is then used to calculate the 

direct costs for the department. I have attached as Exh. JFG-5 a narrative 

description of the budget allocation model used by PGW. For Information 

Services, approximately $400,000 of the increase in expenses is due to an increase 

in direct allocations year over year for leases, purchases, services, maintenance 

software and department labor, while approximately $155,000 of the increase is 

due to an increase in per unit cost. I submit that PGW fully responded to the 

inquiry and provided sufficient information to establish how the FPFTY

{L0688313.2} 23
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projection was calculated and why it is reasonable. This additional discussion 

should affirm the reasonableness of PGW’s projections.

Q. PLEASE ADDRESS I&E’S PROPOSAL TO REDUCE PGW’S CLAIM 
FOR STREET MACHINERY.

A. On pages 11-12 of I&E Statement No. 2, Mr. Keller proposes to reduce PGW’s 

claim for street machinery by $656,697. Again, Mr. Keller contends that PGW 

has failed to provide supporting documentation to show how the increase was 

calculated or determined.

Q. DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. KELLER’S CONTENTION REGARDING
STREET MACHINERY?

A. No. I note that l&E did not seek supporting documentation in the interrogatory 

that is referenced in l&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 7. As for an explanation of 

these increases, the breakdown is shown in l&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 7 (PGW 

Answer to OCA-VI-23), for a total of $632,697 increase, as follows:

• Mains & Services Miscellaneous Expenses - $23,000

• Maintenance of Mains - $455,000
• Maintenance of Measuring & Regulation Station - $35,000
• Maintenance of Services - $ 120,000

In PGW’s view, this breakdown adequately explains the increases in street 

machinery expenses. In addition, attached as Exh. JFG-6 is a narrative 

description of PGW’s Fleet Allocation Budget Model, which is the basis for 

PGW’s budgeted amounts for street machinery in the FPFTY. This narrative 

shows that PGW starts with its existing level of activity and then carefully 

evaluates that level for changes in the budget period. Accordingly, PGW submits 

that its FPFTY projection for street vehicles is reasonable and well documented 

and I&E’s proposed reduction should be rejected.
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1XIII. COLLECTION EXPENSE

2 Q. PLEASE RESPOND TO I&E’S PROPOSED REDUCTION FOR
3 COLLECTION EXPENSE.
4
5 A. Onpages 13-15 of I&E Statement No. 2, Mr. Keller proposes to reduce PGW’s

6 collection expense by $900,676. In support of this recommendation, he uses the

7 Historical Test Year (“HTY”) amount for PGW’s claim for purchased services

8 and maintains that PGW did not provide documentation to show how the costs

9 associated with an increase in the number of third party collectors and the

10 anticipated use of third party administrator to manage its collections were

11 calculated or determined. To the contrary, I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 10 (PGW

12 Answer to I&E-RE-42), explains each element of the projected increases, noting

13 that increasing from five to ten third party collection agencies would increase

14 PGW’s costs by $400,000, and that the Company’s projected cost of contracting

15 with a third party administrator would result in an increase of $500,000. It is not

16 clear to me what additional information PGW could have provided to show how

17 this projection was determined. It may be that Mr. Keller is seeking the kind of

18 documentary evidence that would be produced in an audit; such a standard of

19 proof is clearly not appropriate when making projections for a fully projected test

20 year. Therefore, I&E’s proposed adjustment should be rejected.
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1 XIV. CUSTOMER SERVICE EXPENSE

2 Q. PLEASE ADDRESS THE I&E PROPOSAL TO REDUCE CUSTOMER
3 SERVICE EXPENSE.
4
5 A. On pages 15-16 of I&E Statement No. 2, Mr. Keller proposes to reduce customer

6 service expense in the amount of $331,244, claiming that PGW has not provided

7 supporting documentation to show how the increase in per unit cost of equipment

8 was determined. To the contrary, I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 11 (PGW Answer

9 to OCA-VI-27), provides the reason for this increase, explaining increases that

10 were actually incurred on a per unit basis to purchase computers, monitors,

11 printers, etc. Again, the question requests a “breakdown and explanation,” which

12 PGW provided. If Mr. Keller found this answer wanting he could have asked

13 PGW for additional back-up, which it has. Therefore, I&E’s proposed adjustment

14 appears to be seeking a level of “proof’ that cannot be provided in future

15 projections and should be rejected.

16

17 XV. ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT EXPENSE

18 Q. PLEASE RESPOND TO I&E’S RECOMMENDATION TO REDUCE
19 PGW’S CLAIM FOR ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT EXPENSE.
20
21 A. On pages 16-17 of I&E Statement No. 2, Mr. Keller proposes to reduce PGW’s

22 claim for account management expense by $294,483, using the HTY amount for

23 purchased services. This recommendation is based on his claim that PGW has not

24 provided supporting documentation to show how the increases in the inflationary

25 costs and costs associated with bill printing and processing vendor contracts were

26 determined.
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IN YOUR VIEW, IS MR. KELLER CORRECT THAT THIS 
EXPLANATION IS DEFICIENT?

No. To the contrary, I&E Exhibit No. 2, Schedule 12 (PGW Answer to I&E-RE- 

25-D) explains the inflationary cost increases and expansion of services 

associated with the renewals of PGW’s bill print and remittance processing 

vendor contracts. Again, given that these are projections of expenses in a year 

that has yet to begin, I believe that PGW’s detailed explanation and breakdowns is 

more than adequate. Therefore, I&E’s proposed adjustment should be rejected.

PENSION EXPENSE

PLEASE ADDRESS I&E’S RECOMMENDATION TO DISALLOW 
$3,000,000 IN PENSION EXPENSES.

On pages 23- 26 of I&E Statement No. 2, Mr. Keller recommends disallowance of 

$3,000,0000 in pension expenses in the debt service coverage calculation, which 

represents the pension fund amount included in determining a higher debt service 

coverage ratio. In making this recommendation, Mr. Keller is seeking to allow 

PGW to claim only the cash contribution into the pension plan in the FPFTY.

CAN YOU COMMENT ON MR. KELLER’S POSITION?

I agree with Mr. Keller’s observation - but not his quantification of the 

adjustment. PGW inadvertently omitted removing $1,971,000 in additional 

pension expense when calculating the Debt Service Coverage calculation; 

however, Mr. Keller referenced the FY 2017 additional pension expense of 

$3,000,000 instead of the FY 2018 additional pension expense of $1,971,000 in 

his testimony (see PGW’s response to question I&E-RE-34). Consequently, non­

cash expenses found on Exhibit JFG-l-A page 3, line 11, should increase from
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13
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17 XVII.

18 Q.
19
20
21 A.

22

23

$78,214,000 in the FPFTY 2018 to $80,185,000. The Debt Service Coverage 

calculation will then increase by 2 basis points from 1.51x to 1.53x (at present 

rates).20

PLEASE RESPOND TO I&E’S CLAIM THAT UNFUNDED PENSION 
LIABILITY IS INCLUDED IN THE REVENUE REQUIREMENT.

On pages 26-27 of I&E Statement No. 2, Mr. Keller claims that although PGW’s

request to recover unfunded pension liability is not included in the revenue

requirement as a traditional expense item, the Company has requested coverage

for a portion of the unfunded pension liability as part of its rationale for higher

debt service coverage ratio.

DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. KELLER ON THIS POINT?

Yes. As I indicated above PGW inadvertently failed to exclude $1,971,000 as a 

non-cash item for pension expense when calculating its debt service coverage. As 

indicated above, PGW’s revised financial statements removes this amount from 

the debt service coverage calculation (Exh. JFG-l-A In. 11).

HEALTH INSURANCE FUNDING

PLEASE RESPOND TO I&E’S RECOMMENDATIONS CONCERNING 
HEALTH INSURANCE FUNDING.

On pages 27-30 of I&E Statement No. 2, Mr. Keller recommends that: (i) the 

Commission instruct PGW to re-establish the Health Insurance Escrow Fund; (ii) 

the funds deposited in the Health Insurance Escrow Fund be restricted for use in

Please note that while I agree that this item should not be included in the calculation of the debt 
service coverage, it, nonetheless is an item that PGW must remit. Accordingly, I have shown it as 
an obligation that must be satisfied from Net Available after 1998 Debt Service on pages 8 and 9, 
of this Testimony.
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24 Q.

25 A.

funding medical claims and health insurance administrative costs; (iii) the 

Company be required to provide actuarial reports and historical escrow account 

performance data for each intervening test year leading up to the Company’s next 

base rate case; and (iv) the Company secure competitive health insurance quotes 

from the insurance industry at least biennially.

WHAT IS PGW’S POSITION WITH RESPECT TO RECREATING A 
HEALTH ESCROW ACCOUNT?

PGW is willing to establish a health escrow account but doing so will add to 

PGW’s revenue requirement as, by its very nature, the health escrow will have to 

be set aside and will not be able to be used to cover other obligations. 

Accordingly, PGW has added an additional $1,167,000 to the revenue 

requirement to frmd this account over the next three years to produce a fund of 

$3,500,000. PGW’s collective bargaining agreement restricts PGW to use certain 

carriers for health care so PGW’s ability to alter its health insurance carrier is 

limited. Additionally, since PGW is self-insured with a stop-loss program in 

place PGW is not certain that obtaining competitive health insurance quotes will 

result in material changes in its health care costs. However, the Commission 

should be assured that PGW and its health care advisors are continually analyzing 

various options to determine whether costs can be reduced. That is how PGW 

came to adopt a self-insurance model which, as was explained in Mr. Moser’s 

direct testimony, reduced PGW health care costs by tens of millions of dollars.

CONCLUSION

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY?

Yes.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS p'«£'Rall!*
STATEMENT OF INCOME Pjgo 1

(Dollars In Thousands)

Revise o REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED
30-YR HDD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HDD 10-TR HOD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HOD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HOD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HDD

ACTUAL ACTUAL 6U0GST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST LINE
wn 7015-16 2tl8-i2 2017-18 An.MIST 2017-16 2B3M.9 W.JUS.T 2016-20 ADJUST 2019-20 2020-21 ADJUST 2020-21 2021-22 ADJUST 2021-22

OPERATING REVENUES
S 30,753 8 26.425 * 26,230 s 6 26.230 8 25.378 s 8 25,378 $ 24.494 8 8 24,494 $ 23,651 S S 23,651 5 22.573 $ $ 22.873 1.

Gw Trtrepoit Service 39,962 38,550 45,674 44,614 44,614 46,222 46,222 47.594 47.594 48,853 48,853 50,055 50,055 2.
3 Heeong 616,164 472.275 524.234 534.832 534,832 543.666 543,666 552.484 552,484 561,520 561,520 571,396 . 571,396 3
4. No/mafeatori Adjustmonf (10,747) 41,479 5,905 - 4

(2.105) 1673 315 315 104 104 83 119 119 109 109 5.
676,027 572,347 603,911 605,991 805,991 615,370 615,370 624,655 624,655 634.143 634,143 644.433 644.433 6.

7. Appliance Repair & Ohar Revenuoa 8,727 7,962 8,162 6,265 9,265 8.34? 8,347 8,431 8.431 8,515 6,515 8,601 6,601 7.
12.493 12 757 12.757 12.903 12.603 13 n44 13 044 13 166 13 1ftfi 13339 13.339 8
21.220 21 022 21.022 21.250 21 250 21 475 21.475 21 701 7i 7ni 71 iwn 21 040 9.

10. Total Operating Revenue* 697,247 591237 625.116 627,013 827.013 636,620 636,620 646.130 648.130 655,644 655,644 666,373 666.373 10.
OPERATING EXPENSES

tv 252,156 146,515 176,731 164.960 184,960 191,471 191,471 197,806 197,808 204.516 204,516 211,904 211.904 IT,
11 8 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 12.

13. Sub»Total Fuel 252.169 146,524 176,741 164,970 184,970 191,461 191.461 197,616 197,818 204,526 204,526 211,914 211.914 13.

14 CONTRIBUTION MARGINS 445,076 444,713 446.375 442,043 442,043 448,139 445.139 446.312 448,312 451,316 451,316 454,459 464.459 14
15 16,160 17,948 17,666 17,521 17,521 17,637 17.B37 18,216 18.216 18.457 16,457 18,857 16,657 15.
16. 36,674 36.276 39.369 40.340 40,340 41,299 41,299 42.096 42,096 42.611 42,611 43,456 43.456 , 16.
17. 36,629 37,173 41,690 42,562 42.562 43,528 43,526 44,358 44,358 44.925 44,925 45.824 45.624 17.

3,457 3,341 4.354 4.420 4,420 4,519 4.519 4.609 4,609 4.651 4,651 4.695 4,695 16
19. Customer Service 12,262 12,432 13,503 13.607 13,807 14,126 14.126 14,408 14,408 14,627 14,627 14.919 14.919 19.
20. Account Menagement 7,735 7,571 8,399 8,467 8,487 8,671 8,671 5,644 8,844 8.977 6,977 9.157 9,157 20.

34,633 27,133 30,654 26,956 26,956 27,639 27,639 28,347 28,347 28,604 28,604 28,634 28,634 21.
6.956 3,671 4.355 4,439 4,439 4,538 4,538 4,625 4,625 4.694 4,694 4,785 4,785. 22.

60,253 67,139 69.025 66.334 (365) 65.969 66,160 (115) ' 66,045 67,162 (115) 87,047 67,518 67,516 68,595 68.595 23
24 51,051 53,370 58,305 30,611 30,811 33.641 33.641 36,627 36.627 39,680 38,660 43,424 43.424 24.
25. 2.045 2.045 1,696 1.696 927 927 997 997 25.
26. CeptUteeO Fringe Benefrta (6.669) (10,077) (11,537) (11.620) (11,620) (12,238) (12238) (12,937) (12,937) (13,744) • (13.7441 (14.613) (14.613) 26
27. CapiUlaed Adminstrasve Chaigea (9,097) (10.778) (15,791) (12.945) (12.9451 (13,738) (13.738) (13,409) (14,032) (14.032) (15,579) (15.578) 27

43,746 62,336 65,022 51,600 51.800 40,308 40,308 39,676 22.681 22,691 20,363 20,363 26
7,623 7,521 6232 6,437 8,437 6,647 8,647 6,821 8,821 8,997 6.997 9,177 9,177' 29.

30. Omer Poal Emrtoymenl BenafiB 6,726 9.929 6,632 31,026 31,026 29.663 29,663 26.023 26,023 26,045 26,045 23.683 23,683 30.
31.

32. Sub-ToU Other OperOng & Mantcnance 310.570 324,985 337,805 322,377 (365) 322,012 316,645 (115) 316.530 321,164 (115) 321.049 306,028 306.026 306.594 306.594 32
46,474 47,894 46,842 50,596 50,596 52.436 52,436 54,244 54,244 56,019 56.019 57,627 57.827 33.

2.B97 3,785 4,100 4,100 4,100 4,100 4,100 4.100 4,100 4.100 4,100 4,100 4,100 34.
(7,616) (7,562) (7,562) (7 579) (7,579) (7219) 17,218) (7.168) (7.1861 35.

43 787 46 171 47.160 47.180 46 974 46.974 SO 765 50.765 S? 900 57 900 54 741 54 741 36.
354.357 369.192 385 61D (115) 365 504 371.929 (11S) 371.814 3S8 926 356.926 361.335 361.335 37.

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 606,526 516.957 560,717 554,527 (365) 554,162 557,100 (115) 556,965 569,747 (115) 569,632 563,456 563,456 573,249 573.249 36.
OPERATING INCOME 90,721 74,280 64.399 72.466 365 72,651 79,520 115 79.635 78,383 115 76,498 82,386 92.368 93.124 63,124 39

3.764 3 031 3 031 2664 2684 ?«7B 2 679 3291 3.291 2.890 800 40.
41. INCOME BEFORE INTEREST 34,505 75,673 67,297 75,517 365 75,682 62,204 115 62,319 79,262 115 79,377 95,679 95,679 96,014 66.014 41.

INTEREST
45,756 40,295 44,834 49.160 49,160 46,807 46,807 48,736 50,601 42.

7,446 3,966 (4,059) (6.893) (6893) (6,252) (6,252) (5,519) (5.519) (4.784) (4.764) (4,004) (4,004) 43
44. AFUOC (781) (1.120) (1.136) (620) (920) (985) (985) (964) (984). (997) (997) (1.030) (1.030) 44

4 100 4 47R 6081 5 666 5686 5 300 5.300 4 694 4 490 4 490 4 072 45.
56 523 45 720 47013 . 47.013 44 870 44.870 47 149 47.149 49310 49310 46 604 46.604 48

NET INCOME 37.962 29.054 21.577 26.504 368 26.689 37.334 115 37.449 32.113 115 32.226 46.369 48J69 49210 49.210 47.
18 000 16 000 18 000 18 000 16 000 18000 18 000 18 000 16000 18 000 18.000 16.000 46

49 NET EARNNGS S 19.982 8 10.054 6 i.S// 5 10.504 $ 365 8 10.669 % 19,334 8 115 S 19.449 S 14113 8 11$ 8 14.226 > 26.369 $ 5 26.369 S 31.210 i » 31-210 49.



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Dollars in Thousands)

P'esnt False 
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REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED

30-YR H00 10-YRHDO 10-YR HOD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HDD IQeYR HOD 10-YR HOD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HOD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HDD
ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST UNE

NO. 2014:15 ?nift.1« 2fi3kU 2017-18 An. II 1ST 2017iU 2618119 ADJUST 201849 Z9iSi20 An.rusT 2.019-20 2020-21 &Q44ST 2020-21 20.2m ADJUST 2021-22 NO.

SOURCES
S 37.982 5 28.054 S 21.577 t 28.504 8 365 8 28.869 5 37,334 J 115 S 37,449 5 32.113 S 115 1

53.258 50,371 45,049 47.000 47.000 49.114 49,114 51.246 51.246 53,350 53,350 55,518 55.518 2

3. Earnings on Restricted Funds Wlnsaws^No Witndmval) 7,051 23 (1,663) (1.324) (T324) (958) (858) (1.133) (1.133) (1.224) (1.224) (1.104) (1.104) 3
2,700

Increa&e^Decreftted) Other Assets/LlabUt&es
Avaiatie From Operaoons

29 078 (5.274) (16 246) <18 2461 (31091) (46 024) 153.725)

6. 121.887 106,657 96,741 68,906 365 69.271 87,244 ns 67,359 51.635 115 £1,750 52,471 52.471 . 49.899 49.699 6.

7. Orawdown of Bond Proceed* 65.000 52.000 52,000 57,000 57,000 55,000 55.000 57.000 57,000 59.000 59,000 7.

s. Rdoaae of Restricted Fund Assets 8.562 8,673 6

e. Release of Bond Proceeds to Pay Tempoieiy Financing 71.000 ’
10. Temporary Fmancaftd 41 000

160.54U 154 330 232.741 120 906 365 121.271 124 244 115 124 359 106 635 115 106 750 109 471 109 471 106 699 106 699 IT

USES
85,499 100.333 132.632 109,010 109.010 115,628 115,626 113,149 113,149 117.009 117,009 120,995 120.996 12.

12-A Depout into RestncteO HeaRh Escrow Fi/nd 1.167 1,167 1,167 1,167
13.503

14. Revenue Bonds 62,190 53,825 34.790 51,634 51.834 47,747 47,747 62.905 44,094

15. Temporary Financing Repayment 71,000 15.

18. Distribution of Earning* 16,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18.000 18.000 18.000 16.000 16.000

(2.783)

18.000 18,000 18.000 16.000

175

16

17.Non-Cean Working Capital 4756 (37.7381 473 423 1.149 1.148 (2.763)

151,956 176,814 216.664 179,267 1,167 180,434 182.624 1.167 183,691 191.271 1,167 192.438 178.629 178.529 196,920 196.920 10

Cash Surpius(Snortfal) (22 5841 14.057 158 361) 1802) (59,163) 156 280) (T0S2) (59,332) (84,636) (1.052) (85.688) (69.058) (69.0561 166 0711 186 021) 19
160.549 154.330 232741 120.908 365 •!31 Yn 124 244 115 124.359 106 635 115 106.750’ 100 471 109.471 106 699 108 899

105,734 114.327 91.743 105,600 >05,600 47,439 (802) 48,637 (10.841) (1,854) (12.695) (95.477) (2.906) *(98.363) (164.535) (2.906) (167,441) 21.

Cash* Surplus(Shorfsl} B 593 122 5841 14.057 158 3611 (802) (59.163) (58 280) (1.052) (59.332) (84,636) (1.052) (65.686) (69 058) (69 0561 168 021) 188 021) 22

4 114.327 1 91>43 105.600 T 47435“ S 18021 s 46.837 i 110.8411 * (1,854) * (12,895) i I9S.4W1 8 12.906) 8 (98,8831 S (164.535) 5 (2.906) t (167.441) 8 (282,555) 5 (2.906) 8 (255,461) 23

24. Outstanding Commercial Paper - 24.
30,000 71,000

32.541 30,579 30.579 30,895 30,695 31.214
31,735 33,080 35,091 26.431 26,431 27,733 27,733 26.935 26,935 28,491 28,491 30,150 30,150 27.

28 TOTAL IGF * In elemental DSJC Revenue 45,499 59.333 87,632 57,010 57,010 58,628 58,628 56.149 58,149 60,009 60.009 61,996 61,996 26.



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS Pr^"'

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE J p.gi i
(Dollars in Thousands)

REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED
30-YR HOD 10-YRH0D 10-YR HDD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HOD 10-YR HDD

WF ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST U&
NO.

FUNDS PROVIDED
2014-15 3015:13 7016-17 2017:18 ADJUST 2017-15 2019-19 ADJUST 2018-19 2019-20 EBJiLSI zaifew 2020-21 ADJUST 2020-21 2021-22 ADJUST 2021-22 US.

1. Total Gas Revenuat S 576.027 5 572,347 9 603.911 5 605.991 3 t 605.991 S 615,370 S S 515.370 S 624.655 9 5 624.655 S 634,143 $ 8 634,143 S 644.433 8 i 644.433 1.
2. Other Operating Revenue* 21.220 18 990 21.205 2107? 21.022 ?i ?sn 21 750 21.475 21.475 21.701 21.701 21 94Q 21 940 2.
3 Total Operaing Revenue* 897.247 591.237 625,118 627,013 627.013 639,620 636,620 646,130 646.130 655,944 655,944 666,373 665.373 3
4 Otter Income Inci /{Deer )Restncted Funds 10.535 1,416 1,235 1.707 1.707 1,726 1,726 1.745 1,746 2.067 2.067 1.796 1,756 4.
s CHy Grant - 5

7B1 1 120 1 020 070 90S 08S 064 0A4 007 M7 1 030 1.030 6
7. TOTAL FUNDS PROVIDED 705.553 593,773 627,487 829.B40 629,640 539,331 639.331 548.940 649.840 658.908 656,908 669.169 G&9.169 7.

FUNDS APPLIED
6 252,189 146,524 176,741 164.970 194,970 191,461 101,461 197.618 197,819 204.529 204,528 211.914 211.614 a.
9 354.357 370 433 393 975 389 557 (365) 369.19? 365 619 (115) 365.504 371 929 1115) 371.814 359 978 356.928 361 335 361.335 9

10 Total Opemns Expenus 609.525 516,957 560,717 554,527 (365) 554,162 557,100 (US) SS6.99S 569.747 (115) 569.632 563,456 563.456 573,249 573,249 10.
74 535 99 059 92 630 78214 1971 50 185 69 463 1 554 70 017 69 770 1.141 70 011 55 503 613 56.115 55 924 97 56.021 11.

12 TOTAL FUNDS APPLIED 531.991 427,998 466.067 476,313 (2.336) 473.977 499,637 {1,660) 496.968 499.977 (1.256) 498.721 507,953 (613) 507,340 517,325 (97) 517,228 12.

13 Funds Available 10 Cover Debt Service 176.872 165,675 159,400 153,327 2.336 155.663 150.894 1,659 152,363 146,693 1.259 150,119 150.955 613 151,568 151,664 97 151,961 13.

14. 1975 Oranance Bonds Debt Senwe 29.904 14.
15. Debt Service Coverage 1975 Bonds e.57 IS

IS. Net Availablo sllor Prior Debt Service 149.955 165,675 159,400 153,327 2,336 155,663 150,694 1.669 152,363 146,663 1.259 150.119 150.955 613 151,568 151,864 97 151.061 16
Equipment Leasing Debt Service 17.

ia. Net Available enar Prior Capital Leases 149.969 165,675 159,400 153.327 2,336 155,663 150.694 1.669 152.363 148,963 1.259 150.119 150.955 613 151,568 151,864 97 151.981 18

19 1995 Oranance Bonds Debt Senice 70.139 77,897 69,999 101.720 . 101,720 95,276 95.276 87,858 97.956 05.459 95,459 106,342 106.342 19
20.

21. Tolal 1998 Ordnance Oebl Serwce 70.13B 77,867 66.666 101.720 101,720 95,276 95,276 97,858 97.859 95.459 95,459 106,342 106,342 21.

22. Debt Service Coverage 1998 Bonds 2.14 2.13 2.38 1.51 0.02 1.53 1.56 0.02 1.60 1.S2 0.01 1.53 1.68 0.01 1.59 1.43 0.00 1.43 22.

23. Net AvaSaHe liter 1998 Debt Servic* 79.929 88,006 92.532 51.907 2,336 53,943 S5.418 1.669 67.067 51,005 1.256 52.261 55.496 613 56.109 45.522 97 45.619 23

24 Aggregate Debt Service 97,043 77.667 59.565 101,720 101,720 95,276 95.276 97,856 97.556 05.459 95,459 105.342 106,342 24
25 Debt Service Coverage (Combined tens) 1.92 213 2.38 1.51 0.02 1.53 1.58 0 02 1.60 1.52 0.01 1.53 1.58 0.01 1.59 1.43 0.00 1.43 25.
25. Debt Service Coverage (Combined Hens wrn 51^.0 City Fee) 1.64 1.90 2.11 1.33 0.02 IAS 1.39 0.02 1.41 1.34 0.01 1.36 1.39 0.01 1.40 1.28 0.00 1.26 25
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
BALANCE SHEET

(Dollars In Thousands)

REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED
JO-YR HOD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HDO 10-YR HOD 1D-YR HDO 10-YR HDD 10-YR HOD 10-YR HOD 10-YR HOD 10-YR HDO 10-YR HOD

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST
NO.

ASSETS
8I31I1S films arnut Ani/1* An MIST MU'* 141(19 ArviliRT 4(31119 R/lltffl Ami 1ST 4(31(20 4(31(21 ADJUST «'31(71 4(31(22 ADJUST 4(31(22 NQ.

1. UtAty Plant Net 1.232.370 1.284.010 1.368 600 1.427.014 1.427.014 1,490,206 1,400.206 1.549,111 1,549,111 1.610,101 1.610,101 1,673,270 1.673.270 MW*9
2. Snkjng Fund Reserve &0.141 90,082 105,196 109,253 106253 107,320 107.320 120.249 120.246 121.456 121,456 122,678 122.676 mww
3. Capita* improvement Fund

Workers’ Compensation Fund
113.603 61.664 61.664 4.742 4.742 117,435 117,435 60.431 60.431 1,295 1.295 “***

». & Health Insurance isctsw 5,920 2,003 2,610 2,616 1.167 3,793 2.629 2.334 4,963 2,642 3,501 6,143 2,662 3,501 6,163 2,662 3.501 6.183
5 Cm*

Accounts Recev^M
114.327 91,743 1O5.SO0 47.439 (602) 46,637 (10,641) (1,894) < 12,695) (95.477) (2.906) (96,363) (164.535) (2,906) (167,441) (252,555) (2.906) (255.461) mm

6. GfiB 162,433 142.435 136,100 133.166 133.164 129,666 129,666 126,572 126.572 122,911 122.911 119,684 119,664 #*#*#
7. Other USD 2.046 1.300 1.525 1,525 1,550 1,550 1,575 1.575 1,600 1,600 1,625 1,625 *****
6. Accroad Gea Revaruee 6.199 3.365 5.041 5.356 5.356 5,460 5,460 5.543 5,543 5.662 6.662 5.771 5.771 *****
9. Reserve for Uncole T&Je (102,023) (74.296) (71,690) (70,464) (70.494) (66,605) (69.605) 167.6131 (67.813) (66 338) (66 336) (64.660) (64.660) WC09
mnta Total Accounts RecsiviBie. 86,653 73.563 70.751 69,565 69.565 67.661 67.691 65.877 65.877 63.935 63.835 02,180 62.160
mm Matonab 8 Suppte* 50.008 47.891 47.005 49,220 49.220 50,734 50,734 52,002 52.002 53.509 53,509 54.872 54.872 F9HMH
rnm Otnei Current Assets 460 1.642 455 459 459 463 463 467 467 471 471 475 475 IHUFMI
##*•* Deferred Debto 13.135 29.376 4.702 4,967 4.997 4,469 4.469 4,464 4,464 4,346 4.346 4,311 4.311
MffWS Unemortzed Bond lieuance Expense 3.473 912 393 341 341 303 303 270 270 241 241 215 215 aaa#a
mm UnamcrUeO Loss or. Reacomrea DeOt 30.953 53.646 47.865 42,199 42,199 36,899 36,699 32,005 32,005 27,515 27,515 23,443 23.443 «#tx#
map# Oelened Erwronmertal 29,609 24.425 26,767 28.767 28,767 26,722 28.722 25.026 25.026 24.099 24,099 23.102 23.102 aaaa*
###•# Defened Pension Outfowe 78.129 99.043 41,908 13,952 13,952 - **!<»■
P«#M Other Assets 35 503 24.357 36.720 40.604 40.604 42.007 42.007 43.376 43.370 44 799 44 799 46.219 46.216 aaaaa
PP#P# TOTAL ASSETS 1,77VB81 TETTSSJ" ' 1 977.455“ T5557SB- 1 645.645 446 1.824.044 1.817.446 1.916 043 VkS.&l? 1.S28.5J7 #####

rnuirva ctAmi itifs
PPSP# City^QV^y 277.964 294.038 30.427 40.931 365 41.296 60,265 480 60.745 74.378 595 102,747 595 103.342 , 133.957 595 134.552 #*##»
mm Revenue Bones 915.175 837,630 1,073,041 1,021.200 1,021,208 973.460 973,460 1,090.557 1,090,557 1.046,473 1.046.473 958.724 886.724 mmm

TECAActnusns
mm Unamortned Discount (747) (110) (875) (825) (925) (778) (776) (732) (732) (686) (666) (641) (641) 99*99
caacd Unamorued Prenum 43.360 68.703 79.667 69.303 69.303 60.595 60.395 52.623 52.623 45,389 45.369 38.938 36.936 99999
mtm Long Term Debt 957,748 926,423 1.150,033 1,089,686 1,089,666 1,033,277 1.033.277 1,142,448 1,142,446 1.091.176 1,091,176 1,027,021 1,027,021 99999
•mm Notes Payable 30,000 71.000 99999
FSMS Account! Payable 58,027 55.870 56,064 87.221 57.221 57,434 57,434 56,011 56.011 56.216 86,216 56.144 56.144 99999
PPM# Customer Deposits 2.658 3.308 3,000 2.970 2.970 2.747 2,747 2.630 2,630 2.519 2.519 2.413 2,413
mtm Other Current Usbllttles 6.196 7,782 4.930 4,932 4,932 4.930 4,936 4,941 4,941 4,946 4.940 4,922 4,922 ■■mm
map# Pension Jabtty 239,869 296.093 291.293 285,870 265,970 290,051 280.051 274.416 274.416 267,534 267,534 260.360 260,360'
mtm Deferred Credits 7.895 5,999 2.091 4,497 4,497 2,791 2.791 2.018 2.016 2.084 2.064 2.060 2,060 ejmaia
pacpp Deferred Pension inflows 11.653 2,613 2.613 11,120 11,120 12.290 12.290 12.302 12,302 #«##s
asm Accrued Interest 6,709 2.908 15.564 14,639 14.939 14,117 14,117 17,903 17.903 17,129 17,129 16,303 16.303 «•*#*

3.342 3.609 5.978 4.100 4,100 4,631 4.631 5,170 5,170 5.696 5.696 6,228 6.226 #***#
mtm Accrued Dstlbutien to City 3.000 3.000 3,000 3.000 3,000 3.000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3.000 3.000 3,000 99989
«*## OdierUsblAes 166,400 149,923 414,298 387.334 397 334 357,502 357,502 323.413 323.413 283 596 •283.595 237.432 237.432 MUftm
amee TOTAL ECUITY a UABILITIES '.8l3 56i 564 t.42J 564 ' nnrnr 095 1.8)6.643 (‘.848 832 595 1,849.527 (.762.152 —55T 99999

CAWTAUZATION
tap## Total CspjU&ation 1.235.732 1,214.46) 1,181,260 1,130.617 365 1,130,982 1,093,542 480 1,094,022 1,218,826 595 12)7.421 1,193.923 595 1,194,518 1,160,970 595 1,151,573 99999
tmm Total Long Term Dett 957,748 926.423 1,150,633 1,089.666 1.099.686 1,033,277 1.033.277 1.142.448 1,142.446 1,091,176 1,091,176 1,027,021 1,027.021 99999
mtm Debt to Eoiarr Rabo 77 50% 76 28% 97.42% 96 38% •0 03% 66.35% 94.49% •0 04% 94.45% 93 69% •0.05% 93.64% 91 39% •0.05% 91.35% 06.46% -0 05% 66.42% 99999
*##» CeprUteatronRano 345 3.22 37.82 29.92 1D24| 2639 17.15 (0 14) 17,01 15.36 (0 12) 1524 1062 (OCtir 10.56 767 (0 03) 763 mtm
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
STATEMENT OF INCOME

(Dollars in Thousands)

m
OPERATING REVENUES 

1. Norvhieatmfl
2 Gas Transport Serves
3 Keating
4 Rertnw* Ennanscmeru; Cost RMuct«n

4>A Health Escrvw Fund Surcharge
5 Wuttef NomsUMien A^ustmert
0 UnMiM AcQuslmcnt
7, Total Gas Revenues
6. Appliance Repair & Other Revenue*
9 Other Operating Revenues

to Totel Other Opening Revenues
11, Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
12 Natural Ges
13 Other Ren Metenel
14 Sub-TcOl Fuel
15 CONTRI6UTJON MARGINS
15. Gas Proeesse^g
17. Field Service*
IS OfstnteKn
19 Cotecuon
2D. Cuslomer Service
21. Account Management
22. Sad Debt Ejvense
23. Marketing
24. Adminrsirelive & General
25. KeaflMnaieTOt
26. Envu^menlal
27. CspddMd Fimpe BehefU 

Amaittzalion ol Resductumg Costs 
Pensions 
Tans
0T EkAtng Ceraobdapon * Cost / (Savings)
Cost/Labor Scvrigs
Sub-Total Other OptfUng 4 Maintenance 
Oepreo*t«n 
CosJct Rerrw*
To Ceanng Accounts 

Net Depreatfori
8ub>Totai other Operating Eipenst*

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 
OPERATING INCOME 
Merest Gabi / (Lota) and Other bwom 

INCOME BEFORE INTEREST
INTEREST 
Long-Term Debt 
Othe'

45. AFU3C
45 Lo«s From EttngusNnenlef DeU
47. Total Merest
46. NET INCOME
49 City Payment
50 NET EARNINGS

REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED
W.TR MOO 1Q.YRHDO 16.TR HOT 10-YR HOD 10-YR HOD 10-YR H00 10-YR MOO 10-YR HOD 10-YR HOD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HOD

ACTUAL HTV FTY FPFTY FPFTV FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST
WV4--1* 71116.16 2016*17 8017-11 ARII 1ST >■>17.18 2916-19 ArVUIRT ?l>1fl.?ft ADJUST 2019^0 >070-71 an hist >n?i.» AP7UST 2M1-K NO.

% 30753 S 21.873 6 26.426 J 26230 S 1 26.230 $ 25,378 $ S 25.378 S 24,494 i S 24.494 S 23,651 i 3 23.651 $ 22,873 i * 22.673 1.
39962 36550 45,574 44,614 44.614 46,222 46.222 47,594 47,594 49.853 48,853 50.055 50.05$ 2.

616.164 472375 524.234 534,632 534.832 543,666 $43,666 552.484 552.484 561520 561.520 571,396 571,396 3
70.000 70,000 70.000 70,000 70,on 70.000 70.000 70.000 70CC0 .70,000 4

1.167 1,167 1.167 1.16T 1,167 1.167 4*A
(10.747) 41,479 S.90S 5

114 104 104 S3 63 119 119 109 109 6
676.077 572347 603,911 675991 1,167 677,156 665.370 1.167 686,537 694.655 1.167 695.622 704,143 704.143 714.433 714,433 7,

6,727 7,962 8,162 6.265 6.265 8.347 8.347 6.431 8.431 8,515 8.515 8.601 6.601 8
10 926 13 023 12 757 12.757 12.903 12903 13044 13D44 13166 13.186 13339 13 339 9

21 SO 1*A90 ?1 TTtt 21022 21.02? 21 250 21.250 21 475 21 476 21 701 21.701 21 940 21 940 10,
697,247 591.237 525.116 697.013 1,167 696.180 706,620 1,167 707,767 716,130 1,167 717^97 725,644 725.844 736.373 736,373 11.

262.166 145,515 176,731 184,960 184,950 191.471 191,471 197.606 197,608 204.516 204.518 211.904 211.604 - 12.
9 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 13

2S2.169 146.524 176,741 184,970 184,970 191,461 191,461 197.618 197,816 204.528 204,526 211,914 211,914 14
446.076 444,716 44M76 512JK3 1.167 S13J10 316.139 1.187 616,909 816.912 1,197 61647* 821,31* *2141* 824,45* 824,481 IS

16.160 17,948 17.666 17,521 17.521 17,837 17.63? 16,216 16216 18.457 18,457 16.857 16.657 IS
36.674 36.276 39.369 40,340 40.340 41.299 41.299 42.096 42D96 42.511 42,611 43,456 43,456 17.
36,629 37,173 41.690 42,562 42,562 43.526 43.528 44.3S8 44,358 44 925 44.925 45,624 45.824 16
3.457 3 341 4.354 4.420 4.420 4,519 4.619 4.609 4,609 4.851 4,651 4.605 4.695 19

12.262 12.432 13.503 13,607 13,807 14.12$ 14.126 14.406 14.406 14.627 14.627 14,919 14919 X.
7.735 7,571 8399 6.467 8.467 8.671 9.671 6.644 6.644 0.977 8.977 9.157 9,157 21.

34.633 27,133 30,654 30,073 30,073 30,764 30.784 31,524 31 524 31.984 31,904 31,967 3156? 22.
6366 3.571 4.355 4,439 4.439 4,536 4.538 4,625 4,625 4.694 4.694 4,785 4.785 TO.

60.263 67,139 69.025 66,334 (365) 65.969 66.160 (115) 66.045 67.162 (1’S) 67,047 67,518 S7$16 66.595 68.595 24.
53.370 58.305 30.611 30.611 33.641 33,641 36,627 36.627 39.880 39680 43.424 43.424 2$.

2.045 Z04S 1.696 1.696 927 927 997 997 26.
(6.860) (10.077) (11.537) (11.620) (11,620) (12.238) (12238) (12,937) (12.937) (13.744) (13.744) (14.613) 114.613) 27.

43.746 62.335 65.022 51,600 51,000 40,308 40.300 39,676 39.678 22.G91 22.601 20363 20.363 29
7,623 7.621 6.232 4.437 6.4J7 6647 6.647 6.621 6.621 8,997 6.997 9,177 9,17? 30.

32.
310570 324,965 237.B05 325,494 (36S) 325.129 319,790 (US) 319,675 324,341 (115) 324^6 309.200 309206 309.727 309,777 33.
45,474 47.694 46.842 SO.S96 50586 5Z436 52.436 54.244 $4,244 56,019 56,019 57.627 $7*27 34.
ZS97 3,765 4.100 4,100 4.100 4,TOO 4.100 4.1X 4.100 4,100 4.100 4.1CQ 4.100 35.

<7 6161 (7562) (7.579) (7.219) (7.219) (7.166) X.
43 767 45448 46 171 471W1 47.180 *8574 46974 SO 765 52900 52900 54 741 $4,741 37.

354 357 37D.433 383976 377 674 372.309 368 764 (115) 368.649 375106 (US) 374 »1 362.106 362.108 3S4 4G6 3G4468 38.

606.626 516^57 560,717 557,844 (36$) 557279 560.245 (115) 560,130 572,924 (115) 572.609 566.636 566,636 576.382 576^82 39.
90,721 74^60 64.399 139.3® 1.532 140,901 146.37$ 1.282 147,657 143,206 1^62 144,486 159.206 153.206 159,991 159,991 40.

1 393 3 031 3031 2.684 ' 2 .664 2.679 7RM 3 291 3 291 2 890 2890 41.
94,506 7S.573 67.297 142.400 1532 143532 149.059 1.262 150.341 146.085 1.282 147,367 162.499 162.499 162.861 102.881 42.

45,756 40.295 44,834 49,160 49.160 46.607 46.607 46,738 46.738 50.601 50.601 47.766 47,766 43.
7.446 3966 (4.059) (6,693) (6.893) (6252) (6,252) (5.519) (5.519) (4.764) (*.7*4) (4,004) {4.004) 44

(920) (985) (985) (964) (964) (097) (997) (1.030) 45.
4 478 6 061 5866 5666 5.300 6300 4.694 4 844 4 490 4 490 4 072 4.072 46

S6S23 47619 45720 47 013 47D13 44 870 44 870 47 149 47149 49 310 49.310 46 604 46 604 47,
26064 21.677 98367 1 417 99 919 104.169 1J62 106471 91,tM 1.212 1*0 >11 113 18* 119.119 1 to?? 114 077 48
16000 18000 . 18000 16 OX >8000 16 000 ih firm 16000 16000 16000 . 18000 49

S 19.962 S l6.d&4 t 3,<77 t 77.387 11432 s H.til $ 66.169 5!^<j 6 67471 S <0.836 i a>7ta 8 »StU * % 98.18* I 96.077 s * 9I.877 50
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Dollars in Thousands)

UN6
HO.

5
6

12.
12-A

13
14
16.

16

17.

18
Id
20

REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED
MTR HOD 10-YRHDD 10-YRHDD 10-YR HOD 10-YR HOD 10-YR HDD 19-YR HDD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HOD 10-YR HDD 10. YR HOD

MTY FTY FPFTV FPFTY FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST UNE
7014-1S 2015-16 »l*-17 2017-11 »m>si 7017-18 221*0? ADJUST »1»-H 2Q188C ADJUST 2019.20 2020-21 «WST B1SJ1 Z3£L22 ABJuai 7°81-72 NO.

SOURCES
$ 37,982 S 28.054 S 21.577 S 95307 S 1.532 3 95.919 S 104169 81282 8 105.471 S 96,935 $1,292 8 100.218 $ 113.169 s 8 113.189 $ 116,077 $ $ 116,077 1.

Depreciation * ^nVticolion 53.256 50.371 45.049 47,000 47,000 49.114 49,114 51.246 51,246 53.3S0 53.350 55,516 55.518 2
Earning* on Pattnded Funds W<UuA*nbU(Nd Wdtidreirel) 7.051 23 (1.6*3) (1.32*) 11.324) (958) (958) (1.133) C.133) (1.224) (1.224) C.104) (1-104) 3
Preceads freoi 6ond Rounding to Pay Coil of iwuonca 2.700
tocrewwt^Docreased) Other Amtt/UaMOaa

Available From Operates
26 209 29 078 (5.274) H6?4Fn 116 2461 (31 0911 (31 0911 (46 0241 (46024) (53,725) 5.

121,997 106,657 96.741 135,769 1.632 137.321 134,099 1,262 135,381 116,456 1,262 119.740 119.291 119.291 116,766 116,766 6

Drawdown o( Btfto Procoods 65.000 52.000 52.000 57.000 57,000 55,000 55.000 57,000 57.0CQ 59,000 59,000 7.
RotoM* of RttlridiHj Fund Asaot e.scz 6*73 6

lrVBuueoSi & .c’iwiv 71,000
30000 41000

160 549 154 330 232.741 167.789 1 S3? 189.321 191 099 1 282 192.361 173 456 1 282 174 74ft 17fl»1 178 291 175 768 175766 11.

USES
85,499 100,333 132.632 109.010 109.010 116.628 115.628 113.149 113.149 117,CTO 117.009 120,996 120.998 12

Deposit Into Rmlrlcleo HeeSh EftCrcwt Fund 1.167 1,167 1,157 1,157 1,167 1.167 12-A
13.503

flevtnue Bonds 62.190 53.625 34,790 51,634 51,634 47,747 47,747 62,905 62.905 44.064 44 J364 57,749 57,749 14
Temporvy Ftoonctog RepaymerV 71,000 IS

DotHbubcn of Eimnga
Additieni To (Reductions of)

16.000 16.000 10.000 16,000 18.000 16,000 18.000 16.000 19000 16,000 16,000 16,000 18.000 16

4 786 f37 7301 168 166 866 (3.0701 rtftTPi (862) (852) (76)

151.956 176,914 216.664 179,032 1.167 150.199 192.261 1,157 183.428 190.976 1.1*7 192.143 176.231 176231 • 180.869 196.669 16
Cash Strpha (Shorfftf)

TOTAL USES
14 057 8757 365 9122 8 ATS 115 6.953 (17.515) 115 (17 4ft11 (1.940) (19401 (20.903) (3D9031 19

160 549 154130 232 741 167.769 1 M? 189 321 191 099 1 W 192 361 173 458 1 78? 174 740 176.291 17S291 WS 766 ITS 768 20.

Cotf1 • Dognntng of Piled 105.734 114.327 91.743 105.600 105.800 114,557 365 114.922 123.395 480 123,675 105,677 595 106.472 103,837 565 104522 21-
14 057 87S7 365 5122 BATS 115 8.953 117516) 115 M74ftYl (1 9401 11.9401 (20,903) (2D 903) 22.

t 114.327 T &1743 1MJOO 1 114.SS7 ( 3«5 % 114822 S 123.168 t 410 t 173171 S 105477 $ $95 8 101472 f 103.697 $ $6$ 1 104.532 $ 13.03$ S SIS 1 13 930 23.

Outitsndlng Cdcnmoretol Pipe/ 24.
30,000 71.000
13,764 26,253 32541 30,579 30579 30.895 30.895 31,214 31.214 . 31,516 31,646 26
31,736 33060 35.091 26,431 26,431 27.733 27.733 26,935 26.935 28.491 26.491 30.150 30,150 27.

TOTAL K3F * increments! 09IC Revenuo 45,493 59,333 67.632 57,010 57,010 68.628 58.629 56.149 58.149 60.009 60,009 61.996 61996 28
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS 
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE 

(Dollars in Thousands)

REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED
30-Tfi KOO 10.YR HDD 16-Yfi HOD 10-YRKDO 10‘YR HDD IO.VRHOO 10-YR HDD 10.YR HDD 10.TRHDO fO-YRHOO 10-YR HDD

LINF ACTUAL HIT FTT FPFTY FPFTY FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST LINE
NO.

FUNOS PROVIDED
7014.1,4 ami 2014.17 2017-15 AflJUftT aizus fftllLlA ADJUST mtu 7014.70 ADJUST 701410 70 Mil ADJUST MM.21 mm ADJUST wi-a NO.

t. Tea! G*t R«yerucs 9 576.027 % 572.347 3 603511 1 875,991 S 1,167 ( 877,158 S 685,370 01,167 f 666.537 0 694,655 $1.16? S 695.822 S 704.143 0 $ 704,143 0 714 433 0 0 714.433 1.
Z Oth«* OpWinj Pe^rua 21.220 16 690 21.205 21077 21 022 31250 ?1 ?«1 21.475 21.475 21.70' 21701 21 840 21.940 2.
3, Ttfiil Opraitno Rtvenuee 697,247 S9V237 625.116 697,013 1,167 696,160 706,620 1.167 707.767 716.1X 1,167 717*? 725.844 725,844 736,373 736,373 3
4. Cv^e* hcorw Iner. / (Dec;) Rettndad Fur^ 10.835 1.416 1.235 1.707 1.707 1,726 1,726 1,746 1.746 2.067 2067 1,7*6 1.78* 4.
5 CAy Gtml - 5

761 1 1» 1 136 970 923 965 985 964 964 997 997 1 rwi f OX 6
7. TOTAL FUNOS PROVIDED 7095® 553.773 627.48? 699,640 1,167 700.807 709,331 1.167 710498 710.540 1.167 720.007 728,908 726,906 739.189 7*9,189 7,

FUNDS APPLIED
8. Fuel Coals 262,169 148,524 176,741 1*4,970 1*4,970 191.481 191,481 197.61* 197,810 204,526 2D4.528 211,914 211,914 8,
9 354 357 370 433 363 975 372674 377 3C9 366764 36*849 375106 (115) 374,991 362108 362.108 364 468 3*4 468 9.

ia TMI Opefslinp £jtp«ruie4 606,526 516*7 560^17 &7,644 557,279 56024$ (115) 560.130 S71924 (115) 572,609 566,636 566.630 576,382 576.382 IQ.
11. leis Nor**C«h EsperMi 74 535 69 059 92630 76 214 1 971 60166 68.463 1 5S4 7D.017 69 770 1 141 70 911 55 503 613 56110 55 924 97 50 021 11
11 TOTAl FUNDS APPLIED 531591 427696 468.087 479.430 (2*6) 477,094 491.762 (V669) 490,113 503.1*4 (1.256) 501,896 511,133 (613) 510,520 520.4SB (ST) 520.361 ia.

13 Funds Av«4aM la Covar Q«H Sannea 176.672 165.875 159,400 220.210 3.503 223.713 217*49 1636 220.365 215.686 2,423 216.109 217.775 613 218,388 218,731 97 218.828 13

14 1975 Ordr^nca Bends Saivlca 26.904 14
IS. D«b1 Sstvlct Covarags 197S Bonds 4J7 15.

16 hM AvaiaUe sft« Pnef 0«tt Sarwe 149.968 165,675 169,400 220.210 3*3 223713 217*9 2.636 220.365 715.686 7,473 218,109 217.775 613 218,386 216.731 97 . 218128 1*
17. >7
18 Nat A«»!atta altat Prior Caprial L«aw. 149.966 165,675 159,400 220,210 3.903 223,713 217,549 1*36 220,385 215.666 2423 218,109 217,775 613 211386 216.731 97 218,628 1*.

18 1998 OrOnarw* Bonds D«U Serves 70.139 77.B67 66.960 101,720 101,720 95.276 95.776 97.856 97.856 95 4*9 95,459 106142 106.342 19
20 199S Odimce Subonfinsie Berds 0*« Svvieo • (TXCP) 20
21. Tout 1998 Ordinance Dab) Service 70,139 77,667 66,668 101,720 101,720 95.276 95176 97,658 97.856 *.459 95.459 106.342 106,342 21.

21 DaM Service Coveraga 1998 Bonds 2.14 M3 13* 2.14 6.03 120 218 0413 211 220 0.02 123 120 0.01 129 2.00 0,W 106 22

23. N« AvaaM* after 1996 OeU Service 79,629 88.006 92,532 116.490 3503 121,993 122,773 2,836 125,109 117.878 2.423 123251 122.316 613 122.929 1123*9 97 112/48* 23

24 Aggregate Dett Same* 97,043 77.667 65.868 101,720 101,720 96,276 *.276 97,658 97.856 95.459 *,459 106,342 106.342 24
2$. Oat* Service Cowage (Combined lens) 1.62 2.13 238 2,16 0.03 22D 22* 003 131 2-20 0.02 123 226 001 229 206 OCO 106 25
26 Data Sanica Comaga (Corntinad Mro vih $19.0 ca> For 1.64 1.M Ml 1.99 0.03 102 2.09 0.03 M2 2.92 0.02 1*4 2.00 0*1 110 lit 0.00 1* 26
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PropotM Ratn 
JPG - 2 -A *

Pft9«4#

UNC

ASSgTS
1, UOty Pivtt f*l
2. SmW% Pw^d Fto«fvi 

Cap4s<
WorUn' Compens»tiofi Fund

4 A Hertft Insmnca Cactow

5 Cun

Acceuntt RoewsM. 
e. Gas
7. OU»«
8, Aceruad Gu Rawnun
9 Reurva for Uncclldctlhte

to. Total AccoLgrts Rae«fv*bto.
11. hUtanglt A Supfriin
\2 Ottwr Curraol Auota
12 OdwrodD«b«t»
la UnartartZPd Sand laiuanca Enoor^a
15. UnamortUod Lou on RucqUrod DcW
16. Ottered Environmoftta
17. Ooferrod Ponsjen OutWs
16. Other Auets
19 TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY & llABUfTlCS
20 CjTy £<Mty
2). Revenue Sonds

TECAAcereom
21 Unemorttzed Oiftcount
23 Unamertged PrornuTt
24 Long Term Debt 

Loan
Accountt Peyabte 
CuRomer Oeposds 
OV«r Current LhWite 
Pernio* UeM&y 
Oefened Credits 
Deferred PenMn Intewe 
Acenjed interest 
Acorved Tw« & Wages 
Accrued Oodibutwn b City 
Other Labitos

TOTAL EOUfTY A LIABILITIES

C APTTAL EATON
Total CepRalazatton 
Total Long Term Debt 
Debt to Equity Robe 
CapQafctaton Rabo

PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS 
BALANCE SHEET 

{Dollars In Thousands)

REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED REVISED
30-VR H00 10-YR ROD 10-YR HOD 10*YR HDD 10-YR HOD 10-YR HDD tO-YR HDD 10-YAHO0 It-YRHOD 10-YR HDD 10-YR HOD

ACTUAL KIT rry FPFTY FPFTY FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST
anifl* Ar.Ti/l* MV17 im/is fiojyii Midi 6«in9 ADJUST Midi MTflB AD MIST •/IflM Midi ADJUST initfl mm ADJUST 101*7 NO.

1.232.370 1264.610 1.365.6CO 1,427,014 1,427,014 1.490,206 1.480.206 1,545,111 1.649.111 1.610,101 1,610,101 1.$73.27D 1.673,270 1,
90,141 66.652 105,196 106.253 106.253 107.320 107.320 12S,246 120.248 121.458 121,456 122.676 121670 2.

5,020 2,603 2,610 2.818 1.107 3.783 2.629 2,334 4.963 2,642 3,501 6U3 1662 3.501 6.183 2682 3.50' 6.183 4
114.327 91.743 1Q5.H0 114.557 365 114,922 1S.395 460 123,675 105.677 995 106,472 103,937 595 104,532 63,035 595 63,630 5

162.433 142.43$ 136,100 131636 132.B3& 126.969 128.969 125,516 125,516 121.461 121.461 117.870 117.870 6.
1.250 104$ 1,600 1,525 1,525 1,550 1.550 1.575 1.575 1.030 1,600 1,525 1,625 7.
5.199 3.368 5.041 5.358 5.358 5.460 5.460 5.543 5.543 5,6ff2 5.662 5.771 5,771 6

1102.0291 (74.26$) (71.8901 (70,369) <70.3891 (68 5661 (88.5061 (67.550) (67,5S0> (65.9791 (6979) (64,428) (54,426) 9
66.SS3 73,563 70.751 69,330 69.330 67,383 $7,393 65,064 65.064 82.744 61744 60.63$ 60.838 10
50,008 47.601 47,005 49,220 49,220 50,734 50.734 52.002 $1002 53,509 53.509 54,672 54.672 11.

460 1.642 4$5 459 459 463 463 467 467 471 471 47S 475 11
13.135 29,37$ 4,782 4.987 4.987 4.469 4.469 4,464 4.464 4,346 4,346 4.311 4,311 13
3,473 512 393 341 341 303 303 270 270 241 241 216 215 M

30.053 53,946 47.885 42.189 42.199 36.899 36.899 32.005 32.005 27.515 27.515 23.443 23,443 15.
29.609 28.425 28,767 28,787 26,767 26.722 26.722 25.026 25.026 24,099 24.099 23.102 23.102 16
76,129 58.043 41.906 13.952 13.952 17.
35.S03 24.357 30.720 40,604 40.604 42.007 42.067 43.376 43,376 44 790 44 799 *6.218 46.218 - 16.

1.813.563 rs>7 4«r <082.163 7 0STffi" 2.814 1.960. He” 2.115009 4.096 2.1Z2.105 SiiSais 4.086 2.120408 1098.430“ 4.036 “■ "1100S26 19

Z7T.9W 266.036 30.427 107,614 1.532 109.346 194,003 2,614 196,617 274.936 4.06$ 279.035 370.128 4.096 374.224 466.206 4.096 471301 20
915.175 637,630 1.073,041 1,021.208 1.021.206 973,460 973.460 1.090.557 1,090,557 1.048.473 1,048.473 966,724 966.724 21.

(787) <110) (875) (625) (825) (770) (778) (732) (732) (686) (666) (841, 1641) 22.
43.360 66.703 78 887 66,303 66.303 60.595 60,595 52.623 51623 45.369 45.369 38.936 36936 23.

957,740 926.423 1.150,833 1,069.686 i.Ati.M 1.033.277 1.033,277 1,141446 1.142.448 1.091,176 1,091,176 1.077.021 1.027,021 24

59,027 65,670 58.084 57.221 57,221 57.434 57,434 56,011 58.011 58.216 56116 56,144 66.144 2$
2.656 3.308 3.000 1070 2.67D 2,747 2.747 1630 1630 1519 2519 2413 27.
6,196 7,772 4,930 4.932 <632 4.930 <936 <£4t 4&4T <946 <,940 <922 4,922 26.

239.669 296.093 291.233 286.670 265,670 280.051 290,051 274.416 274,416 267.534 267434 2B3.36Q 260.360 29.
7.895 5.999 2.C91 4.497 4 497 1791 1791 2.018 2.018 2.084 2084 2,080 1080. 30.

11,653 2.813 1613 11.120 11,120 11290 11290 12.303 12.302 31.
6.709 1606 15.564 14,639 14,639 14.117 14.117 17.003 17.903 17,129 17,129 16.303 16.30 31
3,342 3.609 5.975 4,100 4.100 4.631 4,631 5,170 5,170 5.696 5.686 6.228 6.228 33.
3000 3.000 3.000 3.000 1000 3.000 3,000 3,CEO 3,000 3.000 3.000 3.00Q 3,000 34

168 400 149,623 414.200 367.334 387.334 357,502 357.502 323.413 323.413 283 95 283.5S5 237.433 237,432 3$.
i.JJlrti’ 1 813.563 VS>7 455 1.932.183 —mrssr 2814 i.tBB'iir 2.n6l)tt 4.098 JlifiW, 5d(S.ii5" 2.120.408 ZCS643Q- 4.096 1100.528 36.

1,235.732 1.214,461 1.161,260 1,197.500 1.532 1,199.032 1.227,260 2.814 1,230,094 1.417.387 4 C96 1,421.483 1,461,304 4,096 1,465,400 1,495.226 4.09$ 1,499.222 37.
957.748 926.423 1.160,833 1.069.666 1.069,686 1,033,277 1.033.277 1,141446 1,141448 1.081,176 1.CB1,Y?6 1.027,021 1.027.071 38

77.50% 7628S 07 42% 91.00% •012% 90.88% 64.19% •0 19% 64.00% 60.60% •023% 6037% 74$7% •021% 74 4$% 06. $9% •0.19% 69.50% 39.
345 322 37.62 1011 • 0.14) 9 97 533 ;0C5) 5.2S 4.16 (006. 4,09 195 (003,1 292 219 (0.02) 117 40
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS

10-YR AVG. HEATING DEGREE DAYS & $34.0 MILLION BASE RATE INCREASE

Exhibit JFG-4

City Equity

FTY

8/31/17

30,427

FPFTY

8/31/18

73,417

FORECAST

8/31/19

125,223

FORECAST

8/31/20

171,792

FORECAST

8/31/21

232,616

FORECAST

8/31/22

296,304

Revenue Bonds

Unamortized Discount

Unamortized Premium

1,073,041

(875)

78,667

1,021,208

(825)

69,303

973,460

(778)

60,595

1,090,557

(732)

52,623

1,046,473

(686)

45,389

988,724

(641)

38,938

Long Term Debt 1,150,833 1,089,686 1,033,277 1,142,448 1,091,176 1,027,021

Total Capitalization

Total Long Term Debt

Debt to Equity Ratio

1,181,260

1,150,833

97.42%

1,163,103

1,089,686

93.69%

1,158,500

1,033,277

89.19%

1,314,240

1,142,448

86.93%

1,323,792

1,091,176

82.43%

1,323,325

1,027,021

77.61%

ADDITIONAL $75.0M NEW MONEY ISSUANCE

City Equity

FTY

8/31/17

30,427

FPFTY

8/31/18

69,717

FORECAST

8/31/19

121,523

FORECAST

8/31/20

168,092

FORECAST

8/31/21

228,916

FORECAST

8/31/22

292,604

Revenue Bonds

Revenue Bonds - $75M Issuance 

Unamortized Discount

Unamortized Premium

1,073,041

75,000

(875)

78,667

1,021,208

73,900

(825)

69,303

973,460

72,700

(778)

60,595

1,090,557

71,500

(732)

52,623

1,046,473

70,200

(686)

45,389

988,724

68,800

(641)

38,938

Long Term Debt 1,225,833 1,163,586 1,105,977 1,213,948 1,161,376 1,095,821

Total Capitalization

Total Long Term Debt

Debt to Equity Ratio

1,256,260

1,225,833

97.58%

1,233,303

1,163,586

94.35%

1,227,500

1,105,977

90.10%

1,382,040

1,213,948

87.84%

1,390,292

1,161,376

83.53%

1,388,425

1,095,821

78.93%

lncrease/(Decrease) D/E Ratio 0.15% 0.66% 0.91% 0.91% 1.11% 1.32%
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Information Services (IS) Methodology

PGW uses an Information Service Allocation Budget Model to transfer the cost responsibility for desktop computers, 

printers, phones, and other information services expenses (devices) to each cost center within the organization. The 

responsibility for operating costs of the Information Service Department is transferred to each cost center based upon 

the number of devices, software applications, and labor hours assigned to a specific cost center. The process for the 

budget allocation is as follows:

• At the beginning of each calendar year, Finance will formally request Information Services to:

o Provide a list of devices, software applications, and personnel currently allocated to each cost 

center;

o Provide a list of devices and software applications PGW intends to add to its existing enterprise 

system;

o Identify the related cost center for new devices and software applications; and

o Provide estimated costs by expenditure type for the projected period, including personnel levels, 

purchase services, maintenance contractors, maintenance software, etc.

• To determine the allocation budget per cost center the following factors have to be considered: total number 

of PCs, laptops & printers and the Estimated Actual Direct Department Allocations Summary.

The Estimated Actual Direct Department Allocations summary is devised to determine department's cost. This 

accounts for the total equipment leases, purchased services, maintenance of software and office equipment and 

labor.

To determine department allocation begin by:

• Determine the Allocation (PCs, laptops, and printers) by percentage allocation, which is based on 

department estimate;

• Determine the Actual Allocated Amount is based on the Estimated Actual Direct Department Allocations 

summary;

• Determine the Default Allocation by multiplying total number of equipment by the unit cost;

• IS allocation is derived by adding the Actual and Default Allocated amounts; and

• Determine Telecom Allocation (using same methodology)
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Fleet Methodology

PGW uses a Fleet Allocation Budget Model to transfer the cost responsibility for vehicles, mobile equipment, street 

machinery, and other services (vehicles) to each cost center within the organization. The responsibility for operating 

costs of the Fleet Service Department is transferred to each cost center based upon vehicle utilization and 

assignments. The process for the budget allocation is as follows:

• At the beginning of each calendar year, Finance will formally request Fleet Services to:

o Provide a list of vehicles and street machinery currently assigned to each cost center from PGW’s 

M5 work management system;

o Provide a list of vehicles and street machinery PGW intends to add to its existing fleet inventory;

o Identify the related cost center for new vehicles and street machinery; and

o Provide estimated costs by expenditure type for the projected period, including personnel levels, 

purchase services, maintenance contractors, etc.

• Concurrent with the aforementioned formal data requests, Finance will query daily vehicle utilization data 

from PGW's Vehicle Data Input System (VDIS). The data consists of daily utilized hours, by vehicle, 

imported from either PGW’s Advanced Intelligent Mobile System (AIMS) or manually inputted from 

employees’ timesheets. The utilization data will be used to test the reasonability and validity of the core 

business assumptions used in the budgeting allocation model.

Once Finance has compiled all relevant data, standard hourly rates for each vehicle class be will derived based on 

the projected vehicles assigned to each cost center. To determine the budgeted fleet allocation per cost center, a 

number of components must be considered: vehicle type, number of vehicles, annual hours utilized per vehicle, and 

the vehicle rate. In the case of capital projects, the allocation budget model provides for the transfer of fleet costs to 

capital projects. To determine the allocated cost per department you begin by:

• Developing an Operating Budget for the Fleet Service Department;

• Identify the total number of vehicles by type, by cost center, projected to be in PGW’s vehicle inventory;

• Determine the average amount of hours each vehicle is utilized on an annual basis. It is important to note 

that passenger type vehicles, i.e. cars, are assumed to be utilized 2,080 hours per non-Leap Year or 40.0 

hours per week 52 weeks per year and 2,088 hours per Leap Year;

• Determine an hourly rate per vehicle class (see Exhibit C);

• Determine the Fleet Service budget allocation or overhead expense for each cost center. This is calculated 

by multiplying each specific vehicle type’s hourly rate by the amount of project hours the vehicle will be 

utilized on an annual basis in the FPFTY 2018 period (see Exhibit D).

• The FPFTY 2018 period was developed using the previously defined Fleet Service Budget Allocation 

process for the FTY 2017 period. In order to determine the FPFTY 2018 period, an escalation factor of 

2.0% was applied to all FTY 2017 allocated costs.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

August 31, 2016 and 2015 

(Unaudited)

pipeline supplier refunds in FY 2015 as compared to $4.4 million in FY 2014 while demand charges 
decreased by $5.4 million, compared to FY 2014.

Variations in the cost of purchased gas are passed through to customers under the GCR provision of PGW's 
rate schedules. Over recoveries or under recoveries of purchased gas costs are subtracted from or added to 
gas revenues and are included in other current assets or other current liabilities, thereby eliminating the effect 
that recovery of gas costs would otherwise have on net income.

The average natural gas commodity prices for utilized gas for FY 2016, FY 2015, and FY 2014 were $2.20, 
$3.84, and $4.63 per Mcf, respectively.

Other Operating Expenses - Expenditures for street operations, infrastructure improvements, and plant 
operations in FY 2016 were $91.4 million, a $2.3 million or 2.5% decrease from the FY 2015 total of 
$93.7 million. The decrease in FY 2016 was mainly caused by lower labor costs associated with the 
Distribution department. The FY 2015 total of $93.7 million was $0.4 million lower than the FY 2014 total of 
$94.1 million as a result of lower labor costs associated with running the LNG plants.

Additionally, expenses of $126.7 million related to collection and account management, customer services, 
marketing, and the administrative area increased by $2.9 million or 2.3% in FY 2016 primarily due to higher 
administrative and healthcare expenses, offset by lower expenses associated with marketing. This category 
increased by $7.6 million or 6.5% in FY 2015 compared to FY 2014 primarily due to higher healthcare 
expenses, costs of customer programs, and an increase in customer services.

Pension costs increased in FY 2016 due to a number of factors including a decrease in the discount rate from 
7.65% to 7.30%, and lower than anticipated earnings in FY 2016. Pension costs increased by $18.6 million or 
42.6% to $62.3 million in FY 2016 as compared to FY 2015. Pension costs increased by $16.5 million or 
60.7% to $43.7 million in FY 2015 as compared to FY 2014.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) costs increased $3.9 million in FY 2016 when compared to FY 2015. 
OPEB costs increased in FY 2016 due to increased normal costs and increased insurance expenses. OPEB 
costs remained the same in FY 2015 when compared to FY 2014. For FY 2016, FY 2015, and FY 2014, the 
Company utilized a discount rate of 7.95%. The higher OPEB Trust Fund (the Trust) balances created higher 
investment income and lower unfunded liabilities. These factors lowered OPEB costs.

The annual OPEB cost is recorded in the statements of revenues and expenses and changes in net position. 
For the year ended August 31, 2016, approximately $9.9 million was recorded to other postemployment 
benefits expense and $31.1 million was allocated to administrative and general expense. For the year ended 
August 31, 2015, approximately $6.7 million was recorded to other postemployment benefits expense and 
$30.3 million was allocated to administrative and general expense.

The net OPEB obligation was $81.4 million for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2016, an $8.6 million 
decrease from the $90.0 million obligation at August 31, 2015. The net OPEB obligation was $90.0 million for 
the fiscal year ended August 31, 2015, an $11.8 million decrease from the $101.8 million obligation at

7 (Continued)
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

August 31, 2016 and 2015

Defeased debt of the Company (bonds issued by the Company payable from the proceeds of irrevocably 
pledged assets) at August 31, 2015 was as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars):

Latest date 
maturinq to Interest rate

Bonds
outstandinq

12th Series B 05/15/20 7.00% $ 24,735
17th Series 07/01/18 5.38 37,275
19th Series 10/01/23 5.00 14,450

Total $ 76,460

The assets pledged, primarily noncallable U.S. government securities, had a market value of $82.4 million 
at August 31, 2015, bearing interest on face value from 5.84% to 5.89%.

The investments held by the trustee and the defeased bonds are not recognized on the Company’s 
balance sheets in accordance with the terms of the Indentures of Defeasance. The investments pledged 
for the redemption of the defeased debt have maturities and interest payments scheduled to coincide with 
the trustee cash requirements for debt service.

(10) Defined Benefit Pension Plan

(a) Plan Description

The Pension Plan provides pension benefits for all eligible employees of PGW and other eligible class 
employees of PFMC and PGC.

The Pension Plan provides for retirement payments for vested employees at age 65 or earlier under 
various options, which includes a disability pension provision, a preretirement spouse or domestic 
partner’s death benefit, a reduced pension for early retirement, various reduced pension payments for 
the election of a survivor option, and a provision for retirement after 30 years of service without 
penalty for reduced age. In accordance with Resolutions of the PGC, Ordinances of City Council, and 
as prescribed by the City’s Director of Finance, the Pension Plan is being funded with contributions by 
PGW to the Sinking Fund Commission of the City, which serves as the Trustee. Management 
believes that the Pension Plan is in compliance with all applicable laws.

(b) Benefits Provided

Normal Retirement Benefits: The Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and 
disability benefits. Retirement benefits vest after five years of credited service. Employees who retire 
at or after age 65 are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly, in an amount 
equal to the greater of:

• 1.25% of the first $6,600 of Final Average Earnings plus 1.75% of the excess of Final Average
Earnings over $6,600, times years of credited service, with a maximum of 60.0% of the highest 
annual earnings during the last 10 years of credited service or
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

August 31,2016 and 2015

• 2.0% of total earnings received during the period of credited service plus 22.5% of the first $1,200
annual amount, applicable only to participants who were employees on or prior to March 24, 
1967.

Death Benefits: Before retirement, spouses of deceased active participates or of former participants 
are entitled to vested benefits provided such participants died after having attained age 45 and 
completed at least 15 years of Credited Service and whose age plus years of credited service equals 
at least 65 years of whom have completed at least 15 years of Credited Service regardless of age. 
The benefit payable is an amount for the spouse’s remaining lifetime equal to the amount the 
beneficiary of the participant would have received had the participant retired due to a disability on the 
day preceding his/her death and elected the 100% contingent annuitant option.

Disability Benefits: Disability benefits are the same as the Normal Retirement Benefits and are based 
on Final Average Compensation and Credited Service as of the date of disability.

Final Average Earnings are the employee’s average pay, over the highest five years of the last 
10 years of credited service. Employees with 15 years of credited service may retire at or after age 55 
and receive a reduced retirement benefit. Employees with 30 years of service may retire without 
penalty for reduced age.

Except as noted in the following paragraph, covered employees are not required to contribute to the 
Pension Plan.

In December 2011, the Pension Plan was amended by Ordinance and a new deferred compensation 
plan was authorized by Ordinance as well. Newly hired employees have an irrevocable option to join 
either a new deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 401 or the existing defined-benefit plan. The defined-contribution plan provides for an 
employer contribution equal to 5.5% of applicable wages. The defined-benefit plan provides for a 
newly hired employee contribution equal to 6.0% of applicable wages. The Ordinance did not affect 
the retirement benefits of active employees, current retirees and beneficiaries, or terminated 
employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

August 31, 2016 and 2015

(c) Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2016, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, the Pension Plan membership 
consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently 
receiving benefits and terminated 
employees entitled to benefits, but
not yet receiving them 2,521

Participants:
Vested 1,036
Nonvested  215

Total participants  1,251

Total membership  3,772

During the period September 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, PGW experienced significant changes 
in its workforce. During this time, there were over 180 active Pension Plan participants who moved 
into retirement. This activity is more than double the number of retirements experienced by PGW in a 
normal year.

(d) Contributions

The Pension Plan funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined 
rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to accumulate assets to 
pay benefits when due considering employee contributions required for new hires after 
December 2011 who elect to participate in the Pension Plan. Level percentages of payroll employer 
contribution rates are determined using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial funding method. For the 
Pension Plan years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, PGW's average contribution rate was 29.1% and 
22.6% of annual payroll, respectively. Employee contributions were approximately $0.6 million in the 
plan year ended June 30, 2016 and approximately $0.4 million in the plan year ended June 30, 2015. 
The actuarially determined contributions for FY 2016 and FY 2015 were $26.5 million and 
$21.5 million, respectively. PGW contributed $26.5 million and $21.5 million in its FY 2016 and 
FY 2015, respectively.

(e) Net Pension Liability

The Company's net pension liability as of August 31, 2016 and 2015 was measured as of June 30, 
2016 and 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, June 30, 2015.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

August 31,2016 and 2015

The total pension liability was determined using the entry age normal actuarial method and the 
following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation
Salary increases 
Investment rate of return

2016 2015

2.00% 2.00%
4.50 4.50
7.30 7.65

Mortality rates. Mortality rates for FY 2015 were based on the RP-2014 mortality tables for males and 
females generationally projected with scale MP-2014. Mortality rates for FY 2016 were based on the 
RP-2014 mortality tables for males and females generationally projected with scale MP-2015.

Long-term rate of return. The long-term expected rate of return on Pension Plan investments was 
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates 
of return (expected returns, net of Pension Plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for 
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 
expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each 
major asset class for FY 2016 are summarized in the following table:

Expected
annual

Asset class Minimum Maximum Tarqet return

Domestic equity 35.0% 55.0% 45.0% 9.0%

International equity 10.0 30.0 20.0 9.1

Fixed income 25.0 45.0 35.0 5.6

Cash equivalents — 10.0 — —

100.0%
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

August 31, 2016 and 2015

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability at June 30, 2016 and 2015 
was 7.30% and 7.65%, respectively. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that Company 
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution 
rates and the employee contributions. Based on those assumptions, the Pension Plan’s fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active 
and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on Pension Plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability.

Changes in Net Pension Liability

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

increase (decrease)
Total pension Plan fiduciary Net pension

liability net position liability
la) (b) . (a Mb)

Balances at September 1, 2014 $ 677,401 513,145 164,256

Changes for the year:
Service cost 4,890 — 4,890
Interest 52,377 — 52,377
Differences between expected 

and actual experience 17,961 . 17,961
Contributions - employer — 21,106 (21,106)
Contributions - employee — 393 (393)
Net investment income — 24,472 (24,472)
Benefit payments, including refunds 

of employee contributions (46,917) (46,917) ___

Administrative expenses — (1,480) 1,480
Change in assumptions 44,876 — 44,876

Net changes 73,187 (2,426) 75,613

Balances at August 31, 2015 $ 750,588 510,719 239,869
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August31,2016 and 2015

Changes in Net Pension Liability

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Increase (decrease)
Total pension Plan fiduciary Net pension

liability net position liability
(a) (b) OMb)

Balances at September 1, 2015 $ 750,588 510,719 239,869

Changes for the year
Service cost 5,399 — 5,399
Interest 55,903 — 55,903
Differences between expected 

and actual experience (8,840) . (8,840)
Contributions - employer — 21,123 (21,123)
Contributions - employee — 602 (602)
Net investment income — 2,872 (2,872)
Benefit payments, including refunds 

of employee contributions (50,447) (50,447)
Administrative expenses — (1.611) 1,611
Change in assumptions 26,748 26,748

Net changes 28,763 (27,461) 56,224

Balances at August 31, 2016 $ 779,351 483,258 296,093

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net 
pension liability of the Company at June 30, 2016, calculated using the discount rate of 7.30%, as well 
as what the Company’s net pension liability as of August 31, 2016 would be if it were calculated using 
a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower (6.30%) or one-percentage point higher (8.30%) 
than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease discount rate 1% increase 

6.30% 7.30% 8.30%
(thousands of U.S. dollars)

Net pension liability $ 387,060 296,093 220,296
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

August 31, 2016 and 2015

The following presents the net pension liability of the Company at June 30, 2015, calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.65%, as well as what the Company’s net pension liability as of August 31, 2015 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower (6.65%) or 
one-percentage point higher (8.65%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease discount rate 1% Increase 

6.65% 7.65% 8.65%
(thousands of U.S. dollars)

Net pension liability $ 326,719 239,869 167,415

Pension Plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the Pension Plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued Pension Plan financial report.

(f) Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions

For the years ended August 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company recognized pension expense of 
$62.3 million and $43.7 million, respectively. At August 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company reported 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources (thousands of U.S. dollars):

August 31, 2016_________ _________ August 31, 2015

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
outflows of inflows of outflows of inflows of

resources resources resources resources

Differences between expected 
and actual experience $ 61,232 44,377 _

Changes of assumptions — — 33,572 —
Net difference between

projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 21,278 (11,653)

Contributions made after 

measurement date 5,533 179 _
Total $ 88,043 — 78.128 (11.653)
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements

August 31,2016 and 2015

The $5.5 million reported as deferred outflows of resources related to employer contributions made 
after the measurement date as of June 30, 2016 will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in FY 2017. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows (thousands of 
U.S. dollars):

Fiscal year.
2017
2018
2019
2020

Total

Deferred 
outflows 

of resources

Deferred
inflows 

of resources

36,730
24,617 —

14,155 —

7,007 —

82,509 —

{g) Fair Value Measurements

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy described in note 1, the Plan's 
assets at fair value as of June 30, 2016 (thousands of U.S. dollars):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Corporate bonds $ - 46,427 — 46,427

Common and preferred stock 298,387 17,274 1 315,662

U.S. government securities 35,964 19,659 — 55,623

Financial agreements — — 35 35

Collateralized mortgage obligations — 42,851 — 42,851

Foreign entity's debt — 5,595 221 5,816

Municipal obligations — 4,038 4,038

$ 334,351 135,844 257 470,452
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS 

TOTAL CUSTOMER BILLINGS & RECEIPTS

May 2014Through April 2016____________ ____________ May 2015 Through April 2017

Customer

Billings

Customer

Receipts
Receipts as a 

%of Billings

Rolling

24 Month

Customer

Billings

Customer

Receipts

Receipts as a 

% of Billings

Rolling

24 Month

May 42,234,359 67,806,487 160.55% 92.46% 37,534,443 61,264,002 163.22% 94.88%

June 31,684,098 49,757,166 157.04% 93.14% 26,760,987 45,907,533 171.55% 95.56%

July 28,035,785 45,539,954 162.44% 93.69% 23,706,170 35,744,567 150.78% 95.82%

August 26,437,134 37,036,582 140.09% 93.47% 23,150,412 30,072,225 129.90% 96.00%

September 27,156,704 36,340,554 133.82% 94.16% 22,248,278 29,305,468 131.72% 96.03%

October 29,435,920 41,542,799 141.13% 94.83% 27,607,951 36,216,980 131.18% 95.91%

November 51,029,680 37,645,470 73.77% 95.19% 41,896,375 35,298,833 84.25% 96.53%

December 91,521,849 54,975,644 60.07% 94.82% 60,540,114 44,365,336 73.28% 97.80%

January 114,680,685 71,532,021 62.37% 94.25% 88,141,934 50,480,202 57.27% 98.07%

February 124,532,519 87,625,799 70.36% 93.84% 96,292,206 72,274,976 75.06% 99.44%

March 106,010,248 106,226,663 100.20% 94.59% 79,928,151 83,211,887 104.11% 100.44%

April 66,313,472 92,055,389 138.82% 95.07% 55,837,063 66,390,930 118.90% 99.69%

May 37,534,443 61,264,002 163.22% 94.88% 36,527,533 47,508,165 130.06% 98.58%

June 26,760,987 45,907,533 171.55% 95.56% 27,197,588 42,194,441 155.14% 98.34%

July 23,706,170 35,744,567 150.78% 95.82% 22,819,392 33,177,699 145.39% 97.79%

August 23,150,412 30,072,225 129.90% 96.00% 21,763,925 31,119,444 142.99% 97.68%

September 22,248,278 29,305,468 131.72% 96.03% 22,951,297 28,563,038 124.45% 97.40%

October 27,607,951 36,216,980 131.18% 95.91% 27,217,121 30,628,940 112.54% 96.73%

November 41,896,375 35,298,833 84.25% 96.53% 45,050,662 33,169,355 73.63% 96.83%

December 60,540,114 44,365,336 73.28% 97.80% 77,809,173 46,777,938 60.12% 97.23%

January 88,141,934 50,480,202 57.27% 98.07% 108,662,276 64,049,378 58.94% 97.10%

February 96,292,206 72,274,976 75.06% 99.44% 98,069,446 78,063,647 79.60% 98.39%

March 79,928,151 83,211,887 104.11% 100.44% 87,822,221 89,543,314 101.96% 98.49%

April 55,837,063 66,390,930 118,90% 99.69% 67,718,609 69,900,323 103.22% 96.58%

Total To-Date $1,322,716,537 $1,318,617,467 99.69% $1,227,253,328 $1,185,228,622 96.58%

$ (95,463,209) $ (133,388,844) FY 2017 vs FY 2016

12 Month S 583,644,084 $ 590,532,939 101.18% 12 Month $ 643,609,244 $ 594.695,683 92.40%

Rolling 12 Month Data Rolling 24 Month Data Rolling 12 Month Data Rolling 24 Month Data

April 2017 92.40% April 2017 96.58% August 2016 98.41% August 2016 97.68%

April 2016 101.18% April 2016 99.69% August 2015 97.10% August 2015 96.00%

April 2015 98.51% April 2015 95.07% August 2014 94.96% August 2014 93.47%



BEFORE THE
PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
Office of Consumer Advocate 
Office of Small Business Advocate 
Philadelphia Industrial & Commercial

R-2017-2586783 
C-2017-2592092 
C-2017-2593497

Cas Users Group 
William Dingfelder

C-2017-2595147 
C-2017-2593903

v.

Philadelphia Gas Works
VERIFIED STATEMENT

I, Joseph F. Golden, Jr., hereby state that the facts set forth below are true and correct to 
the best of my knowledge, information and belief and I understand that the statements herein are 
made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa. C.S. § 4904 (relating to unsworn falsification to 
authorities).

1. I have submitted testimony in this proceeding on behalf of Philadelphia Gas Works and 
am authorized to make this statement on its behalf.

2. 1 prepared PGW St. No. 2 which includes Exhibits JFG-1, JFG-2 and JFG-3 and was 
served on the parties in this proceeding on February 27,2017.

3. 1 prepared PGW St. No. 2-R which includes Exhibits JFG-1-A, JFG-2-A, JFG-4, JFG-5, 
JFG-6, JFG-7, and JFG-8 and was served on the parties in this proceeding on June 9,
2017.

4. I prepared reformatted versions of Exhibits JFG-1-A and JFG-2-A which were served on 
the parties in this proceeding on June 13,2017.

5. I have one correction to PGW St. No. 2-R. Page 2, lines 11-12 incorrectly stated “that was 
inadvertently not an excluded when calculating the Debt Service Coverage..and have 
been corrected to read “that was inadvertently excluded when calculating the Debt Service 
Coverage....”

6. I prepared PGW St. No. 5-SR which was served on the parties in this proceeding on 
June 22, 2017.

7. Subject to the above-referenced correction, if I were asked the same questions set forth in 
each of these statements today, my answers would be the same.

Date: June 26,2017
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